
SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 
Registered Office : 'PREMLATA', 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 700 017, West Bengal, Telefax  +91 33 2289 2734/35/36 

Date: 02-09-2025 

To, 

Department of Corporate Affairs 
BSE Limited 
P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, 

Fort, Mumbai 400-001 

Ref No: SML/LODR/Reg. 34(1)/001/2025-26 

Scrip Code: 541701 
Subject: Submission of Annual Report for the Financial Year 2024-25 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Pursuant to Regulations 34(1)(a) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), we are enclosing herewith the Annual Report of the 
Company. The same is also being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 

addresses are registered with the Company/Registrar & Share Transfer Agent ('/RTA’)/Depository 
Participant(s) (‘DPs’) in compliance of the Regulations 36(1)(a) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Further, in accordance with the Regulation 36(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has 
initiated sending a letter to the Shareholders whose e-mail addresses are not registered with the 

Company/RTA/DPs, providing a web-link from where the Annual Report can be accessed on the 
website of the Company. 

Kindly take the same on your records. 

Thanking you, 

For SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 

IN-1rg s | 
NAVIN AGARWAL 
(Col ny Secretary & Com, o 

Membership No.: A17290 
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 13th Annual General Meeting of the Members of SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS 
LIMITED will be held on Thursday, 25th September, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. at its Registered Office at Premlata, 
39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 700 017 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of the Audited (Standalone and Consolidated) Financial Statements for the Financial Year 
ended 31st March, 2025.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (both Standalone and Consolidated) of the 
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 together with the Director’s Report and the 
Auditor’s Report thereon.

2. To declare Dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 
2025.

To declare a final dividend @ 5 % i.e. ? 0.50/- per equity share of ? 10/- each for the Financial Year ended 
31st March, 2025.

3. Appointment of Mr. Dilipp Agarwal as a Director, liable to retire by rotation.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Dilipp Agarwal (DIN: 00343856) as he retires by rotation in terms 
of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. Ratification of remuneration payable to Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2025-26.

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and all other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration of 
? 55,000/- (Rupees Fifty Five Thousand only) plus taxes as applicable and reimbursement of actual travel 
and out of pocket expenses, to be paid to S Chhaparia & Associates (ICWAI Registration No.101591) 
Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting the audit of cost records of the Company for the Financial 
Year 2025-26, as recommended by Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company, be and is hereby ratified.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee 
thereof) be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to take all such steps 
be deemed necessary and incidental to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.
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5. Appointment of M/s. M&A Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, as Secretarial Auditor of the 
Company.

To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and 179(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 framed 
thereunder and other applicable provisions of the companies Act, 2013, Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any Statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and circulars issued thereunder from time to time, and 
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, M/s. 
M&A Associates, Kolkata a Peer Reviewed Firm of Company Secretaries bearing Firm Unique Code No. 
P2019WB076400 of Ajit Sen Bhawna Building, 4th Floor, Room No. 401, 13 Crooked Lane, Kolkata - 
700069 be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company to hold office for a term of five 
consecutive financial years commencing i.e. from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30 on such remuneration as 
mentioned in the explanatory statement and he shall also act as the Scrutinizer of the Company as and when 
needed as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditors;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized 
to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things as may be considered necessary to give effect to this 
resolution.”

6. Approval of Related Party Transaction.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and all other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made there under, (including any modification and
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and SEBI (LODR) regulations (applicable if any) and as 
approved by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, consent and approval of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to one or more contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ 
transaction(s) / agreement(s) entered into or to be entered into from time to time by the Company with the
related parties, up to the maximum amounts and other terms and conditions as detailed in the explanatory
statement annexed to this Notice;
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby, authorized to 
do or cause to be done all such acts, matters, deeds and things and to settle any queries, difficulties, doubts 
that may arise with regard to any transaction with the related party and execute such agreements, documents 
and writings and to make such filings, as may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to 
this resolution, including delegation of powers, in the best interest of the Company.”

For and on behalf of

Date: 29-08-2025

Place: Kolkata

SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED

NAVIN AGARWAL
ANY SECRETARY) 

RSHIP NO.: ACS 17290
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NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details 
relating to Special Business at the Meeting, is annexed hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 
36(3) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re- appointment at this Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) is also annexed.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO 
APPOINT A PROXY/ PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. 
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective and valid, should be deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be 
supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 
Members provided shareholding of those members in aggregate should not be more than 10% of the total 
Share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a 
Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such 
proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or Shareholder.

3. All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement are open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days (except Saturdays and holidays) 
between 10.30 A.M to 12.30 P.M up to the date of AGM.

4. The Company has fixed Friday, 12th September, 2025 as the Record Date for the purpose of 
determining the Member’s eligibility for final Dividend.

5. Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company declares that its Equity Shares are listed on the Stock 
Exchange at BSE -SME Platform.

6. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the Meeting pursuant to 
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified true copy of 
Board resolution together with their specimen signature authorizing their representative to attend and vote 
on their behalf at the Meeting.

7. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company 
of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to 
leave their Demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the 
concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

8. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities Market. Members holding shares in electronic for 
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therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining 
their Demat Accounts.

9. The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for 2024-25 is being sent by electronic mode to all the 
Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s) unless any Member 
has requested for a physical copy of the same.

10. Non-resident Indian Members are requested to inform the Company or its RTA or to the concerned DPs, as 
the case may be, immediately the change in the residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

11. Members are requested to make all correspondence in connection with shares held by them by addressing 
letters directly to the Company or its RTA quoting their Folio number or their Client ID number with DPID 
number, as the case may be.

12. This Notice along with Annual Report for F.Y 2024-25 is being sent to all Members of the Company 
whose name appears in the Register of Members/list of beneficiaries received from the depositories 
at the end of 29th August, 2025.

13. The entry to the Meeting venue will be regulated by means of attendance slips. For attending the Meeting, 
Members, proxies and authorized representatives of the Members, as the case may be, are requested to bring 
the enclosed attendance slip completed in all respects, including client ID and DP ID, and signed. Duplicate 
attendance slips will not be issued.

14. All Members are requested to support Green Initiative of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of 
India and register their E-mail addresses to receive all these documents electronically from the Company in 
accordance with Rule 18 of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules 2014 and Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. All the aforesaid documents have been uploaded on and are available 
for download from the Company’s website, being .www.supershaktimetaliks.com

15. Rule 3 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 mandates that the register of 
Members of all Companies should include details pertaining to email address, permanent account number 
(PAN) or CIN, unique identification number, if any; father’s/ mother’s/ spouse’s name, occupation, status, 
nationality; in case Member is a minor, name of guardian and the date of birth of the Member, and name 
and address of nominee. All Members are requested to update their details as aforesaid with their respective 
depository.

16. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address, 
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, 
bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, 
etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them.

17. No gifts shall be provided to Members before, during or after the AGM.

18. Members may pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 19 of the Companies 
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 file nomination in prescribed form SH-13 with the respective 
depository participant.
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19. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order 
of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

20. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts are requested to write to the Company at an 
early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the AGM.

21. A route map showing direction to reach the venue of the 13th AGM is given at the end of this Notice as per 
the requirement of Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meeting.

22. Voting system:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, rules 20 and 21 of the Companies 
(Management & Administration) Rules 2014 and sub Regulation (1) & (2) of Regulation 44 of Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the 
Company is not required to provide mandatorily to its Members the electronic facility to exercise their right 
to vote at the AGM. Therefore, in terms the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 at any 
General Meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the Meeting shall, unless a poll is demanded under Section 
109, be decided on a show of hands and/or by poll. A declaration by the Chairman of the Meeting of the 
passing of a resolution or otherwise by show of hands and/or by poll subject to approval by the scrutinizer 
under Sub-Section (1) and an entry to that effect in the books containing the Minutes of the Meeting of the 
Company shall be conclusive evidence of the fact of passing of such resolution or otherwise.

• Every Member entitled to vote on a resolution and present in person shall, on a show of hands, have 
only one vote irrespective of the number of shares held by him.

• A Proxy cannot vote on a show of hands.

• A Member who is a Related Party is not entitled to vote on a resolution relating to approval of any 
contract or arrangement in which such Member is a Related Party.

• The Members of the Company holding shares on the “cut-off date” of 29th August, 2025 are 
entitled to vote on the resolutions proposed. Cut-off date means the date on which the right of 
voting of the Members shall be reckoned and a person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date 
should treat this Notice for information purposes only.

• Company has appointed M&A Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer for the 
purpose of scrutinizing poll process in a fair and transparent manner.

• All the shares of the Company are in Demat form hence Company is not declaring any book closure.

The results of the voting will be placed by the Company on its website www.supershaktimetaliks.com 
within 48 hours from the conclusion of the AGM and also communicated to the Stock Exchanges, 
where the Shares of the Company are listed.
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• The resolutions proposed will be deemed to have been passed on the date of the AGM subject to the 
receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the resolutions.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO, 4

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with the Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (‘Rules’), as amended from time to time, the Company is required to undertake the 
audit of its cost records for products covered under the rules such cost audit shall be conducted by a Cost Accountant 
in practice.

Considering the past performance of the cost auditors during previous years in examining and verifying the cost 
accounting records maintained by the Company in line with the requirements of the relevant provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 26th May, 2025 has considered and 
approved the appointment of S Chhaparia & Associates (IC WAI Registration No. 101591) of the Company for FY 
2025-26 as recommended by Audit Committee of Board of Directors with a remuneration of? 55,000 plus applicable 
taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as amended, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors, has to be ratified by the members of the Company.

S Chhaparia & Associates (IC WAI Registration No. 101591) have the necessary experience in the field of cost audit 
and have submitted a certificate regarding their eligibility for appointment as Cost Auditors of the Company.

None of the Directors I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in the Item No. 4 for approval of the members of the 
Company

ITEM NO. 5

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its Notification dated 12th December, 2024, has made 
several changes in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing 
Regulations”). As per requirements of amended provisions of Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations read 
with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and related Rules, the Board of Directors 
of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and Boards of Directors has appointed M/s. 
M&A Associates, Kolkata a Peer Reviewed Firm of Company Secretaries bearing Firm Unique Code No. 
P2019WB076400 of Ajit Sen Bhawna Building, 4th Floor, Room No. 401, 13 Crooked Lane, Kolkata - 700069, as 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from Financial Year 
2025-26 till Financial Year 2029-30, subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting on such (plus applicable taxes) and reimbursement of out of-pocket expenses as mutually agreed 
between the Board of Directors and the Secretarial Auditor.

M/s. M&A Associates (Firm Registration Number: P2019WB076400) is a leading firm of practicing Company
Secretaries having pan India presence. The firm is known for its expertise in corporate legal advisory services and 
has been consistently recognized for its professional excellence. The firm is led by Mr. Vivek Mishra & Mr. Anil 
Kumar Dubey, Past Chairman of EIRC -ICSI both being the founding Partner, who brings over 20 years of 
experience in Corporate and allied laws. The firm offers a comprehensive suite of services, including but not limited
to Secretarial Audit, Valuation services, Registered IP under IBC Proceedings, providing advisory and consult 
services in the field of corporate laws for IPO's and other SEBI related laws.
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M/s. M&A Associates have given its consent for the appointment as Secretarial Auditor of the company. Their 
appointment would be in accordance with Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circular No. 
SEBVHO.CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2014/185 dated December 31, 2024 and other applicable circulars issued in this 
regard. Though the Regulation 24A of LODR is not applicable to SME Listed Entity but for better Corporate 
Governance the Company is appointing Secretarial Auditor as per the Regulation.

The proposed fee to be paid to M/s. M&A Associates Secretarial Audit services for the financial year ending March 
31, 2026, is ? 55,000 (Rupees Fifty Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and out of-pocket expenses 2026. 
The Board of Directors, on recommendation of Audit Committee shall approve revisions to the remunerations for 
the remaining period of the tenure of the first term, if needed.

The Company may also obtain certifications from it under various statutory regulations and certifications as required 
by banks, statutory authorities, audit-related services and other permissible non-secretarial audit services as required 
from time to time, for which they will be remunerated separately on mutual agreed terms, as approved by Board of 
Directors in consultation with Audit Committee.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are in anyway 
concerned or interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice. The Board recommends the Ordinary 
Resolution as set out at item no. 5 for approval of members of the Company.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in the Item No. 5 for approval of the members of the 
Company.

ITEM NO. 6

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with Rules made there under, 
all Related Party Transactions; beyond the prescribed threshold limit require Shareholders approval.

In terms of the above, approval of the Members is required on the transaction(s), which are expected to exceed the 
prescribed threshold limit and therefore, the Board has proposed the same to be placed before the shareholders for 
their approval as an Ordinary Resolution.

The proposed transactions put up for approval are in ordinary course of business and will be at prevailing market 
prices. Though the transactions mentioned are in ordinary course of business and at prevailing market prices, as a 
matter of abundant caution the Board of Directors thought it prudent to seek shareholder’s approval further. As a 
part of its regular business, the Company regularly transacts at Arm’s Length with Giridhan Metal Private Limited 
at prevailing market price in the Ordinary Course of business. Information required to be provided under Rule 15(3)
of the Companies (Meeting of the Board and its Power), 2014 is as under:
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Contract 

(e)

Whether 
all factors 
relevant to 

the 
Contract 
have been 
considered 

(f)

Any Other 
Information 
relevant or 
important 

for the 
Board to 

take a 
decision on 

the 
proposed 

transaction 
(g)

Giridhan 
Metal Private 

Limited

GMPL 
(Promoter 

Group 
Company)

Purchase and 
sale of Raw 

materials and 
Finished Goods 

including 
trading sale of 
imported coal 
/Availing and 
rendering of

Services if any 
at prevailing 
market rates

Maximum 
amount of 
transaction 

? 700 
Crores per year No Advances 

Paid or 
Received for 

the Contract or 
Arrangements

In the 
ordinary 
course of

Business at 
prevailing 

market rates

Every 
Factors 

relevant to 
the 

Contract 
have been 

Considered

Dilipp 
Agarwal/ 
Deepak 

Agarwal are 
Related 

Party being 
the 

Shareholders 
of the 

Company 
GMPL

Investment in 
Shares

? 500 Crores

As per 
Valuation

Report
Loan/Corporate 

Guarantee
? 1000 Crores

Regular and 
ongoing

The above contracts/arrangements/transactions were recommended by the Audit Committee at its Meeting held on 
11th March, 2025 and approved by the Board of Directors in its Meeting held on 11th March, 2025 to the shareholders 
of the Company for their approval.
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SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Registered Office: ‘PREMLATA, 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 017, West Bengal, Telefax: +91 33-2289 2734/35/36

As the aggregate value of transactions in a Financial Year as mentioned above are likely to exceed the prescribed 
limit of the consolidated turnover of the Company as per the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 the same would be considered as material Related Party Transactions under 
Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (though not applicable to SME Listed Company).

The individual transaction values would be commercially agreed based on mutual discussions/negotiations with 
related parties. In Compliance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI regulations and other acts as may 
be applicable the Audit Committee and Board has reviewed and approved the said ongoing and forthcoming 
transactions.

Your Directors recommend the Resolutions as set out in Item no. 6 of the Notice for the approval of the members 
of the Company.

Except, Mr. Dilipp Agarwal and Mr. Deepak Agarwal and their relatives, none of the Directors and/or Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are deemed to be concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution.

For and on behalf of
Date: 29-08-2025
Place: Kolkata

SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED

AGARWAL 
ANY SECRETARY) 

MEMBERSHIP NO.: FCS 17290
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SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Registered Office: 'PREMLATA', 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 017, West Bengal, Telefax: +91 33-2289 2734/35/36

Details of the Director seeking Re-Appointment at the Forth Coming Annual General Meeting Pursuant to 
Regulation 36(3) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulation 2015

Name of Director Mr. Dilipp Agarwal
DIN 00343856
Date of Birth 18-01-1972
Date of First Appointment 05-03-2013
Qualification B.Com

Experience/ Expertise in specific functional areas

Mr. Dilipp Agarwal, is the Director of the Company 
and is having 2 Decades of experience in the steel 
industry, including 15+ years of experience in steel 
manufacturing. Under his guidance, the group has 
been able to establish itself as a distinguished firm, 
dealing in a vast range of products.

Terms & conditions of appointment / re-appointment
Tenure as a Director is subject to retirement of 
Directors by rotation in terms of Section 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Details of remuneration sought to be paid and 
remuneration last drawn

Nil as a Director

Disclosure of Relationship between Directors’ Inter-Se Brother of Mr. Deepak Agarwal

Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors attended 
during the F.Y. 2024-25

1/4

Other Directorships held as on 31st March, 2025

Super Smelters Limited 
Veerbhadra Sales Private Limited 
Linkview Realty Private Limited 

SS Natural Resources Private Limited 
Sphinx Realty Private Limited 
Azora Highrise Private Limited 

Sasra Alu Green Limited
Directorship/Membership of Committees in other Indian 
Listed Companies as on 31st March, 2025 (C = Chairman; 
M = Member)

Nil

Shareholding in the Company as on 31st March, 2025 1,25,232 Equity Shares

Works : Kanjilal Avenue, Opp. DPLZone "B" Substation, Durgapur-713210, West Bengal, Phone : +91 343 255259813284
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SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Registered Office: 'PREMLATA', 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 017, West Bengal, Telefax: +91 33-2289 2734/35/36

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be handed over at the Registration Counter)

RECORD OF ATTENDENCE 13™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY TO 
BE HELD ON THURSDAY, THE 25™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2025 AT 10:00 A.M. AT ITS 
REGISTERED OFFICE AT PREMLATA, 39, SHAKESPEARE SARANI, 2nd FLOOR, 
KOLKATA-700017:

Folio No.ZDP ID - Client ID No.:

No. of Shares

I, certify that I am a registered Shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company and 
hereby record my presence at the 13th Annual General Meeting of the Company on Thursday, the 25th 
day of September, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. at its Registered Office at Premlata, 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd 
Floor, Kolkata-700017.

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Note:

1. Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance 
slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting hall.

2. Shareholder/Proxyholder desiring to attend the Meeting should bring his copy of the Annual Report 
for reference at the Meeting.

Works: Kanjilal Avenue, Opp. DPL Zone "B" Substation, Durgapur-713210, West Bengal, Phone: +91 343 255259813284
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SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Registered Office: 'PREMLATA', 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 017, West Bengal, Telefax: +91 33-2289 2734/35/36

Form No. MGT-11 
Proxy Form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014/

I/We, being the member (s) of...................Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

CIN L28910WB2012PLC189128
Name of the Company Supershakti Metaliks Limited
Registered Office Premlata, 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor Kolkata - 

700 017
Name of the member (s)
Registered address
E-mail Id
Folio No/ Client Id
DP ID

1. Name: _____________________________

Address: _____________________________

E-mail Id: ______________ ____________

Signature:  or falling him/her

2. Name:

Address:_____________________________

E-mail Id: _____________________________

Signature:  or falling him/her

3. Name: _____________________________

Address:

E-mail Id: ____ _____________

Signature: _____________________________

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 13th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, to be held on Thursday, the 25th day of September, 2025 at 10:00 A.M. at its Registered Office at

Works : Kanjilal Avenue, Opp. DPL Zone "B" Substation, Durgapur-713210, West Bengal, Phone : +91 343 2552598 / 3284
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SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Registered Office: ‘PREMLATA’, 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 017, West Bengal, Telefax: +91 33-2289 2734/35/36

Premlata, 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700017 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below:

SR. NO. RESOLUTIONS
Ordinary Business:-

1.
Adoption of the Audited (Standalone and Consolidated) Financial Statements for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2025.

2.
To declare Dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st 
March, 2025.

3. Appointment of Mr. Dilipp Agarwal as a Director, liable to retire by rotation.
Special Business:-

4. Ratification of remuneration payable to Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2025-26.

5.
Appointment of M/s. M&A Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, as Secretarial Auditor 
of the Company.

6. Approval of Related Party Transactions.

Signed this.............................day of......................... 2025 Affix
? 1.00 

Revenue Stamp

Works: Kanjilal Avenue, Opp. DPL Zone "B” Substation, Durgapur-713210, West Bengal, Phone: +91 343 2552598 / 3284
CIN - L28910WB2012PLC189128, E-mail: supershaktimetaliks@gmail.com, www.supershaktimetaliks.com

mailto:supershaktimetaliks@gmail.com
http://www.supershaktimetaliks.com


SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Registered Office: 'PREMLATA', 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 017, West Bengal, Telefax: +91 33-2289 2734/35/36

ROUTE MAP

9 Consulate General of the 
United States of America

Pantaloons »

Short St

R°t»n

Kala Mandir fl

s
a Institute Of 

Neurosciences Kolkata

The Vedic Village

st

§

$
S

ShakespGar 
eSaraniRd

h Nightingale Hospital

The Conclave ”

AJC Bose Rd FlyoverBrainware

JD Birla Institute »

0

St John's Diocesan Girls 
Higher Secondary School

C Bose Rd Flyover

Autieri st

South Park
Street Cemetery

Sal Group Of Industries

Go««jle°ar* B

Hotel Royal 
"" Garden. Kolkata

a
3 Sflaf<espeare Sarani Rd S

ixve 0

'’o/p

Becfc 8a9<5/

8

Para L

Sarns^Huda

e

E

0 e

J

B

M J Ln B H

a
£E s

S

Ahirip"^01 Rd

0

Route Map to the Venue of the 13th Annual General Meeting of Supershakti Metaliks Limited to be held on 
Thursday, the 25th September, 2025 at 10:00 A.M.
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Premlata, 39 Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 017
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SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Registered Office: 'PREMLATA', 39, Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor, Kolkata - 700 017, West Bengal, Telefax: +91 33 2289 2734/35/36

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
To,
The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 13th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHT

The table below depicts the financial performance of your Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 
2025.

(? in Lakhs)

Particulars
Standalone Consolidated

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25

Net Revenue from Operations (A) 73,703.95 73,141.28 73,703.95

Other Income (B) 762.35 752.45 762.35

Total Revenue (A) + (B) 74,466.30 73,893.73 74,466.30

Earnings before Interest, Tax, De­
preciation and Amortization 

(EBITDA)
2,429.91 2,540.46 2477.18

Finance Costs 219.03 276.72 219.03

Depreciation and Amortization 
Expense 504.37 473.80 504.37

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 1,706.52 1,789.94 1,753.77

Tax expense 463.54 449.42 463.54

Profit After Tax (PAT) 1,242.98 1,340.52 1,290.23

STATE OF COMPANY’S FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

Your Company has achieved total revenue ? 74,466.30 Lakhs as compared to ? 73,893.73 Lakhs in the 
previous year but the EBITDA margins took a hit due to lower realization in Billets and Rolled products dur­
ing the year but March 2025 onwards realizations have significantly improved and your Company expect to 
generate better margin going forward.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSI­
TION OF THE COMPANY, HAVING OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR TILL THE 
DATE OF THIS REPORT

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred during 
the Financial Year and the date of this report.

Works: Kanjilal Avenue, Opp. DPL Zone "B" Substation, Durgapur - 713210, West Bengal, Phone : +91 343 255259813284
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NATURE OF BUSINESS

Your Company is into the manufacturing of diversified products of secondary Steel through Induction Fur­
nace route and currently operating a Steel Melting Section to produce semi-finished product (i.e. Billet) and 
Rolling Mill Section to produce Wire Rods, HB Wires, and Binding Wires etc. There has been no change in 
the nature of business of the Company during the Financial Year.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended a Dividend of? 0.50 per Equity Share having face value of ? 10 
each @ 5 % subject to the approval of the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting ("AGM"), payable 
to those Shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members as on the Book Closure/Record Date. 
In the previous year, the Company had paid ? 0.50 per Equity Share having face value of ? 10 each @ 5%.

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 43 A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Ob­
ligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR"), the Dividend Distribution Policy is not 
applicable to our Company.

CREDIT RATING

There were no changes in the credit ratings of the Company. Credit Rating of the Company is ‘BBB+’ Out­
look: Stable for Long Term Bank Facilities and ‘ A2’ for Short Term Bank Facilities as assigned by CARE 
Ratings Limited.

DEMATERIALISATION OF EQUITY SHARES

All the Equity Shares of the Company are in Dematerialized Form with either of the depositories viz. NSDL 
and CDSL. The ISIN No. allotted is INE00SY01011.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 
2025.

FINANCE

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March, 2025 were ? 8,60,000 (Previous year ?15,65,000). The Company 
continues to focus on judicious management of its Working Capital, Receivables, and Inventories. Other 
Working Capital parameters were kept under strict check through continuous monitoring.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there was no change in Capital Structure of the Company. The Authorized 
Share Capital of the Company is ? 15,00,00,000 divided into 15000000 equity shares of ? 10 each. The Paid- 
Up Equity Share Capital of the Company is ? 11,52,52,780 divided into 1,15,25,278 equity shares of? 10 
each. The Shares of the Company are listed on the SME platform of BSE Limited.

During the year under review, your Company neither has issued any shares with differential voting rights nor 
has granted any stock options or sweat equity. The Company has paid Listing Fees for the Financial Year 
2025-26 to the Stock Exchange where its Equity Shares are listed. ____



INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company had Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar Chakrabarty, Mrs. Bhawna Khanna 
and Mr. Rajan kumar Manchanda as the Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2025.

During the year, Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari ceased to be Independent Director w.e.f 08th October, 2024 due 
to his demise. The Company has appointed Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda as Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f 13th November 2024.

Pursuant to Regulation 149(7) of the Act, all the Independent Directors have given declaration confirming 
that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed both under the Companies Act, 2013 and Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinaf­
ter ‘SEBI LODR Regulation’).

In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI LODR, the Independent Directors have confirmed their ability to 
discharge their duties with an objective of independent judgement and without any external influence. The 
Independent Directors of the Company have undertaken requisite steps towards the inclusion of their names 
in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, in terms 
of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. 
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience and are 
persons of high integrity. They also fulfill the conditions specified in the Act, Rules made thereunder and as 
per SEBI LODR and are independent of the Management.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

I. Director - Retirement by Rotation:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Dilipp Agarwal (DIN:00343856), Director of the 
Company would retire by rotation from the Board and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. The 
above appointment is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of 
the Company.

The Disclosures as required for re-appointed Directors is disclosed in the Notice.

II. Whole-Time Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

During the year under review, Mr. Sudipto Bhattacharyya had resigned from the post of Whole-Time Director 
W.e.f 29th September, 2024. The Company had appointed Mr. Rudranarayan Jana as Whole-Time Director 
of the Company w.e.f 13th November 2024.

Mr. Shyam Sundar Somani, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Navin Agarwal, Company Secretary and Com­
pliance Officer are continuing to be the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year-end 31st 
March, 2025.

The Board confirms that none of the Directors of the Company is disqualified from being appointed as Di­
rector in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 and necessary declaration has been obtained from 
all the Directors in this regard.

Below Table mentions the List of Director’s and Key Managerial Personnel as on the date of this report:-



SI.
No. Name of the Director DIN/ PAN Designation

1. Mr. Dilipp Agarwal 00343856 Chairman & Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Rudranarayan Jana 06584512 Whole-Time Director
3. Mr. Deepak Agarwal 00343812 Non-Executive Director
4. Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar 

Chakrabarty
05328779 Independent Director

5. Mrs. Bhawna Khanna 06886294 Independent Director
6. Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda 10768512 Independent Director

7. Mr. Shyam S. Somani AROPS8739D Chief Financial Officer

8. Mr. Navin Agarwal ADAPA8126G Company Secretary

III. Meetings of the Board:

During the Financial Year 2024-25, total of Four (4) Meetings of the Board of Directors were held on; 24- 
05-2024; 07-09-2024; 13-11-2024 and 11-03-2025. The maximum time-gap between any two consecutive 
Meetings did not exceed 120 days.

The names of Members of the Board, their attendance at the Board Meetings are as under:

Mr. Sudtplo Bhattacharyya resigned w. e.f 29"' September. 2024,
Mr. Rudranarayan Jana was appointed w.e.f 13" November. 2024
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari ceased to exist as Independent director w.e.f 08th October, 2024 due to his demise.
Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda was appointed as Independent Director w.e.f 13"' November. 2024.

SI.
No.

Name of Directors
Number of 

Meetings at­
tended

1. Mr. Dilipp Agarwal (Chairman & Non-Executive Director) 1/4
2. Mr. Sudipto Bhattacharyya (Whole-Time Director ) 1/4

3. Mr. Rudranarayan Jana (Whole-Time Director) 1/4

4. Mr. Deepak Agarwal (Non-Executive Director) 4/4
5. Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari (Independent Director) 0/4
6. Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar Chakrabarty (Independent Director) 4/4
7. Mrs. Bhawna Khanna (Independent Director) 4/4
8. Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda(Independent Director) 1/4

committees OF THE board

There are Four Board Committees as on 31st March, 2025 viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuner­
ation Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee.

Audit Committee:

The Board has constituted the Audit Committee. The Board of Directors has accepted all the recommenda­
tions given by Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2024-25. During the Financial Y r, Four (4)



Audit Committee Meeting took place dated 24-05-2024; 07-09-2024; 13-11-2024 and 11-03-2025. The com­
position and attendance of the Members at the Committee Meetings held during the year under review was 
as below:

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari ceased to exist as Chairman of A udit Committee w. e.f O8‘h October, 2024 due to his demise.
Mrs. Bhawna Khanna was elected as chairman of the Audit Committee w.e.fl 3'h November. 2024
Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda was appointed as member of the Audit Committee w.ef 13"' November. 2024.

SI. No. Name of Members Number of Meet­
ings attended

1. Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari (Chairman) 0/4
2. Mrs. Bhawna Khanna (Chairman) 4/4
3. Mr. Deepak Agarwal (Member) 4/4
4. Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar Chakrabarty (Member) 4/4
5. Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda (Member) 1/4

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Board has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee had two (2) Meeting during the Financial Year dated 24-05-2024 and 13-11-2024. The composi­
tion and attendance of the Members at the Committee Meeting held during the Financial Year under review 
was as below:

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari ceased to exist as Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee w.ef 08"' October, 2024
Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee w.ef 13lh November, 2024.

SI.
No. Name of Members Number of Meetings 

attended
1. Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari (Chairman) 0/2
2. Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda (Chairman) —
3. Mr. Deepak Agarwal (Member) 2/2

4. Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar Chakrabarty (Member) 2/2

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The Board has constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The Corporate Social Responsi­
bility Committee had One (1) Meeting during the Financial Year dated 24-05-2024. The composition and 
attendance of the Members at the Committee Meeting held during the Financial Year under review was as 
below:

SI.
No. Name of Members Number of Meetings 

attended

1. Mr. Sudipto Bhattacharyya (Chairman) 1/1
2. Mr. Rudranarayan Jana (Chairman) — 1
3. Mr. Dilipp Agarwal (Member) 1/1

4. Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar Chakrabarty (Member) 1/1

5. Mr. Deepak Agarwal (Member) —



Mr. Sudipto Bhattacharyya ceased to exist as Chairman of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f29‘h September,2024 
Mr. Rudranarayan Jana was appointed as Chairman of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f 13lh November. 2024. 
Mr. Deepak Agarwal was appointed as Member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f 13'1' November,2024.

Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

The Board has constituted the Stakeholder Relationship Committee. The Stakeholder Relationship Commit­
tee had One (1) Meeting during the Financial Year dated 24-05-2024. The composition and attendance of the 
Members at the Committee Meeting held during the Financial Year under review was as below:

SI. No. Name of Members Number of Meetings attended

1. Mr. Deepak Agarwal (Chairman) 1/1

2. Mrs. Bhawna Khanna (Member) 1/1

3. Mr. Sudipto Bhattacharyya (Member) 1/1

4. Mr. Rudranarayan Jana (Member) -

Mr. Sudipto Bhattacharyya ceased to exist as member of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee w e.f29‘1' September,2024.
Mr. Rudranarayan Jana was appointed as member of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee w.e.f I3’k November, 2024

POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 the 
Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, has formulated a Remuneration Policy.

The remuneration policy of the Company, inter alia, includes the aims and objectives, principles of remuner­
ation, guidelines for remuneration/ sitting fees to Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors, fixed and 
variable components in the remuneration package, criteria for identification of the Board Members and ap­
pointment of senior management.. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is available on the Company’s 
website www.supershaktimetaliks.com.

CRITERIA FOR IDENTIFICATION OF THE BOARD MEMBERS

• The Board Member shall possess appropriate skills, qualification, characteristics and experience. The ob­
jective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience in business, government, academics, 
technology, human resources, social responsibilities, finance, law etc. and in such other areas as may be 
considered relevant or desirable to conduct the Company's business in a holistic manner.

• Independent Director shall be person of integrity and possess expertise and experience and/or someone 
who the Committee/Board believes could contribute to the growth/philosophy/strategy of the Company.

• In evaluating the suitability of individual Board Members, the Committee takes into account many factors, 
including general understanding of the Company's business dynamics, global business, social perspective, 
educational and professional background and personal achievements.

• Director should possess high level of personal and professional ethics, integrity and values. He should be 
able to balance the legitimate interest and concerns of all the Company's stakeholders in arriving at deci­
sions, rather than advancing the interests of a particular section.
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• Director must be willing to devote sufficient time and energy in carrying out their duties and responsibil­
ities effectively. He must have the aptitude to critically evaluate management's working as part of a team 
in an environment of collegiality and trust.

• The Committee evaluates each individual with the objective of having a group that best enables the success 
of the Company's business and achieves its objectives.

BOARD EVALUATION

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and SEBI LODR Regulations, 
2015, (SEBI LODR), the annual evaluation process of the individual Directors, the Board and Committees 
was conducted. The evaluation process inter alia considers attendance of Directors at Board and committee 
meetings, effectiveness of Board process, acquaintance with business, compliance with code of conduct, vi­
sion and strategy, which is in compliance with applicable laws, regulations and guidelines.

The Board evaluated its performance after seeking inputs from all the Directors. The performance of the 
Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the Committee Members on the basis of 
criteria such as the composition of Committees, effectiveness of Committee meetings, etc. The above criteria 
are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the SEBI. The performance evaluation 
of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by Independent Directors. The perfor­
mance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The Directors were sat­
isfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall engagement of the Board and its Committees 
with the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVEN­
TION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has in place a Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at 
the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Committee (IC) has been set up 
to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, tempo­
rary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

During the year under review, your Directors have not received any complaint of sexual harassment from the 
IC. Moreover, there were neither any complaint pending at the beginning of the year nor were there any 
complaints that remained pending as at the end of the year.
The details of the POSH related Compliances are as follows:-

S.No Particulars No. of Complaints
1. The number of sexual harassment complaints received during the year. 0
2. The number of such complaints disposed of during the year. 0
3. The number of cases pending for a period exceeding ninety days. 0

The Company is committed to providing a safe and respectful work environment for all its employees, and 
necessary awareness programs are conducted from time to time.

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

The website of your Company, www.supershaktimetaliks.com, has been designed to present the Company’s 
businesses up-front on the home page. The site carries a comprehensive database of information including 
the Financial Results of your Company, Shareholding pattern, Director’s & Corporate Profile, details of
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Board Committees, Corporate Policies and business activities of your Company. All the mandatory infor­
mation and disclosures as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and related rules and as per the 
SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 has been uploaded.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company places significant emphasis on recruitment, training and development of human resources, 
which assumes utmost significance in achievement of corporate objectives. The Company integrates em­
ployee growth with organizational growth in a seamless manner through empowerment and by offering a 
challenging workplace aimed towards realization of organizational goals. To this effect, your Company has 
a training center for knowledge sharing and imparting need based training to its employees. The Company 
also does a performance appraisal for its employees.

VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Your Company is committed to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. Accord­
ingly, the Board of Directors has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy which is in compliance with the provi­
sions of Section 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Employees can raise concerns regarding any discrim­
ination, harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any instances of 
fraud by or against your Company.

It also provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of Employees who avail of the mechanism 
and allows direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

The details of the Policy are posted on the website of the Company www.supershaktimetaliks.com.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has a risk management policy which covers risk associated with financial assets and liabilities 
and identifies therein elements of risk, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the 
Company.

The details of the Policy are posted on the website of the Company www.supershaktimetaliks.com.

POLICY ON PRESERVATION OF THE DOCUMENTS

The Company has formulated a Policy pursuant to Regulation 9 of the Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on Preservation of the Documents to 
ensure safekeeping of the records and safeguard the Documents from getting manhandled, while at the same 
time avoiding superfluous inventory of Documents.

The details of the Policy are posted on the website of the Company www.supershaktimetaliks.com.

POLICY ON CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING MATERIALITY OF EVENTS

The Policy is framed in accordance with the requirements of the Regulation 30 of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The details of the Policy are posted on the website of the Company www.supershaktimetaliks.com.
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the Financial Year under review, all the Related Party Transactions were in the Ordinary Course of 
the business and at Arm’s Length Basis and hence provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 is 
not applicable. Related Party Transactions were placed before the Audit Committee for their approval. Re­
lated Party Transactions under Indian Accounting Standard-24 (IND-AS-24) are disclosed in the notes to the 
Financial Statement in Note No. 43. Related Party Transactions are disclosed in Annexure-1 in Form AOC- 
2 pursuant to clause (h) of Sub Section (3) of Section 134 read with Rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) rules, 
2014 for which necessary Members approval are in place.

The details of the Policy are posted on the website of the Company www.supershalctimetaliks.com

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company’s CSR policy provides guidelines to conduct CSR activities of the Company. Your Company 
has focused on several corporate social responsibility programs since a long period of time and continues its 
endeavor to improve the lives of people and provide opportunities for their development through its different 
initiatives in the areas of Rural Transformation, Healthcare, Education, Sports etc. The Company continues 
to address societal challenges through societal development programmes and remains focused on improving 
the quality of life.

As part of the Corporate Social Responsibility initiative the Company has spent an amount of? 54.34 Lakhs 
(Excluding Set off previous Year) towards the various CSR activities during the Financial Year 2024-25. 
Details of CSR Activity Report are provided in Annexure-2.

The details of the Policy are posted on the website of the Company www.supershaktimetaliks.com

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS REPORT

Statutory Auditor:

The Shareholders of the Company at their 9th Annual General Meeting (AGM), held on 29th September 2021 
have appointed Singhi & Co. Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (FRN: ICAI - 302049E) as the Statutory Au­
ditor of the Company, for a period of five years i.e. from the conclusion of 09th AGM till the conclusion of 
14th AGM. The Companies Amendment Act, 2017 has done away with the ratification of Auditor’s appoint­
ment and the auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Com­
pany.

The Notes on Financial Statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do not call for 
any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse re­
mark.

Internal Auditor:

The Board, at its Meeting held on 05th August, 2022, has appointed Mr. Krishna Kumar Gupta (Assistant- 
Manager Audit) for conducting Internal Audit of the Company for Financial Year 2022-23 and onwards. The 
Company’s Internal Audit system has been continuously monitored and updated to ensure that assets are 
safeguarded, established regulations are complied with and pending issues are addressed promptly.
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Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such 
internal financial controls are operating effectively. Your Company has adopted policies and procedures for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, 
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The adequacy and effectiveness of the internal financial controls are demonstrated by following the proce­
dures as set out below: -

i. The internal controls have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to record­
ing and producing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable stat­
utes, safeguarding assets from unauthorised use, executing transactions with proper authorisation 
and ensuring compliance with corporate policies. The Company has a well-defined delegation of 
power with authority limits for approving revenue as-well-as expenditure. Processes for formu­
lating and reviewing annual and long-term business plans have been laid down.

ii. The Audit Committee periodically deliberates on the operations of the Company with the Mem­
bers of the Management. It also sought the views of the Statutory Auditors, on the internal finan­
cial control systems.

iii. The Audit Committee in consultation with the Internal Auditors formulates the audit plan, scope, 
functioning and methodology, which are reviewed every year, in a manner that they cover all 
areas of operation. The Internal Audit covers inter alia, monitoring and evaluating the efficacy 
and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, 
accounting procedures and policies at all locations and adequacy of insurance coverage of all 
assets. Periodical Internal Audit Reports are submitted to the Audit Committee, to ensure com­
plete independence, which are then extensively deliberated at every Audit Committee Meeting 
in the presence of the Internal and External Auditors. Based on the review by the Audit Commit­
tee, process owners undertake corrective actions in their respective areas and consider sugges­
tions for improvement. The Internal Auditors have expressed that the internal control system in 
the Company is robust and effective.

iv. The Board has also put in place requisite legal compliance framework to ensure compliance of 
all the applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

v. The Company’s financial records are maintained on the ERP System which is effective and ade­
quate in line with the size of its operations.

Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires every Listed Company to 
annex to its Board’s report, a Secretarial Audit Report, given in the prescribed form, by a Company Secretary 
in practice. The Board had appointed M&A Associates, Kolkata a firm of Company Secretaries bearing 
Firm unique Code P2019WB076400, as the Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company 
for the Financial Year 2024-25 and their Report is annexed to this report Annexure-3. There are no qualifi­
cations, observations, adverse remark or disclaimer in the said Report.

Cost Auditor:

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the Company is required to carry out audit of the cost 
accounting records of the Company for every Financial Y ear. The Cost Audit report of your Company for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 was filled on 09th September 2024. The Auditors Report does not 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. Cost records as required to be maintained by the 



Company pursuant to an order of the Central Government are maintained.

The Board of Directors of the Company has on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the 
appointment of S Chhaparia & Associates, Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 101591) Kolkata, for 
the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2026 the remuneration proposed to be paid to them for the Financial 
Year 2025-26 requires ratification of the Shareholders of the Company. In view of this, the Board recom­
mends the ratification for payment of remuneration to the Cost Auditor at the ensuing Annual General Meet­
ing.
REPORTING OF FRAUD

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Secretarial Auditors have not re­
ported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its officers or employees to the Audit Committee 
under Section 143(12) of the Act, details of which need to be mentioned in this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation for the contribution made by the Employees of the 
Company at all levels. The information on Employees particulars as required under Section 197(12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is forming part of this Board’s Report as Annexure-4. 
There are no Employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5(2) ofthe Com­
panies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per Regulation 27 of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require­
ments) Regulations, 2015 relating to Corporate Governance is not applicable to the Company listed on the 
SME platform (BSE). Hence the Company is not required to disclose information as covered under Para (C), 
(D) and (E) of Schedule V of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Re­
quirements) Regulations, 2015. As per Para (F) of Schedule V of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company do not have and is not required 
to have the Demat Suspense Account neither Unclaimed Suspense Account.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 
73 and 76 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS & OUTGO

A. Energy Conservation

(a) Use of LED Lights indoor and outdoor, LED lights reduces the Energy Consumption at Outdoor and 
Indoor Lightning.

(b) Use of Direct Hot Rolling from CCM, by use of Direct Hot Rolling we have saved furnace oil for 
reheating Billets.

(c) Use of CBM (Coal based Methane Gas) in reheating furnace in place of oil furnace, natural gas 
reduces the energy cost of fuel.



B. Technology Absorption

Our Company is in the Manufacturing of MS Billet, HB Wire, TMT Bar and MS Wire Rod. It had not taken 
any Research and Development during the year under review. As such no expenditure has been incurred on 
Research and Development.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
(? in Lakhs)

DETAILS FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows 290.32 -

Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows 360.18 2,842.92

Note: Actual payment during Financial Year 2024 is considered in Financial Year 2024-25 as against Invoice value of 
Purchase during Financial Year 2024.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company is fully compliant with the applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) viz. SS-1 & SS-2 on Meetings 
of the Board of Directors and General Meetings respectively.
DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting 
the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Details of Loans, Guarantees, Securities and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Act are given in the notes to Financial Statements.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The relationship with the staff and workers continued to be cordial during the entire year. The Directors wish 
to place on record their appreciation of the valuable work done and co-operation extended by them at all 
levels. Further, the Company is taking necessary steps to recruit the required personnel from time to time.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Your Company did not have any funds lying Unpaid or Unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore, 
there are no funds which are required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

CONSOLIDATION OF ASSOCIATES /JOINT VENTURES/SUBSIDIARIES

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has further made investment in "Giridhan Metal Private 
Limited" by virtue of this Investment the respective Company has become the "Associate Company" of the 
Company. Hence, Company will consolidate the financials along-with its Associate Company.



INSIDER TRADING REGULATIONS

Based on the requirements under Securities Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regu­
lations, 1992 read with Securities Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 
as amended from time to time, the code of conduct for prevention of Insider Trading and the Code for Fair 
Disclosure (“Code”), as approved by the Board from time to time, are in force by the Company. The objective 
of this Code is to protect the interest of Shareholders at large, to prevent misuse of any Price Sensitive Infor­
mation and to prevent any Insider Trading activity by dealing in Shares of the Company by its Directors, 
Designated Employees and other Employees. The Company also adopts the concept of Trading Window 
Closure, to prevent its Directors, Officers, Designated Employees and other Employees from trading in the 
Securities of Supershakti Metaliks Limited at the time when there is Unpublished Price Sensitive Information.

The details of the Policy are posted on the website of the Company www.supershaktimetaliks.com

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANALYSIS

Pursuant to Regulation 34 (2) (e) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require­
ment) Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion & Analysis Report with detailed review of the operations, 
state of affairs, performance and outlook of the Company is annexed to the report and forms an integral part 
of this report.
A detailed Report on the Management Discussion & Analysis is provided as a separate Annexure-5 in the 
Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required by Sections 134(3) (c) & 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 your Directors state that:

(a) In preparation of the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2025 the applicable 
Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation to material departures.

(b) The Directors have selected Accounting Policies, in consultation with the Statutory Auditors and ap­
plied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at end of the Financial Year and of the 
profit or loss of the Company, for that period.

(c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities.

(d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts of the Company on a going concern basis.

(e) The Directors, had laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company and that 
such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) There is a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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POLICIES

The Companies Act, 2013 along with the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Dis­
closure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has mandate to formulations of certain policies for all listed Com­
panies. Accordingly, the Company has formulated the Policies for the same as the Company believed to retain 
and encourage high level of ethical standard in business transactions. All our Policies are available on our 
website www.supershaktimetaliks.com

COPY OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, copies of the Annual 
Returns of the Company prepared in accordance with Section 92(1) of the Act read with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 are placed on the website of the Company and is 
accessible at the web-link: http://supershaktimetaliks.com/annual-reports/.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES. JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the Financial Year 2024-25 "Giridhan Metal Private Limited" is an "Associate" of the Company. 
There are no Joint Venture and Subsidiary Company. A separate statement containing performance and high­
lights of Financial Statements of Associate Company is provided in the prescribed Form AOC-1 as Annexure 
- 6 and forming part of this report.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME 
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM 
THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

There are no instances of one-time settlement during the Financial Year 2024-25.

STATUS ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

There are no applications made or any proceeding pending against the Company under Insolvency and Bank­
ruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the Financial Year 2024-25.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Annual Report, including those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis de­
scribing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may constitute ‘forward looking 
statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Although the expectations are based on 
reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ.
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Annexure-1

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014). Disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the 
Company with related parties referred to in Sub-Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 in­
cluding certain Arm’s Length Transactions under third proviso thereto.

I. There are no contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties referred to in 
Sub-Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are not at Arm’s Length basis.

II. Material contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with Related Parties referred to in Sub­
Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are at Arm’s Length basis are as follows :

Nature of Trans­
action Name of Related Party Nature of Re­

lationship
Duration of 

Contract (? in Lakhs)

Purchase
Super Smelters Limited

Group Company Regular
5,703.31

Giridhan Metal Private Limited 29976.99

Sales

Super Smelters Limited

Group Company Regular

250.07

Giridhan Metal Private 
Limited 2574.51

Sai Electrocasting Private Lim­
ited 722.89

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26-05-2025

For and on behalf of

DIN: 00343812 DIN: 06584512



Annexure-2

CSR Annual Report

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: At Supershakti Metaliks Limited, CSR is no mere acronym, 
is an integral part of the culture imbibed by one and all involved in the working of the Company. Our 
vision is to actively contribute to the social and economic development of the communities in which we 
operate. In doing so tobuild a better, sustainable way of life for the weaker sections of society and raise the 
country’s human development index.

2. Composition of C SR Committee:

Sr.
No.

Name of Director Designation in Com­
mittee

Number of
Meeting of 
CSR Commit­
tee held during 
the year

Number of 
Meeting of 
CSR Commit­
tee attended 
during the year

1. Mr. Sudipto Bhattacharyya Chairman

24-05-2024

(One Meeting)

1

2, Mr. Dilipp Agarwal Member 1

3. Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar 
Chakrabarty

Member 1

4. Mr. Rudranarayan Jana Chairman —

5. Mr. Deepak Agarwal Member

3. Provide the web-link where 
Composition of CSR committee, 
CSRPolicy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are dis­
closed on the website of the 
Company.

www.super-
shak- 
timetaliks.c
om

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursu­
ance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount re­

(In ?)

4. Provide the details of Im- Not Applica-
pact assessment of CSR 
projects carried out in pur­
suance of sub- rule (3) of 
rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsi­
bility Policy) Rules, 2014, if 
applicable

ble

quired for set off for the Financial Year, if any:

Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for Set- 
Off from preceding Finan­

cial Year

Amount required to 
be Set-Off for the Fi­

nancial Year 
(? in Lakhs)

1 2023-24 6,90,568 6,90,568

(In ?)
6. Average Net Profit ofthe Company as per section 135(5) 28,64,95,633
7. (a) Two percent ofaverage net profit ofthe Company as per section 135(5) 57,29,913

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previ­
ous Financial Years.

—

(c) Amount required to be set off for the Financial Year, if any 6,90,568
(d) Total CSR obligation for the Financial Year (7a+7b-7c). 50,39,345



(In ?)
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total
Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial
Year(in ?)

Amount Unspent
Total Amount transferred to Un­

spent
CSR Account as per section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 

135(5)
Amount Date of trans­

fer
Name of 

the 
Fund

Amount Date of trans­
fer

50,39,345 NA NA NA NA NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against Ongoing Projects for the Financial Year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1
0

11

SI.
No.

Name of 
thePro- 
ject

Item from 
the list of 
activities in 
Schedule 
VII to the 
Act.

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No)

Location of 
the 

Project

Pro­
ject 
dura- 
tion

Amount al­
located for 
the project

Amount 
spent in the 
current 
Financial 
Year

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR Ac­
count for 
the project 
asper Sec­
tion 
135(6)

Mode of 
Imple­
menta­
tion 
- Direct 
(Yes/No)

Mode of 
Implemen­
tation 
- Through 
Imple­
menting 
Agency

State Dis­
trict

Total NIL



c. Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the Financial Year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

SI.
No.

Name of the Project

Item from the 
list of activities 
in Schedule VII 

to the Act

Lo­
cal 

area

Location of the 
project

Amount 
spentfor 
the pro­

ject 
(3n 

Lakhs)

Mode of 
imple­

mentation 
- Direct 
(Yes No)

Mode of imple­
mentation 

-Through im­
plementing 

agency:

No) State District

Supershakti 
Foundation 

CSR Registra- 
tion No.- 

CSR00008657

1 Plantation Drive
iv)protection of 

flora Yes
West 
Ben­
gal

South 24 
Parganas 4.70 Yes

2
Maintenance 

Charges
iv)protection of 

flora Yes
West 
Ben­
gal

Paschim 
Bardhaman 2.48 No

3
Damodarpur Educa­
tion Centre Teach­
ers Remuneration

ii)Promoting ed­
ucation, includ­
ing special edu­
cation especially 
among children

Yes
West 
Ben­
gal

Paschim 
Bardhaman 1.68 No

4
Donation of Traffic 
Barricades for Road 

Safety

i) promoting 
health care in­

cluding preven­
tive health care

No kfc Ranchi 6.22 No

5
Donation of Traffic 
Barricades for Road 

Safety

i)promoting 
health care in­

cluding preven­
tive health care

No Bihar Bhojpur 3.66 No

6
Donation of Traffic 
Barricades for Road 

Safety

i) promoting 
health care in­

cluding preven­
tive health care

No Bihar Bhagalpur 2.93 No

7
Donation of Traffic 
Barricades for Road 

Safety

i) promoting 
health care in­

cluding preven­
tive health care

No Bihar
East Cham- 
paran and 
Begusarai

3.66 No



8
Donation of Traffic 
Barricades for Road 

Safety

i) promoting 
health care in­

cluding preven­
tive health care

No .JJar- 
khand

Palamu and 
Daltonganj 2.19 No

9

Donation of Traffic 
Barricades for Road 

Safety

i) promoting 
health care in­

cluding preven­
tive health care

No Bihar Saran & 
Vaishali 3.66 No

10 Plantation Drive
iv)protection of 

flora Yes
West 
Ben­
gal

South 24 
Parganas 4.70 Yes

11
Donation of Traffic 
Barricades for Road 

Safety

i) promoting 
health care in­

cluding preven­
tive health care

Yes K 
gal

Kolkata 6.25 No

12
Donation of Traffic 
Barricades for Road 

Safety

i) Promoting 
Health care in­
cluding preven­

tive health

Yes
West 
Ben­
gal

Kolkata 3.13 No

13
Donation of Traffic 
Barricades for Road 

Safety

i) Promoting 
Health care in­
cluding preven­

tive health

Yes
West 
Ben­
gal

Kolkata 3.13 No

14
Preventive
Healthcare

i) Promoting 
Health care in­
cluding preven­

tive health

Yes
West Ben­
gal

Paschim 
Bardhaman 5.76 No



15
Purvanchal Kalyan 

Ashram

i) Promoting 
Health care in­
cluding preven­

tive health

Yes
West 
Ben­
gal

Kolkata 0.20 No

TOTAL 54.35

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Not Applicable

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): ? 54.35 Lakhs
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not applicable

SI.
No.

Particular Amount 
(In?)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 57,29,913
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 54,34,800
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 3,95,455
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the pre­

vious Financial Years, if any
—

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years |(iii)-(iv)] 3,95,455

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three Financial Years: NOT APPLICABLE

SI.
No.

Preced- 
ingFi- 
nancial 
Year

Amount trans­
ferred toUnspent 
CSR Account un­
der section 135 
(6)

Amount spent 
inthe report­
ing Financial 
Year

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 

persection 135(6), if any.

Amount re­
maining to be 
spent in succeed- 
ingFinancial 
Years

1

Name 
ofthe 
Fund

Amount Date 
oftrans- 
fer

2.
--------------- -—

TOTAL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the Financial Year for ongoing projects of the preceding Fi­
nancial Year(s):

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
SI. Project Name Financial Project Total Amount spent Cumulative

amount
No. ID ofthe Year in duration allocated on the project amount

Project which the for the pro- in the report- spentat
J ject ing the end

project was Financial of report-
commenced Year ing Finan­

cial Year.

Status of

the pro­
ject - 
Com­
pleted / 
Ongoing



TOTAL

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the Financial Year, (asset-wise details). Not Applicable

(a) Date of creation or acquisitionof the capital assel(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such 

capital asset is registered, their address etc.______________________
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including completeaddress 

and location of the capital asset). ___________



11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 
135(5): Not Applicable



FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
[Pursuant to the Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and pursuant to the Regulation 24A of the SEBI (List­

ing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]
To,
The Members,
Supershakti Metaliks Limited
Premlata, 39 Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor 
Kolkata - 700017, West Bengal

1. We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices, under the Companies Act, 2013, by SUPERSHAKTI 

METALIKS LIMITED bearing CIN: L28910WB2012PLC189128 (hereinafter to be referred 

as “the Company”) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. The Secretarial Audit was con­

ducted on test check basis, in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

2. Based on our verification of the Company’s statutory registers, books, papers, minute books, 

forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct 

of Secretarial Audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made 

by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit 

period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, has complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compli­

ance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made herein­

after:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed, and other records 

made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 

2025, according to the applicable provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;



iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commer­

cial Borrowings, wherever applicable;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’);

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regula­

tions, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Require­

ments) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time; (Not Applicable as 

the Company has not issued any shares during the Financial Year under re­

view);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 

Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not Applicable as the 

Company has not issued any equity shares to its existing employees during the 

Financial Year under review);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile The Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (repealed w.e.f. August 9, 

2021); (Not Applicable as the Company has not issued and listed debt securities 

during the Financial Year under review);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(Not Applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to Issue and Share 

Transfer Agent during the Financial Year under review);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Financial Year 

under review);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 



2018; (Not Applicable as the Company has not bought back/ has proposed to 

buy back any of its securities during the Financial Year under review);

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Re­

quirements) Regulations, 2015.

vi. Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws which are generally applicable to all man­

ufacturing/ trading companies, the following laws/acts are also inter alia applicable to the Com­

pany:

1. The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 read with Air (Prevention & 

Control of Pollution) Rules, 1982

2. The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 read with Water (Preven­

tion & Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975;

3. Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 read with the Environment (Protection) Rules, 

1986;

4. Factories Act, 1948 & the Central Rules, or Concerned State Rules, made thereunder 

and allied State Laws

5. The Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 & its Central Rules/ State Rules.

6. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 & its Central Rules/ State Rules/ Notification of 

Minimum Wages applicable to various class of industries/ trade.

7. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 & its Central Rules/ State Rules if any.

8. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 & its Central Rules/ State Rules if any.

9. The Payment of Gratuity Act & its Central Rules/ State Rules if any.

10. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 & its Rules.

11. Information Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder

12. The Indian Copyright Act, 1957

13. The Patents Act, 1970

14. The Trade Marks Act, 1999

4. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India under Sec­

tion 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Board Meeting (SS-1) and 

General Meeting (SS-2) and to the best of our knowledge, belief and understanding, we 



are of the view that the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 118(10) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 during the aforementioned audit period.

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) read with the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, to 

the extent applicable during the audit period and to the best of our knowledge, belief and 

understanding, we are of the view that the Company has complied with the secretarial 

functions and board processes to comply with the applicable provisions thereof, during 

the aforementioned audit period.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the 

Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

5. We further report that

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors including Independent 

Woman Director. Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place dur­

ing the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Following were the changes in the position of the Key Managerial Personnel/Directors 
during the year:

a) Mr. Sudipto Bhattacharyya (DIN: 06584524) was reappointed as the Whole-Time Director 

of the Company in the Board Meeting held on May 24, 2024 for a period of two years.

b) Mr. Sudipto Bhattacharyya (DIN: 06584524) ceased to be the Whole-Time Director of the 

Company with effect from the close of business hours of September 28, 2024.

c) Mr. Deepak Agarwal (DIN: 00343812), who was liable to retire by rotation, was reap­

pointed as the Director of the Company in the Annual General Meeting of the Company 

held on September 30, 2024.

d) Mr. Rudranarayan Jana (DIN: 06584512) was appointed as an Additional Director under 

the category of Whole Time Director of the Company in the Board Meeting held on No­

vember 13, 2024.



e) Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda (DIN: 10768512) was appointed as an Additional Director 

of the Company to be designated as Independent Director in the Board Meeting held on 

November 13, 2024.

f) Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari (DIN: 00052716) ceased to be an Independent Director of the 

Company on account of his death on October 08, 2024 which was taken on record in the 

Board Meeting held on November 13, 2024.

g) Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda (DIN: 10768512) was appointed as an Independent Director 

of the Company in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on December 

23, 2024.

h) Mr. Rudranarayan Jana (DIN: 06584512) was appointed as an Executive Director desig­

nated as Whole-Time Director of the Company in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of 

the Company held on December 23, 2024.

2. Following were the changes in the Appointment & Re-appointment of Auditors during 
the year:

i. M/s. M&A Associates, A Firm of Company Secretaries, Kolkata, were appointed as the Sec­

retarial Auditors of the Company, for conducting Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2024-25 in the Board Meeting of the Company held on May 24, 2024.

ii. M/s. S Chhaparia & Associates, Cost Accountants, Kolkata were reappointed as the Cost 

Auditors of the Company to carry out the Cost Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 

2024-25 in the Board Meeting of the Company held on May 24, 2024.

3. Following were the changes in undertaken by the Company in respect of the composi­

tion of Committees of the Board:

I. The Company at its Board Meeting held on November 13, 2024 had reconstituted the 
Audit Committee comprising of the following members of the Board:

• Mrs. Bhawna Khanna (Non-Executive ID) as the Chairman
• Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda (Non-Executive ID) as a Member
• Mr. Deepak Agarwal (NED) as a Member
• Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar Chakrabarty (Non-Executive ID) as a Member



II. The Company at its Board Meeting held on November 13, 2024 had reconstituted the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprising of the following members of the 
Board:

• Mr. Rajan Kumar Manchanda (Non-Executive ID) as the Chairman
• Mr. Deepak Agarwal (NED) as a Member
• Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar Chakrabarty (Non-Executive ID) as a Member

III. The Company at its Board Meeting held on November 13, 2024 had reconstituted the 
Stakeholders Relationship, Grievance and Share Transfer Committee comprising of the 
following members of the Board:

• Mr. Deepak Agarwal (NED) as the Chairman
• Mr. Rudranarayan Jana (ED) as a Member
• Mrs. Bhawna Khanna (Non-Executive ID) as a Member

IV. The Company at its Board Meeting held on November 13, 2024 had reconstituted the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprising of the following members of 
the Board:

• Mr. Rudranarayan Jana (ED) as the Chairman
• Mr. Dilipp Agarwal (NED) as a Member
• Mr. Deepak Agarwal (NED) as a Member
• Mr. Tuhinanshu Shekhar Chakrabarty (Non-Executive ID) as a Member

4. Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings and Committee 

Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, 

except where consent of directors was received through resolutions by circulations at various 

point of time. Further, a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 

meeting.

5. None of the directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no 

instance of recording any dissenting'member’s view in the minutes.

6. We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Com­

pany and on the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and 

taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the opinion that the 

management has adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 



size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable 

laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

7. We further report that during the audit period, the Company has not undertaken any specific 

event/action that can have a major bearing on the Company’s compliance responsibility in 

pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc., except 

as follows:

i. During the period under review, there was a delay in filing declaration by Promoter in 

respect of encumbrance, direct or indirect, during the financial year as per Regulation 

31(4) of SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 

and accordingly an e-mail seeking clarification was sought by BSE Limited dated 9th 

May, 2024 which was replied by the Company and the declaration under Regulation 

31(4) was also duly filed and complied by the Company on 9th May, 2024.

II. The Company at its Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2024, declared 

dividend of INR 0.50/- per fully paid-up equity share of INR 10/- each for the financial 

year ended March 31, 2024, as the final dividend which was duly credited in the re­

spective shareholders’ accounts by October 17, 2024.

III. The company had participated in the Right Issue offer of Giridhan Metal Private Lim­

ited (GMPL) thereby increasing its investment in GMPL and making GMPL its Asso­

ciate Company.

For M&A Associates

(A Firm of Company Secretaries)

Vivek Mishra 
Partner 

FCS 8540
CP No.: 17218

UDIN: F008540G000413538
Peer review: 2000/2022

Place: Kolkata
Date: 22.05.2025

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 

Forms an integral part of this report.



‘Annexure A’
(To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. Supershakti Metaliks Limited 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2025)

To,
The Members,
Supershakti Metaliks Limited
Premlata, 39 Shakespeare Sarani, 2nd Floor
Kolkata - 700017, West Bengal

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March 2025 of even date is to be 

read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility

1. It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to maintain secretarial record, devise 

proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations 

and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures 

followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India.

4. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable as­

surance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done 

on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 

processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

6. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification 

of procedures on test basis.



Disclaimer

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of .the 

Company.

8. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of ac­

counts of the Company.

9. We further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers, author­

ised representatives during the conduct of the audit and also on the review of quarterly compli­

ance report by the respective departmental heads/Company Secretary/ Director taken on record 

by the Board of the Company, in our opinion adequate systems and process and control mecha­

nism exist in the Company to monitor compliance with applicable general laws like labour laws 

& Environment laws.

10. We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like Direct 

& Indirect tax laws have not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to review 

by the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

For M&A Associates

(A Firm of Company Secretaries)

Vivek Mishra 
Partner

FCS 8540
CP No.: 17218

Place: Kolkata UDIN: F008540G000413538
Date: 22.05.2025 Peer review: 2000/2022



Annexure-4

The information relating to remuneration of Directors and details of the ratio of the remuneration of 
each Director to the Median Employees Remuneration and other details as required pursuant to Sec­
tion 197(12) of the Act read along with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as under:

Disclosure Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there­
under:

I. The ratio of the remuneration of Whole-Time Director to the Median Remuneration of the Em­
ployees of the Company for the Financial Year: 4.12

II. The percentage increase in Remuneration of each Director including Whole Time Director 8.86, 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) N.A., Company Secretary: 1.76

III. The percentage increase in the Median Remuneration of Employees in the Financial Year; is 4.64 
% (The figure is calculated by comparing Median Remuneration of Financial Year 2024-25 with 
Median Remuneration of 2023-24). Ratio to the Median Remuneration is calculated on Employ­
ees getting remuneration of? 1.5 Lakh and above during both the FY.

IV. The number of permanent Employees on the rolls of Company.

The total number of Employees including Whole-Time Director as on 31st March, 2025 is 445

V. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of Employees other than the Managerial 
Personnel in the last Financial Year is in line with management policy.

VI. The Company has a remuneration policy as per provisions of Companies Act, 2013 during the 
Financial Year 2024-25 and the remuneration is in accordance with such policy.



Employee 
name Age Qualifi­

cation
Designa­

tion DOJ
Remu­

neration 
(?)*

Ex- 
pe- 
rie 
nee

Last Em­
ployment*

Rela­
tion 
with 
MGT

Share 
hold­
ing

Mr. Shyam S. 
Somani 43 B.Com 

(H) FCA CFO 01.04.2018 51,77,424 19
Super 

Smelters 
Limited

N.A. Nil

Mr. Navin 
Agarwal 51

B.Com 
(H) ACA, 

ACS

CS& 
Compli­
ance Of­

ficer

01.04.2018 15,21,358 25
Super 

Smelters 
Limited

N.A. Nil

Mr. Dheeraj 
Kumar Pant 58 Factory 

Manager MSC 08.08.2016 14,11,725 38
Super 

Smelters 
Limited

N.A. Nil

Mr.
Santosh Kumar 

Jha
43 B.Com Dy. Man­

ager 02.04.2018 10,18,468 20
Super 

Smelters 
Limited

N.A. Nil

Mrs. Shree- 
moyee Ghoshal 38

B.Com 
Executive 

MBA

Manager- 
Human 

Resources
02.04.2018 9,64,553 19

Super 
Smelters 
Limited

N.A. Nil

Mr. Rudrana- 
rayan Jana 48 B.Com & 

MBA

Whole- 
Time Di­

rector
1.12.2002 9,59,042 | 23

Super 
Smelters 
Limited

N.A Nil

Mr. Ramesh 
Keshri 58 B.Com Assistant 

Manager 02-04-2018 9,12,464 7.3
Super 

Smelters 
Limited

N.A Nil

Mr. Ashni 
Kumar 57

Madh- 
yamik, 

ITI

Sr. Fore­
man 08.08.2016 9,02,418 36

Super 
Smelters 
Limited

N.A. Nil

Mr. Ravindra 
Kumar Sinha 49 ISC

Assistant 
Manager 

(SMS 
Mainte­
nance)

01.01.2018 8,75,530 30
Dana Steel 

Private- 
Limited

N.A Nil

Mr. Chandan 
Pal 42 B.E Me­

chanical
Sr. Man­

ager 08.08.2016 8,64 ,668 27
Super 

Smelters 
Limited

N.A. NIL

B.Com
B.Com
B.Com
B.Com
B.Com
B.Com


Annexure-5

Management Discussion anti Analysis

I. Overview
The objective of this report is to convey the Management’s perspective on the external environment and steel 
industry, as well as strategy, operating and financial performance, material developments in human resources 
and industrial relations, risks and opportunities and internal control systems and their adequacy in the Com­
pany during the FY2024-25. This Report should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial state­
ments, the schedules and notes thereto and other information included elsewhere in the Annual Accounts 
2024-25. The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (‘Ind AS’) complying with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended and regula­
tions issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) from time to time.

II. Industry Structure and developments
1. Global Economy
In 2024, the global economy grew at a rate of 2.8%, with regional disparities. Despite positive trends like 
reducing inflation and monetary easing in several countries, geopolitical risks around trade policy uncertainty, 
and ongoing conflicts continued to weigh on global economic sentiment. The economy globally is projected 
to continue to grow in 2025. While there is a reducing intensity in tariffs globally, developments in this area 
including trade agreement between major blocks like United States of America, United Kingdom, European 
Union, China among others, and a ceasefire deal between Russia and Ukraine will be key factors impacting 
the economic activity.

Economic Outlook
The global economy is expected to grow by 2.3% in 2025. The tension around trade and high levels of policy 
uncertainty are expected to have a significant impact on the economic activity. Global inflation is expected 
to moderate to 4.3% in 2025 and 3.6% in 2026, approaching central bank targets. While advanced economies 
are likely to contain inflation more effectively than emerging markets, rise in protectionism and geopolitical 
tensions around trade will significantly impact prices of domestic products especially in United States. Infla­
tion in the services section in major economies like the United States and the Europe is expected to remain 
above pre-pandemic levels. The monetary policy remains divergent, with some central banks maintaining 
caution in their easing cycles. Fiscal policy in advanced economies is expected to tighten in 2025, with de­
veloping economies implementing comparatively moderate adjustments. In United States, growth is expected 
to be 1.5% in 2025, supported by consumer demand, rising incomes, productivity gains, and accommodative 
financial conditions. However, policies under the new U.S. administration—particularly on trade, taxation, 
immigration, and regulatoiy changes—may have diverse implications on the economy. In 2024, Europe 
(‘EU’) registered a growth rate of 0.8% supported by monetary easing by European Central Bank. Economic 
activity in EU is projected to remain flat in 2025, before showing modest recovery in 2026. As per IMF, 
recovery will be largely driven by improvement in domestic demand along with rising wages. The United 
Kingdom (‘UK’) is expected to register a stable GDP growth of 1.0% in 2025, aided by gradual interest rate 
declines, steady real income growth, and improving consumer confidence. However, elevated geopolitical 
uncertainties and structural constraints, such as low productivity and an aging population, will continue to 
pose challenges for Europe and UK. The Chinese economy continued to grow in 2024, witnessing a growth 
rate of 5%. Growth is projected to remain stable at 4.5% in 2025 and 2026, though overcapacity, sluggish 
domestic demand, and structural challenges in the property market remain as concerns. Outcome of govern­
ment’s stimulus on domestic consumption, US - China trade discussions, and export performance will impact 
the industrial output of China and would be the key watch points in 2025. Fuel prices are expected to decline 
by 7.9% in 2025, driven by weak Chinese demand and strong non-OPEC+ oil supply, although gas prices 
may rise due to supply disruptions. Non-fuel commodity prices are expected to increase by 4.4% in 2025. 
Meanwhile, global trade volumes are projected to be slightly lower in 2025 and



trade policy uncertainty.
2. Indian Economy
India is one of the fastest-growing major economy. It demonstrated a growth rate of 6.5% in FY2024-25.

Despite global headwinds, India’s growth is expected to remain range bound, 6% - 6.5%, in the next couple 
of years. The economy is expected to be driven by strong domestic consumption, government capital ex­
penditure, and robust expansion in the services and manufacturing sectors. Inflation is projected to moderate 
and be range bound, 4.0—4.5% in the near term, supported by favourable food price trends. Core inflation 
across goods and services has remained stable, while fuel prices have declined. The moderation in inflation 
has enabled the Reserve Bank of India to adopt a more accommodative stance, with interest rate cuts antici­
pated to stimulate consumer spending and credit growth. Foreign Portfolio Investment volatility is expected 
to subside, while softening crude oil prices will likely support exchange rate stability.

On the sectoral front, the services sector has demonstrated resilience, with financial services, real estate, 
professional services, public administration, and defence driving growth. Exports in the services sector have 
also recorded strong performance. Construction activities and utility services have supported industrial 
growth, while high-value-added manufacturing exports—particularly in electronics, semiconductors, and 
pharmaceuticals—have shown robust momentum. Agricultural production has remained strong, underpinning 
rural consumption, and contributing to steady economic activity in rural markets.

The Government of India (‘Gol’) remains focused on fiscal consolidation, employment generation, and boost­
ing capital investment. The share of capital expenditure in central government spending has continued to rise, 
playing a critical role in industrial and infrastructure development. Increased capital outlays on infrastructure 
and asset creation are expected to generate growth multipliers. The PLI scheme has successfully attracted 
investments and stimulated production across various industries. The Government is exploring further sec­
toral expansion to enhance domestic manufacturing and develop labour-intensive industries.

Despite India’s strong economic momentum, certain downside risks persist. Towards the end of 2024, eco­
nomic activity moderated due to weaker private and foreign investment flows, impacting industrial output.

The rupee’s depreciation, coupled with uncertainties surrounding cross border conflicts, global trade policies 
and supply chain disruptions, could pose a few challenges.

Overall, India’s economic outlook remains strong, driven by robust domestic demand, policy support, and 
sectoral resilience. Improving trade relations with the developed economies will provide the requisite impetus 
to the economy. The India - UK trade agreement is a positive development in this direction. By leveraging 
its domestic strengths and implementing strategic reforms, India is well-positioned to navigate global chal­
lenges and maintain its trajectory as a leading global economic powerhouse.

3. Global Steel Industry
The steel sector has historically been a cornerstone of industrial progress, forming the foundation of economic 
development. However, the past year presented significant challenges for the industry, as global manufactur­
ing activity remained subdued due to low household and business confidence, leading to cautious spending 
and investment. High input costs, geopolitical uncertainty, and tighter financing conditions have delayed cap­
ital investments. The lingering effects of inflation have further eroded purchasing power and consumer sen­
timent. Additionally, weak housing construction in major markets such as China, the United States, Europe, 
and Japan has adversely impacted steel demand. The automotive sector, a major consumer of steel, also ex­
perienced slowdown in 2024. However, investment in manufacturing facilities and public infrastructure pro­
vided some support to global steel demand. Sustained capital expenditure in these areas by major economies 
played a key role in offsetting weaker demand from traditional sectors.

KOLKA’



While steel demand weakened in China and most developed economies, developing economies like India 
have demonstrated resilience. Steel demand in the developing world excluding China grew by around 3.5% 
in 2024, while the developed economies witnessed approximately 2% decline in steel demand in 2024.

Exports from China to the rest of the World were at their highest level since 2016, at 111 MT as domestic 
demand for steel in China decreased significantly, whereas the decline in production was moderate. The high 
exports from China have resulted in protectionist measures by different countries. Imports into the EU in­
creased from 25.6 MT in 2023 to 27.4 MT in 2024. In India, the imports from China stood at 2.83 million 
tonnes in FY2024-25, around 12% higher than the previous year.
Steel Demand Outlook
Global steel demand is projected to grow by 1.2% in 2025, reaching ~l,770 million tonnes. After three con­
secutive years of decline, steel demand is expected to recover globally (excluding China) in 2025. A stable 
global economic outlook, coupled with improving financing conditions and real income growth in major 
economies, is expected to support recovery in private consumption and investments before the tariff imposi­
tions. Additionally, a significant recovery in residential construction is also anticipated from 2025 onward, 
supported by easing financing conditions. However, the tariffs imposed by US administration and reciprocal 
tariffs by countries has led to increased uncertainty in demand-supply balance and continues to be a major 
risk to the steel industry.
At a regional level, the downturn in China’s real estate sector is expected to persist, leading to a 3% decline 
in steel demand in 2024, followed by an additional 1% decline expected in 2025. However, government 
intervention and economic support measures could help stabilise demand. In Developing Economies (exclud­
ing China), steel demand grew by 3.5% in 2024 and is expected to further accelerate to 4.2% in 2025. Emerg­
ing economies in the MENA and ASEAN regions are expected to rebound after experiencing a significant 
slowdown in 2022 and 2023. In Developed Economies, steel demand declined by around 2% in 2024, with 
major steel-consuming nations—including the United States, Japan, South Korea, and Germany—experienc­
ing contractions.
However, demand is expected to recover by 1.9% in 2025, driven by improving economic conditions. In 
Europe, apparent steel consumption experienced another drop of 2.3% in 2024. Output growth in the steel­
using sectors is expected to remain low in 2025 due to continued low investments following from the high 
interest rates. In 2025, apparent steel consumption is projected to recover at a gradual pace of 2.2%, based on 
a positive industrial outlook and easing global tensions, though they are unpredictable now.

4. Indian Steel Industry
India remains the world’s second-largest steel producer and one of the strongest demand drivers, with steel 
demand expected to grow by 8% in 2025. Demand is expected to reach 200-210 million tonnes by 2030, 
driven by strong expansion in steel-intensive sectors such as infrastructure, housing, transportation, power, 
and renewable energy.
Growth is further supported by rising demand for consumer durables and capital goods. Additionally, gov­
ernment initiatives, including Production-Linked Incentives (‘PLI’) schemes and increased investments in 
infrastructure and manufacturing, have played a crucial role in boosting steel production and consumption.
In the Union Budget for FY2025-26, the Government of India (‘Gol’) has maintained capital expenditure 

(capex) as a share of GDP at the same level as 2024, reinforcing its commitment to industrial growth. While 
steel demand remains robust in India, steel prices are expected to remain range bound, capped by the threat 
of Chinese imports. Policy support provided by the Government in the form of a safeguard duty of 12% on 
April 21, 2025 for 200 days has given a partial relief to the Indian steel industry.
Overall, while the global steel demand is poised for recovery in 2025, the industry remains exposed to geo-



political, economic, and financial risks. India, however, continues to stand out as a high-growth market, sup­
ported by strong domestic demand and investment. The long-term outlook for the Indian steel industry re­
mains optimistic, with continued infrastructure development, industrial expansion, and supportive govern­
ment policies driving its growth.
Effective trade policies, price stabilisation measures, and sustained investment will be crucial to maintaining 

India’s competitive edge in the global steel market.

III. SWOT Analysis

Strengths Weaknesses Threats Opportunities
• High availability of coal 

and iron ore, and other 
minerals

• Skilled manpower and 
low per unit labour cost

• Growing infrastructure 
demands and growth of 
the industry

• High cost of capital
• Low labour productiv­

ity
• High input costs and so­

cial expenses

• More Competitors
• Technological 

advancement
• Switch from 

aluminium and plas­
tics

• Low per capita 
consumption

• Expanding rural 
market

• Governments 
initiatives and af­
fordable entry to 
overseas

IV. Government Policies
National Steel Policy, 2017: The National Steel Policy aims to increase India’s per capita steel consumption 
from 77.2 Kg to 160 Kg within the next decade. To achieve this, the country’s domestic crude steel capacity 
could also be doubled, reaching a target of 300 MTPA. This could create opportunities for significant growth 
among major Indian players in the steel industry, as both demand and regulations will drive domestic steel 
production.
Scrap Recycling Policy, 2019: This Policy plans to establish eco-friendly management systems that promote 
the processing and recycling of ferrous scrap through well-organized and scientifically advanced metal scrap­
ping centers throughout India. This will reduce India’s reliance on imported scrap and promote self-suffi­
ciency in the availability of scrap. This development is beneficial for steel manufacturers who prioritize pro­
ducing steel using the electric arc furnace (EAF) method.
Production linked Incentive (PLI) Scheme: On 17th March, 2023, the Ministry of Steel signed 57 Memo­
randums of Understanding (MoUs) with 27 companies under the government’s production-linked incentive 
scheme, specifically for specialty steel. These MoUs are expected to generate H30,000 Crore in new invest­
ments in the Indian specialty steel industry, resulting in approximately 50,000 to 55,000 new jobs and adding 
value to the steel sector. The PLI scheme for specialty steel was approved by the Union Cabinet on 22nd July, 
2021, with a five-year budget of H6,322 Crore to promote manufacturing, attract capital investment, generate 
employment and promote technology upgrading in the steel sector. This initiative is in line with the ‘Make in 
India’ policy to boost domestic manufacturing and reduce import bills. By sourcing specialty steel domesti­
cally and creating products for export, India aims to address the demand gap in the market. The PLI scheme 
is expected to draw investments worth approximately H400 billion (USD 5.37 billion) and increase the ca­
pacity of specialty steel by 25 million tonnes, from 18 MT in 2020-21 to 42 MT in 2026-27, while generating 
employment opportunities for over half a million people.

V. Threats
Global Scenario involving Russia -Ukraine war, With rising tensions in south China Sea, slowdown in US 
Economy and European markets may impact demand and results in supply chain disruptions.



VI. Segment-Wise Performance

Our Companies main products are Billets, Wire Rods and HB Wire. Billets are mainly used as intermediary 
products and our products basically caters to the B2B segment and has good market for its products.

VIL Risk and Concerns

Risk is a crucial aspect of all businesses and must be managed to minimize its impact. The Company has 
identified, estimated and controlled risks across all its business verticals and activities, such as operations, 
finance and HR, leveraging its knowledge of the industry trends, competitors and policies. However, there 
are unpredictable challenges that may affect the industry’s performance, such as inflation, liquidity crunch, 
slower industrial growth, depreciating rupee, political instability and volatile commodity prices. Despite the 
Company’s risk mitigation measures, these challenges can still have an impact. During FY 2024-25, the 
Company focused on value chain excellence, operational excellence, customer centricity, sustainable initia­
tives, employee engagement, synergy and integration and digital to sustain the most critical situation during 
the pandemic. The Company’s priority is to implement long-term initiatives to manage liquidity robustly and 
optimize working capital while considering all risk parameters.

VIII. Financial and Operational Performance

Your Company has achieved total revenue ? 74,466.30 Lakhs as compared to ? 73,893.73 Lakhs in the pre­
vious year but the EBITDA margins took a hit due to lower realization in Billets and Rolled products during 
the year but March 2025 onwards realizations have significantly improved and your Company expect to gen­
erate better margin going forward. There has been increase in capacity of production in products like Billets, 
Wire rods and HB wire which would help Company to generate good revenue going forward.

Some of the Financial Indicators are:

Indicator’s Ratio

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 124.55

Current Ratio 0.81

Debt Equity Ratio 0.07

Net Profit Ratio 1.69

Return on Equity Ratio 4.78

Inventory T umover Ratio 19.97

IX. Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company’s Board of Directors operates an extensive system of internal control. It includes the organiza­
tion’s plans and policies to ensure orderly and efficient business conduct. The Board has also set-up appro­
priate processes to monitor the relevant external and internal risks. The Company follows a well-defined 
model of internal control system to deal efficiently and effectively with all the five components of Internal 
Control System, namely: 
• Risk assessment.
• Control environment.
• Control activities.

Information and communication. KOLKATA



Monitoring the activities of the different levels of the organization.

The Company’s internal audit is carried out effectively, leading to an independent and systematic assessment 
of its data, records and performances and so on with a pre-determined objective. It has the potential to be one 
of the most influential and value-added services available to the Board. It emphasizes on:
• Operational effectiveness and efficiency.
• Resource protection.
• Reliability of internal and external reporting.
• Compliance with applicable laws, regulations and internal policies.

Internal audit works as a catalyst for improving an organization’s effectiveness, thus providing insight and 
recommendations based on analysis and assessments of data and business processes. With its commitment to 
integrity and accountability, internal audit provides value to governing bodies and senior management as an 
objective source of independent advice.

The organization promotes independent examination of its plans and the policies, subject to the overall control 
environment supervision by the Board Level Audit Committee. This leads to accountability and transparency 
of operations and promotes independent examination. During the year, the Company focused on encouraging 
independent decision making, documentation of shortcomings of the various processes and departments and 
correction of the work processes. It is supplemented by well-documented policies, guidelines, procedures and 
regular reviews, which are carried out by the Independent Chartered Accountant to conduct internal audit. 
The reports containing significant audit findings if any are submitted to the Company’s management and it’s 
Audit Committee.

X. Human Resource

The Company values its human resources as its most important asset and focuses on their training, develop­
ment and wellbeing in the workplace. The Management believes that business cannot expand without utilizing 
the potential of its workforce. As of 31st March, 2025 the Company had 445 employees and it maintains a 
positive relationship with its staff. The safety of employees is of great importance to the Company and it 
ensures that safe work practices are followed. The Board of Directors and the Management acknowledge the 
contributions of all employees towards the growth of the Company.

Cautionary' Statement

This statement made in this section describes the Company’s objectives, projections, expectation and estima­
tions which may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regu­
lations. Forward- looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The 
Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized by the 
Company. Actual result could differ materially from those expressed in the statement or implied due to the 
influence of external factors which are beyond the control of the Company. The Company assumes no re­
sponsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements on the basis of any subse­
quent developments.



ANNEXURE-6

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Ac­

counts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies 
or joint ventures.

Part A-Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

SI. No. Particulars Name of the Subsidiary

1. The date since when subsidiary was acquired

Not Applicable as Company dose 
not have any Subsidiary Company 

till date.

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 
from the holding company’s reporting period.

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date 
of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign sub­
sidiaries.

4. ■Share capital

5. Reserves and surplus

6. Total assets

7. Total Liabilities

8. Investments

9. Turnover

10. Profit before taxation

11. Provision for taxation

12. Profit after taxation

13. Proposed Dividend

14. Extent of shareholding (inpercentage)

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: 
i. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.



Part B - Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Compa­
nies and Joint Ventures:

in Lakh)
Name of Associate Giridhan Metal 

Private Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March, 2025

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired 22-03-2025

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

(a) No. of Shares held 34,00,000

(b) Amount of Investment in Associate/Joint Venture 5,839.12

(c) Extent of holding % 21.05%

4. Description of how there is significant influence Controls more than 
20% of the total share 
capital and has signifi­
cant influence over op­
erational and financial 
decision-making

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated It is Consolidated

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet I6.nn.fti

7. Profit or Loss for the year

i. Considered in Consolidation

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation N.A.

Notes:
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations- N.A
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year- N.A

For and on behalf of
Supershakti Metaliks Limited

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26-05-2025

Deepak Agarwal 
Director

DIN: 00343812

Rud 
Whole-Time Direc'tor 

DIN:06584512
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Supershakti Metaliks Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

OPINION

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Supershakti Metaliks Limited ("the Company"), 
which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone Statement 
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of material 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "standalone financial statements").

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act") in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015, as amended (Ind AS) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

3. We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs"), 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements' section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in 
our report:

Offices: Koikata. Mumbai, Delhi NCR. Chennai, Bangalore Ahmedabad & Raipur 
Network Locations: Hyderabad. Nagpur

mailto:kolkata@singhico.com
http://www.singhico.com
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

SI.No. Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

1. Valuation of Inventory
Refer to Note 12 to the standalone financial statements. As 
described in the accounting policies in note 3.5 to the 
standalone financial statements, inventories are carried at 
lower of cost or net realizable value. As a result, the 
management applies judgment in determining the appropriate 
provisions for obsolete stock based upon a detailed analysis of 
old inventory, net realizable value below cost based upon 
future plans for sale of inventory. The total amount of Inventory 
as on the reporting date stood at Rs. 3,409.26 lakhs.

We determined this to be a matter of significance to our audit 
due to quantum ofthe amount, estimation involved.

We have obtained assurance over the 
appropriateness of the management's 
assumptions applied in calculating the value of 
the inventories and related provisions by:
i. Conducting a walkthrough of the inventory 

valuation process and assessed the design 
and implementation of the key controls 
addressing the risk;

ii. Verifying for a sample of individual products 
that costs have been correctly recorded.

iii. Comparing the net realizable value to the cost 
price of inventories to check for completeness 
of the associated provision, if any.

iv. Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory 
provisioning and the level of inventory write­
offs during the year, if any.

v. Re-computing provisions recorded to verify 
that they are in line with the Company policy.

vi. Also, we have reviewed the inventory 
valuation calculations and compared the cost 
with the subsequent realization value to 
confirm whether item is required to be shown 
at cost or net realizable value. Necessary 
adjustment has been made wherever it was 
required to comply with the requirement of 
Ind AS - 2 "Inventories".

Based on the above procedures performed, we 
concluded that measurement and valuation of 
the inventory at year end is appropriate.

5 The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Company's Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our 
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit ofthe standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONISBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

6. The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and the Board of Directors of the Company are 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accountingunless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls in place with reference to the standalone financial 
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Director’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures 
in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial control that we identify 
during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought tn bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the bestof our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph 15{i)(vi) below on 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended from time to time; ------ _
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(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) ofthe Act;

(f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated 
in the paragraph 15(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) ofthe Act and paragraph 15(i)(vi) below on 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 (as amended);

(g) With respect to the adequacy ofthe internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B";

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirement of 
section 197(16) of the Act. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details 
under Section 197(16) ofthe Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on March 31, 2025, on its financial position 
in its standalone financial statements- Refer Note 36 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as on March 31, 2025 for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

iv. (a) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and
(c) Based on our audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under paragraph 15(i) (iv)(a) and (b) above, contain any 
material misstatement.

v. a. The dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the previous year 
is in accordance with section 123 ofthe Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

b. As stated in Note 16(e) to the standalone financial statements; the Board of Directors of the Company 
have proposed dividend for the year which is subject to the approval ofthe members at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. The dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 ofthe Act, as applicable.
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vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software 
including Payroll accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software except in respect of 
payroll software, where the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level and in respect of 
accounting software, audit trail was editable at database level as described in Note 50 to the standalone 
financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instances of audit 
trail features being tampered with, where such functionality was enabled and logs were maintained.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for the 
record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the respective years.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 302049E

(Sankar Bandyopadhyay)
Partner

Membership No.008230
UDIN:25008230BMJLRH2060

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 26th May, 2025
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ANNEXURE-ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 14 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of the Independent 
Auditor's Report of even date to the Members of Supershakti Metaliks Limited on the standalone financial statements 
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we report that:

i. In respect of its Property, Plant and Equipment:
a. i) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation 

of the Property, Plant and Equipment.

ii) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of all Property, Plant & Equipment, 
over a period of one year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification.

c. According to the information and explanations given, and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee 
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements are held in the name of the Company.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 
assets) during the year.

e. Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending 
.against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules 
made thereunder.

ii. In the respect of matters specified in clause (ii) of paragraph 3 the Order:

a. The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management, along with independent 
party, during the year. For goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of receipts has been linked with inventory 
records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed 
by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks 
and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

b. During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, 
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with 
such banks, which are not in agreement with the books of account. However, such differences between the 
amounts disclosed to the banks and those as per the books of accounts as given in the table below have been 
reconciled. (Also refer Note 40 to the standalone financial statements).
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# Figures mention in quarterly return/ statement represents the details taken from books of accounts dated March 25, 2025.

Name of bank / 
Financial 

Institution

Quarter 
ended

Aggregate 
working capital 
limit sanctioned 

(Rs. in lakhs)

Nature of current 
Assets / 

Liabilities

Amount as 
per books 
of account 

(Rs. in 
lakhs)

Amount as 
reported in the 

quarterly 
return/ 

statement 
(Rs. in lakhs)

Amount of 
difference 

(Rs. in 
lakhs)

Reason for 
Material 

difference

Indian Overseas 
Bank/ Bank of 
Baroda /Union 
Bank of India

June 30, 2024 11,200

Trade Receivables 1,155.46 1,151.91 (3.55) Note. 1
Advance against 
raw material 193.96 193.96 - Note. 2

Inventories 3,357.84 3,861.37 503.53 Note, 2
Trade Payable for 
supplies 1,411.52 559.63 (851.89) Note. 3

Advance from
Customers 189.12 189.51 0.39 Note. 1

September 
30, 2024 11,200

Trade Receivables 882.37 879.92 (2.45) Note. 1
Advance against 
raw material 562.29 584.93 22.64 Note. 2

Inventories 2,961.60 3,467.96 506.36 Note. 2
Trade Payable for 
supplies 1,308.14 506.20 (801.94) Note. 3

Advance from
Customers 592.38 592.50 0.12 Note. 1

December 31, 
2024 11,200

Trade Receivables 1,227.87 1,224.93 (2.94) Note. 1
Advance against 
raw material 84.04 770.15 686.11 Note. 2

Inventories 3,424.33 4,018.63 594.30 Note. 2
Trade Payable for 
supplies 1,597.98 1,387.61 (210.37) Note. 3

Advance from
Customers 76.62 76.81 0.19 Note. 1

it March 31, 
2025 11,200

Trade Receivables 684.08 820.38 136.30 Note. 1
Advance against 
raw material 126.24 195.17 68.93 Note. 2

Inventories 3,409.26 3,405.74 (3.52) Note. 2
Trade Payable for 
supplies 3,170.21 2,209.05 (961.16) Note. 3

Advance from
Customers 614.74 459.99 (154.75) Note. 1

Note 1; Impact of sales reversal/ adjustments arising out of provision for debit and credit notes/ expected credit loss 
provision/ debtors beyond 120 days not considered in returns/ statements submitted to the banks.
Note 2: Adjustments pertaining to cut offs, goods in transit, overhead allocation on work-in-progress and finished goods, 
etc. are done only on finalization of books of accounts/standalone financial statements. Same has not been considered in 
returns/statements submitted to the banks.
Note 3: Impact of provision for operational expenses not considered in returns/statements submitted to the banks.
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lii. In the respect of matters specified in clause (iii) of paragraphs 3 the Order:

a. The Company has made investment in equity shares of one company during the year. The Company has not 
granted secured/unsecured loans/advances in the nature of loans to any Company/Firm/Limited Liability 
Partnership/other party during the year other than unsecured loans to two companies. The aggregate amount 
of loans granted during the year and the balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such 
loans, and the guarantees stood as on the balance sheet date are as per the table given below:

Particulars
Guarantee

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Loans

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted during the year-
Associate NIL 9,800.00
Others (Related Party) NIL 300.00
Balance outstanding as at Balance Sheet date in respect of
above cases:

Associate 4,930.06 8,800.00

Others (Related Party) NIL 1,393.77

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, 
in our opinion, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted/investment were 
made/guarantees provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans granted by the 
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the 
repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are generally been regular as per stipulation.

d. In respect of the aforesaid loans given by the company, there is no amount which is overdue for more than 
ninety days.

e. No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which had fallen due during the year, has 
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same 
parties.

f. The Company has not granted loan or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order 
is not applicable to the company.

iv. In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the Act, in respect of the investments 
made and loans and guarantees given by it. The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided 
any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Sections 185 of the Act. Therefore, the reporting under clause 
3(iv) of the Order to that extent is not applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the 
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), 
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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vi. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the central government under sub section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and 
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether 
they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
company, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods & Services Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Cess and any other statutory dues 
with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed dues as above 
were outstanding as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of Statutory dues referred to in clause (a) above that have not been deposited on account of any dispute are 
given below:

Name of Statute Nature of Dues
Amount 
(in Rs in 
lakhs)

Period to which it 
relates (FY)

Forum where dispute is 
pending

The Central Excise
Act, 1944 Excise Duty 2,534.57 2005-06 to 2014-15

The Central Excise & 
Service Tax Appellate

Tribunal

The Central Goods & 
Services Tax, 2017 Goods and Service Tax 1,328.70 2017-18 Superintendent, CGST &. 

Central Excise, Durgapur

The Central Goods & 
Services Tax, 2017 Goods and Service Tax 229.74 2016-17 Commissioner, Durgapur

The Central Excise
Act, 1944 Excise Duty 1,497.40 2013-14 to 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner, 

Durgapur

The Central Goods & 
Services Tax, 2017 Goods and Service Tax 1,821.46 2018-19 to 2019-20 Superintendent, CGST & 

Central Excise, Durgapur

The Central Goods & 
Services Tax, 2017 Goods and Service Tax 37.77 2020-21 to 2022-23 Superintendent, CGST & 

Central Excise, Durgapur

Income Tax Act, 
1961 Income Tax 1.26 2017-18 CIT (Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 
1961 Income Tax 16.31 2019-20 CIT (Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 
1961 Income Tax 14.03 2020-21 CIT (Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 
1961 Income Tax 39.40 2021-22 CIT (Appeals)

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, 
previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) as 
income duringthe year.
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ix. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 
or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company 
has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has applied the term loans for the purpose 
for which they were obtained.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet of 
the Company as at year end i.e., March 31, 2025, we report that funds raised on short-term basis to the extent of Rs 
1,063.31 lakhs have been used for long-term purposes.

e. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity 
or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associate.

f. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the 
pledge of securities held in its associate.

x. a. The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable 
to the company.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debenture (fully or partly or optionally) during the year and 
hence requirement of reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to Company.

xi. a. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company 
or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit, nor have we been informed of any 
such case by the management

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, no report under subsection (12) of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of 
this report.

c. According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints were received by the 
Company during the year.

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us, the company is not a Nidhi Company, 
therefore, the requirement of reporting under clause 3(xii)(a), (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, all transactions during 
the year with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the 
details have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv. a. In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and nature of its business.

b. We have considered, the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date of the Aujiit Report, for the period 
under audit.
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xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with 
its directors. Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

xvi a. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). 
Accordingly, the requirement of reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

b. The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, the 
requirement of reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. 
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d. According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has one unregistered CIC.

xvii. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year 2024-25 or immediately preceding 
financial year 2023-24.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on 
clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note No. 47 to the standalone financial statements, ageing and 
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying 
the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on 
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting 
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there are no 
unspent CSR amounts for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or 
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

xxi. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements. 
Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No>302049E

(Sankar Bandyopadhyay) 
Partner

Membership No.008230
UDIN-.25008230BMJLRH2060

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 26th May, 2025
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 15(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of the Independent 
Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Supershakti Metaliks Limited on the standalone financial statements 
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Supershakti Metaliks 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

2. The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards 
on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of 
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial 
statements. ____
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INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as on March 
31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 302049E

(Sankar Bandyopadhyay)
Partner

Membership No.008230 
UDIN:25008230BMJLRH2060

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 26th May, 2025



in Lakhs

SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 
CIN: L28910WB2012PLC189128 

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

Particulars

I. ASSETS
(A) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Right of Use-Assets
(c) Investments in Associates
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments

(ii) Loans

(iii) Other Financial Assets

(e) Non -Current Tax Assets (Net)

(f) Other Non- Current Assets

Total Non-Current Assets
(B) Current Assets

(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Trade Receivables
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(iii) Bank Balances (other than (ii) above)
(iv) Other Financial Assets

(c) Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Total Assets
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(A) Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity

Total Equity
(8) Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

(b) Provisions

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Total non-current liabilities

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade Payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
(d) Other Current Liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities
Material Accounting Policies and Key accounting estimates & Judgements 1-4 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

Notes As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

5 4,703.91 5,143.87
6 209.87 213.69
7 14,192.32

8 - 13,046.20

8A 10,193.77 5,887.91

9 34.36 113.30
10 330.64 330.64

11 21.88 19.06

(A) 29,686.75 24,754.67

12 3,409.26 3,972.97

13 684.08 499.47
14 8.60 15.65
15 515.16 517.28
9 18.57 21.49
11 313.95 1,854.02
(B) 4,949.62 6,880.88

(A+B) 34,636.37 31,635.55

16 1,152.53 1,152.53
17 25.775.26 23,872.74

(C) 26,927.79 25,025.27

18 1.23 75.34
19 238.64 227.01
20 1,382.38 1,839.39
(D) 1,622.25 2,141.74

18 1,922.89 1,904.66

21 180.71 25.54

2,989.50 2,020.34
22 228.38 169.42
19 46.25 45.21
23 45.69 -
24 672.91 303.37
(E) 6,086.33 4,468.54

7,708.58 6,610.28

(C+F) 34,636.37 31,635.55

As per our report of even date annexed herewith
For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registratipff No : 302049E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SANKAR BANDYOPAD
(Partner)
Membership No: 0082

JANA
Director)

DEEPAK AGARWAL
(Director) 

DIN .00343812

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 26th May , 2025

NAVI AGARWAL
(Company Secretary)

SHYAM SUNDAR 50MANI
(Chief Financial Officer)



in Lakhs

SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 
CIN: L28910WB2012PLC189128 

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

Particulars Notes For the year ended 
31st March, 2025

For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income

25
26

73,703.95
762.35

73,141.28
752.45

Total Income (1) 74,466.30 73,893.73
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

27 56,248.78
1,976.87

55,206.86
2,041.98

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade & Work-In Progress

Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses

28

29
30
31
32

(346.67)
1,394.33

219.03
504.37

12,763.07

102.05
1,268.61

276.72
473.80

12,733.77
Total Expenses (II) 72,759.78 72,103.79

Profit before Tax (D-(II)=(IH) 1,706.52 1,789.94

Tax Expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax

33
436.12

27.42
426.76

22.66
Total Tax Expenses (IV) 463.54 449.42
Profit for the year (lll)-(IV)= (V) 1,242.98 1,340.52

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Fair Valuation of Investments in equity investment 
designated at OCI
(b) Re-measurement ofthe net defined benefit plans
(c) Income tax relating to items above

35

237.06

(4.31)
484.43

10.81
63.78

Other Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) (VI) 717.18 74.59

Total Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) for the year (V)+(VI)=VII 1,960.16 1,415.11

Earnings per share
Basic (? ) 
Diluted (? ) 51

10.78
10.78

11.63
11.63

As per our report of even date annexed herewith
For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 302049E

For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors

SANKAR BANDYOPADHYAY
(Partner)
Membership No: 008230

(Whole Time Director)
DIN 06584512

(Director)
DIN 00343812

Place : Kolkata
Dated: 26th May, 2025

NAVI^j AGARWAL 
(Company Secretary)

SHYAM SUNDAR SOMANI
(Chief Financial Officer)



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 
CIN: L28910WB2012PLC189128

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025
T in lakhs

Year ended 31.03.2025 Year ended 31.03.2024

Particulars Amount (T) Amount (t) Amount Amount
Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit before Tax: 1,706.52 1,789.94

Adjustments for:

Depredation & Amortisation Expenses 504.37 473.80

Finance costs 219.03 276.72

Interest Income (624.05) (639.36)

Unwinding of Interest on Security Deposits • (0.25)
Net (Gain)/Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment/CWIP (6.92) (2.25)

Net (Gain)/Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions (2.82) (0.99)

Net (Galn)/loss arising on forward contracts designated as FVTPL 8.22 (1.20)

Liabilities no longer required written back (1.40) (3.49)

Bad Debts written off 0.15 9.71

Reversal of Allowances for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables (5.90) (8.95)

Reversal of Allowances for Expected Credit Loss on Advance to Suppliers • (10.68)

Provision for Non-moving / Obsolete Store Items (0.12) (10.46)

90.56 82.60

Operating Profit before working Capital Changes 1,797.08 1,872.54

Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets

Inventories 563.83 (447.57)

Trade Receivables (178.86) 789.95
Other Non Current Financial Assets And Other Non-Current Assets (14.18) (10.68)

Other Current Financial Assets And Other Current Assets 1,541.92 (1,097.79)

Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities

Trade payables 1,125.73 629.82

Other Current Financial Liabilities And Other Current Liabilities 380.46 (900.95)

Current provisions 1.04 10.86

Non-current provisions 11.63 11.28

3,431.57 (l,015.08|

Cash Generated from Operations 5,228.65 857.46

Tax Paid (390.43) (564.38)

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities (A) 4.838.22 293.08

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (including Capital Work-in-Progress)
and Intangible Assets (255.21) (230.93)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment (including Capital Work-in-
Progress) 237.44 83.24
Loan (given)/ refund to related party (Net) (4,305.86) (1,687.91)
Investment in Associates (909.06) - 1
Interest Received 623.97 636.43
Net Investment in Fixed deposits 79.34 (130.95)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B) (4.529.38) (1,330.12)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Dividend Paid (57.63) (115.25)

Proceeds/(Repayment) from Long Term Loan Borrowings (74.10) (68.47)

Proceeds/(Repayment) from Short Term Loan Borrowings 18.23 175.97

Interest Paid i (202.39) (272.05)

Payment of Lease Liabilities (12.60)

Net Cash Used from Financing Activities ( C ) (315.89) (292.40)

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (7.05) (1,329.44)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 15.65 1,345.09

Cash andCashEquivalentsattheendoftheyear 8.60 15.65

ATTXA



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 
CIN: L28910WB2012PLC189128

Cash & Cash Equivalents Consists of: As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

Cash on Hand

Balance with Banks

8.60 14.99

0.66

Total 8.60 15.65

Notes :
(a) 'The above Cash Flow Statements has been prepared under the "Indirect Method’1 as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) -7 Statement of Cash Flow

(b) Amendment to Ind AS 7
The amendments to Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising 
from financial activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances 
in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosures requirement. This amendment has become effective from 1st April, 2017 and the 
required disclosure is made below. There is no other impact on the financial statements due to this amendment.

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars Long-term 
borrowings

Short-term Non-current
borrowings lease liability

Current lease 
liability

March 31,2023 Including current maturities of long term borrowings

Non-Cash Changes (Foreign Exchange Fluctuation)

Interest Expenses

Classified as current maturity

Interest Accrued

Cash Inflow / out flow

143.81

15.14
(67.30)

(4.30)
(12.01)

1,728.70
0.18

259.57
67.30

(159.09)

12.18

0.42

(12.60)
March 31, 2024 including current maturities of long term borrowings 75.34 1,904.66
Non-Cash Changes (Foreign Exchange Fluctuation)

Interest Expenses

Classified as current maturity

Interest Accrued

Cash Inflow / out flow

10.02
(73.40)
(20.95)

10.23

192.44
73.40

(247.61)
•

March 31.2025 Including current maturities of long term borrowings 1.23 1,922.89 -
Ag per our report of even date annexed herewith 

For SINGH1 8» CO.

Chjrtared Accountants

Firm Registration No: \

SANKAR BANDYOPADHYAY /*/  RHQW
(Partner) (O ( 1*1  (Who
Membership No: 008230 \ D

Place: Kolkata * NA
Dated : 26th May, 2025 (Ccfa

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

^NARJ^AN I^NA DEEPAICAGARWAL
e Time Director) (Director)
IN 06584512 DIN 00343812

/IN AGARWAL SHYAM SUNDAR SOMANI
pany Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)



SUPERSHAKTI METAUKS LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equitv for the year ended 31st March, 2025

A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (T In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2025 As at 31.03.2024

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year (01-04-2024) 1,152.53 1,152.53

Changes in equity Share capital to prior period errors • •

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 1,152.53 1,152.53
Changes in Equity Share capital during the year -

Balance at the end of the reporting year (31-03-2025) 1,152.53 1,152.53

B) OTHER EQUITY in lakhs)

Particulars
Reserves and Surplus

Items of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income Total
Securities 
Premium General reserve Retained Earnings

Gain/(Loss) on Equity 
Instruments FVTOCI

(A) (B) (c) (D) (A+B+C+D)

Balance as at 1st April, 2023
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Dividend paid
Gain/(Loss) on Equity Instruments FVTOCI
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligations
Impact of tax

5.197.59 25.41 10,966.66 6,383.22 22,572.88

-

-
1,340.52
(115.25)

10.81
(2.72) 66.50

1,340.52
(115.25)

10.81
63.78

Total Comprehensive Income / (loss) for the year 1,233.36 66.50 1.299.86

Balance as at 31 March, 2024 5,197.59 25.41 12,200.02 6,449.72 23.872.74

Balance as at 1st April, 2024
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Dividend paid
Gain/(Loss) on Equity Instruments FVTOCI

Transferred due to Investment to Associates 
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligations 
Impact of tax

5,197.59 25.41 12,200.02
1,242.98

(57.63)

7,170.12
(4.31)
1.08

6,449.72

237.06
(7,170.12)

483.34

23,872.74
1,242.98

(57.63)
237.06

(4.31)
484.42

Total Comprehensive Income / (toss) for the year 8,352.24 (6,449.72) 1,902.52
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 5.197.59 25.41 20,552.26 - 25,775.26

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed herewith 
For 5INGHI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No^S02049E —,

SANKAR BANDYOPADHYAY /*/  \ R&88A NARAYAN JAWp DEEPAK AGARWAL
1 w \ , 1 ----- - 'I

(Partner) 1 01 1 «z> (Whole Time Director) (Director)
Membership No: 008230 X /?/ DIN 06584512 DIN 00343812

\-%\^ /

Place: Kolkata MAMIN AGARWAL SHYAM SUNDAR SOMANI
Dated: 26th May, 2025 (company Secretary) (Chief Financial Officer)



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2025

1. CORPORATE ANO GENERAL INFORMATION
Supershakti Metaliks Limited (the Company), was incorporated in India in the year 2012. The Company is domiciled in India, and has its registered office at 39, 
Shakespeare Sarani, Premlata Building, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 017.

The Company is a Public Limited Company incorporated as per the provisions of The Companies Act' 1956 applicable in India.
The Company is engaged in business of Iron and steel manufacturing and allied activities. The Company is having its integrated steel plant at Durgapur, West Bengal. The 
shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange, SME Platform.

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 26th May , 2025.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, read with Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 (“the Act") and presentation requirements of Division II of 
Schedule III of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable The Company has uniformly applied the Accounting Policy during the period presented.

2.2 of Preparation
The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

• certain financial assets and liabilities which are classified as fair value through Statement of profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income;

* defined benefit plans and plan assets.

2.3 Functional >nd Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian National Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional currency.

2.4 Uie pf Estimates and Accounting Judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and 
judgements based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Any revision to such estimates 
is recognised in the period in which the same is determined.

2.5 Cunent and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle or

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading or
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months.

All other assets are classified as non-current
A liability is current when:
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading or
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve 
months as its operating cycle.

2.6 Recent Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA'') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued 

from time to time. During the year ended 31st March 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As 116 - Leases, relating to sale 
and lease back transactions, applicable from 1st April 2024. The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its financial statements. On 9th May 2025, 
MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency 
exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1st April 2025 The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its financial statements.

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING PQLIQK
A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below These accounting policies have been applied 

consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

3.1.1 Recognition and Measurement
Tangible Assets
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, 
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The initial cost at cash price equivalence of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises 

its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and Iul alien 
and present value of any obligatory decommissioning costs for its intended use, if any.
In case of self constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour, allocation of overheads, directly attributable borrowing 
costs including trial run expenses (net of revenue)
Any material Spares having useful life of more than one year are capitalised under the respective heads as and when available for use.
Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.1.2 Subsequent Cost
Subsequent expenditure is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that 
future economic benefits derived from the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of replaced 
item(s) is derecognised.

Any material repairs of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits of the costs 
________ incurrgrl will flow t-Q the Company The carrying amnunt of th. replaced ite.mlsl is



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2025

3.1,3 Capital WoFklry  Progress*
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest on amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets 
and other expenses incurred in connection with project implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial 

production.

3.1,4 Degrtdatipfi and Amortisation
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method, considering residual value of 5% of the cost of the asset, over the useful lives of the assets, as 
specified in Schedule II ofthe Companies Act, 2013 except in case of Plant and Machinery and components thereof, where useful life is determined by technical experts. 

The useful life assumed by the technical experts Is as under:

Asset category Estimated useful life (in years)
Factory Building & Shed 30 - 60

Plant & Machinery 5-30

Furniture & Fixture 10

Vehicles 8 -10
Office Equipments & Computers 3-6

For these classes of assets, based on technical evaluation carried out by external technical experts, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above besl 

represent the period over which Company expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under 

PartC of Schedule II of the Companies Act2O13.
The estimated useful lives and residual values of depreciable/amortisable assets are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for 

on a prospective basis.

Where the historical cost of a depreciable asset undergoes a change, the depreciation on the revised unamortised depreciable amount is provided over the residual 

useful life ofthe asset. Depreciation on addition/deletion during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion. Assets costing 

up to 0,05 Lakhs are fully depreciated after retaining five percent residual value of acquisition cost of asset in the year in which they are put to use.
Depreciation on capital spares is provided over the useful life of the spare or remaining useful life ofthe mother asset, as reassessed, whichever is lower.

3.1,5 Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of Property Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of PPE is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the dem 

and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised.

3.2 intangible met;

3 .Z.1 Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Cost includes directly attributable expenditure for making the assets for its intended use.

3 .2.2 Subsequent Cost
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.3 Impairment of Non-FIrtanctal Assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of its assets on each Balance Sheet date for the purpose of ascertaining impairment indicators if any, by considering assets 

of entire Plant as Cash Generating Unit (CGU). If any such indication exists, the assets' recoverable amount is estimated, as higher of the Net Selling Price and the Value 
in Use. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. |

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount ofthe asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 

amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 

asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.4 Borrowing co$l$
Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange difference 
to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are 
capitalized as a part of the cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. The 
Company considers a period of twelve months or more as a substantia) period of time. Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the 
tenure of respective loans using Effective Interest Rate (ElR) method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which 

they are incurred.
If any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an entity 

borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

3.5 Inventories.
Inventories of stores and spare parts are valued at or below cost after providing for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses wherever considered necessary.

Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, non-refundable duties and taxes, cost of conversion including an appropriate share affixed and variable production 

overheads and ail other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.
Inventories of items other than those stated above are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

Cost in respect of:
a) Raw Materials, Consumables, Stores & Spares and Traded Goods are computed under weighted average basis, 

bJWork-in-Progress and Finished Goods are computed under weighted average basis.

c) By- Products are valued at net realisable value.

Net Realizable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Materialsand other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below costif the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 

expected to be sold at or above cost,

The Company considers factors like estimated shelf life, ageing of inventory etc in determining the provision for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable Inventory 

and adjusts the inventory provisions to reflect the recoverable value of inventory,

3.6 Government Grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be 
received.
Government grants are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs 
for which the grants are intended to compensate. Where the Grant relates to an asset value, it is recognised as deferred income, and amortised over the expected useful 

life of the asset. Other grants are recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss concurrent to the expenses to which such grants relate/ are intended to cover
Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross at fair amounts and released to the income statement over the expected 

useful life and pattern of consumption ofthe benefit of the underlying asset,



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2025

3.7 Fqteltn Cmrtncv Tr<n»ctlons
Foreign Currency Transactions are translated into the functional currency Using the spot rates of exchanges at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchanges at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are generally recognised 
in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future 
productive use, which are included in the cost of those qualifying assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency 
borrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of Profit and loss within finance costs.

Non monetary items are not retranslated at period end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rate at the transaction date).

3.8 Employee Benefits
Short Term Benefits
Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services are provided. Liabilities for wages and 

salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for leave encashment that are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months are measured as the present value of the expected future payments 
to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using 
the government securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation. Remeasurement as the result of 
experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in statement of profit and loss, 
Post Employment Benefits
The Company operates the following post employment schemes:

— Defined Benefit Plans
The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount 
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together 

with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or tosses and past service costs. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of 

the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting period 

that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the 
asset ceiling, are recognized in other comprehensive income. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings 
and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.
— Defined Contribution Plan
Defined contribution plans such as provident fund etc. are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred. Contribution to a defined contribution plan 
is made in accordance with the company's policy and is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

3.9 Leases
The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, 
the Company assesses whether:

1 the contract involves the use of an identified asset

2. the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
3. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROD") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which 
it is a lessee, except for.leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases), variable lease and low value leases. For these short-term, variable lease and low 
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

RJght-of-usg assets

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the 
commencement date ofthe lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of 
the underlying asset.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated 
using the estimated useful life ofthe asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment Refer to the accounting policies in Note 3.3 impairment of non- 
financial assets.

Extension and termination options are included in many ofthe leases. In determining the lease term the management considers all facts and circumstances that create 
an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives ofthe assets, as follows: 
Lease hold Land for 60 years

Lease Liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise
• Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) payable during the lease term and under reasonably certain extension options, less any lease incentives;
• Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
• The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

• The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of 
domicile of these leases.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the 
carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments 
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

/ Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an 
• x-. \extenjton or a termination option.xo\

\ • Athse liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows, lease liabilities 
I Jjals been classified as current and non current under the head financial liabilities. The Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of (eases with similar 

/ ScIwKttflXics. 
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Shor btgrm leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Property, Plant & Equipment (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are 

recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term-
On transition to INO AS dated April 1, 2020, the adoption of new standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-Use asset (ROU) of 137.57 lakh, being leasehold land 

recognised as ROU Assets transferred from property, plant & equipment
On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from [ease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for 

interest accrued on lease liability.

Others
The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
(a) Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.
(b) Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application, variable 

lease and low value asset.
(c) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.
(d) The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.5% p.a.

3.10 Provision^ Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset;
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
A Provision is recognised when the Company has present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are discounted to their present value, where the time value of money is material.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as a separata 
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not 
possible that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot 
be made. The Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Other Notes to Financial Statements.

In cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligation is considered improbable or remote, no Provision is recognised or discFowie 

is made.

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not 

recognised though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.11 Equity and Reserves
Share Capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Securities premium includes any premium received on issue of Share Capital.

Other components of equity Include the following:
• Re-measurement of defined benefit liability comprises the actuarial gain or loss from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and return on plan assets.

• Change in fair value of investment in equity instrument designated as Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOC1).
• General Reserve is created mainly on the account of amalgamation.
■ Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits.

3.12 Flnafidal instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. I

Recognition, tnltW measurement and de-ntaxtnI thjn:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those financial assets which arc 

classified at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL) at inception.
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and 
rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.

CWHlItattan and subsequent mensMtgmtnt of nn;n{iat«;eu;
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:
• amortised cost
• financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
• financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOC1)
All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date.
Ai-rwrtised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost using effective interest rates if both of the following conditions are met:
a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and ।

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 

outstanding.

Financial asset; at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that either do not meet the criteria for amortised cost classification or that are equity instruments held for trading at 
that meet certain conditions and are designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments also fall into this category. Assets in this caicjjory 
are measured at fair value with gains or Josses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to acllvir 
market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Financial assets at FVOCI
FVOCI financial assets are either debt instruments that are managed under hold to collect and sell business model or are non-trading equity instruments that are 

irrevocable designated to this category at inception.
FVOCI financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income, except for interest and dividend income, impairment 
losses and foreign exchange differences on monetary assets, which are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

gssLfifiailgajA4 Wbteaugflt measurement of financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at 
FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. All derivative financial instruments are accounted for at FVTPL.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics 
are not dosety related to those of the host contracts and the contracts are not measured at FVTPL
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impairment ot Financial Aww
In accordance with IndAS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to 

receive,

Trade Receivable;
The Company applies approach as specified in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised 

from initial recognition of receivables.
QlhSLfmaiKLaLAsseti
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk 

since initial recognition

Rnanclal guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified party fails to make 
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time the guarantee b 

issued at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher ot 

the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments' and the amount recognized less cumulative 

amortization.
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires

Offsetting financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future 

eventsand must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

3.13 Cash Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheetcomprisecash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are 

subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

3.14 Income Taxes
Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax. it is recognized in The Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in 

equity or in other comprehensive income,

3.15. 1 Current Tax
Current tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the 

tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the end of the reporting period,

3.15. 2 Pcferiedjas
Deferred Tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on 

tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 

corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e., tax base). Deferred tax is also recognized for carry forward of unused tax losses and the unused tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 

forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Company reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit or part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized Any such 

reduction is reversed to the extent that it hernmes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized either in other comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items 

are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to 

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis,

3.16 Investments
i) Investments which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are made, are classified is 

current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. The portion of long-term term investments expected to be realized within 

twelve months after the reporting date are disclosed under current investments.
Il) On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees 

& duties.
iii) Long-Term Investments designated as equity instrument being non trading in nature are measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

iv) Short Term Investments being classified as current investment designated as equity instrument / Debt instrument being trading in nature are measured at Fair 

Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL).

An associate is an entity over which the Company is in a position to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies. Significant influence is the power 
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies Goodwill arising on the acquisition of 

associates is included in the carrying value of investments in associates. The Company's investments in its associate is accounted for using the equity method. Under the 

equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost.
The Company's Investments in its associate is recognised at cost less impairment loss (if any). Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company 
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and 

the fair value of the retained investment and or proceeds from disposal is recognised In profit or loss.

3.17 Revenue Recognition
The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of Iron & Steel products and generate revenue from the sale of the product.

Revenue from sale of product is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the product
At contract inception, the Company assess the goods promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as a performance obligation of each promise to transfer to 
the customer. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of goods is transferred to customers and the Company retains neither continuing 

managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of 

when the payment is being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable 

consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration and excluding taxes 

or duties collected on behalf of the Government
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a) Sale of Goods
Sale of goads Is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration 
defined in the contract with a customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume rebates, or other contractual reductions. As the period between the 
date on which the Company transfers the promised goods to the customer and the date on which the customer pays for these goods is generally one year or less, no 

financing components are taken into account.
Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods 

that will not be returned because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind ASUS 

on constraining estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction 

price for goods that are expected to be returned instead of revenue the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset and corresponding adjustment la 

change in inventory is also recognised for the right to recover products from a customer.

b) Other Operating Revenue
Export incentive and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions and the incentive will be received. 

Insurance & other claims, where quantum of accruals cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are recognised as income only when revenue is virtually certain 

which generally coincides with receipt/acceptance.

c) Interest Income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash receipts aver the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial 

asset.

fenWfl Balances
Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to 
a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of 

consideration is due and the amount is billable.

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) 

from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs obligations under the contract.

3.18 Warnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the result are anti-dilutive

3.19 Cash Statement
Cash Flow Statement presents the Cash Flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company. Cash and Cash equivalents presented in the Cash Flow 

Statement consist of cash on hand, cash at bank, and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

3.20 Proposed Dividend
Dividend recommended/declared after the Balance Sheet Date but before the Financial Statements are approved by Shareholders in the General Meeting are not 
recognized as a liability at the Balance Sheet Date because no obligation exists at the Balance Sheet Date, Such Dividend is disclosed in the Notes.

3.21 Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is 

adjusted within the Financial Statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

3.22 Measuremgnt of Fair Values
A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-fmancial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 

market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use 

of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as fallows, 

based on the input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted ) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3- Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided by the management of the company considering 
the requirements of Ind AS and selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
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4. KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Information about Significant judgements and Key sources of estimation made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Depreciation / Amortization and Impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated/ amortized on straight-line /written down value basis over the estimated useful lives (or lease term 
if shorter) in accordance with Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, taking into account the estimated residual value, wherever applicable.
The company reviews its carrying value of its Tangible and Intangible Assets whenever there is objective evidence that the assets are impaired. In such situation assets 

recoverable amount is estimated which is higher than assets or cash generating units (CGU), fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use 

the estimated future cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rate which reflect the current assessment of time value of money. In determining fair value less 

cost of disposal, recent market realisations are considered or otherwise in absence of such transactions appropriate valuations are adopted. The Company reviews the 

estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortization and amount of impairment expense to be recorded during 

any reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in estimates in future periods.

Income taxes:
Significant judgment is required in determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain expenses during the estimation of the provision for income 
taxes.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets :
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the 
deferred tax assets can be utilized. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

Defined Benefit Obligation (D8O):
Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future 
developments in discount rates, medical cost trends, anticipation of future salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to 
measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting calculations.

Provisions and Contingencies:
The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37 , 'Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best judgement by management regarding the 
probability of exposure to potential loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets :
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortized cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication of impairment. If recoverable 
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Allowances for Doubtful Debts :
The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through appropriate estimations of irrecoverable amount. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of 
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables 
and doubtful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments :
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair 
value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The input to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, 
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk 
and volatility.

Right-of-use assets and lease liability :
The Company has exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with the impact of options to extend or 
terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised. Where the rate implicit in the lease is not readily available, an incremental borrowing rate is applied. This 
incremental borrowing rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, with a similar security, the funds necessary to 
obtain an asset of a similar nature and value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. Determination of the incremental borrowing rate requires 
estimation.



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note No.5 
raw>n;>tv, fimn *<tu

< In Lokhs

Particulars
Gross carry ing Amount Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Amount

As At 
01.04.2024 Addition Deletion / 

Adjustment
As At 

31.03.2025
As At 

01.04.2024 For the Year Deletion / 
Adjustment

As At 
31.03.2025

As At 
31.03.2025

Factory Building & Shed 
Plant & Machineries 
Furniture & Fixture

Vehicles (Incl. Cycle)
Office Equipmenis & Computers

483.86
5,849.53

28.16
558.41

53.08

57.52
0.21

2.84

-

483.86
5,907.05

28.37
558.41

55.92

104.29
1,387.15

10.25
289.98

37.50

27.52
389.61

2.68
76.27

4.47
•

131.80
1,776.76

12.93
366.25

41.97

352.06
4,130.29

15.44
192.17

13.95

Total 6,973.04 60.57 - 7,033.61 1,829.17 500.55 • 2,329.71 4,703.91
Previous Year

Particulars
Gross carry ing Amount Accumulated Depredation Net Carrying Amount

As At 
01.04.2023 Addition Deletion / 

Adjustment
As At 

31.03.2024
As At 

01.04.2023 For the Year Deletion / 
Adjustment

As At 
31.03.2024

As At 
31.03.2024

Factory Building & Shed
Plant & Machineries 
Furniture & Fixture 

Vehicles (Incl. Cycle) 
Office Equipments & Computers

474.40
3,988.68

27.85
542.06

50.68

9.46
1,958.70

0.31
24.01
4.73

97.85
0.00
7.66
2.33

483.86
5,849.53

28.16
558.41

53.08

76.92
1,068.87

7.57
214.40

28.85

27.37
343.94

2.68
76.76

8.65

25.66

1.18

104.29
1,387.15

10.25
289.98

37.50

379.57
4,462.38

17.91
268.43

15.58

Total 5,083.67 1,997.21 107.84 6,973.04 1,396.61 459.40 26.84 1,829.17 5,143.87

B. Title deeds of immovable orooerties not held in the name of the Company
All the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

C. Details of Benami Property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property during the reporting year or any preceding financial years under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 
2016} [formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)] and Rules made thereunder.

D, Disclosure on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company has not revalued it's Property, Plant and Equipment during the current and previous financial year.

E. During the year, the Company acquired a solar plant amounting to < 230.52 lakhs, initially capitalized under Capital Work-in-Progress. Due to technical issues, the asset was not installed and was subsequently sold tor ? 237.43
Lakhs. Accordingly, it was derecognized, and a profit of T 6.92 lakhs was recognized under Other Income.

F. Refer note no. 18 for security given.
Nolt No.6
Right of Use Assets

X In Lakhs

Particulars
Gross camring Amount Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Amount

As At 
01.04.2024

Addition / 
Adjustment

tess: Sales/ 
Adjustments

As At 
31.03.2025

As At 
01.04.2024 For the Year Less: Sales/ 

Adjustments
Upto 

31.03.2025
As At 

31.03.2025
Leasehold Land & Site Development 228.50 228.50 14.81 3.82 - 18.63 209.87

Total 228.50 > - 228.50 14.81 3.82 - 18.63 209.87

Particulars
Gross earnring Amount Accumulated Depredation Net Carrying Amount

As At 
1.01.04.2023

Addition / 
Adjustment

Less: Sales/ 
Adjustments

As At 
31.03.2024

As At 
01.04.2023 For the Year Less: Sales/ 

Adjustments
UptO 

31.03.2024
As At 

31.03.2024
Leasehold Land & Site Development

V ( crX ) «

228.50 > - 228.50 11.00 3.82 ■ 14.81 213.69

Building
cP \ 7 Q ' 42.34 • 42.34 - 31.75 10.58 42.34 -0.00 0.00

Total Vtt. ------- " .c5/ 270.84 • 42.34 228.50 42.75 14.40 42.34 14.81 213.69
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1) Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows: t In Lakhs
Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Short-term leases 17.70 4.60
Leases of low value assets 0.03
Variable lease payments • •

ii] Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31st March, 2025 was T Nil Lakhs (31 March, 2024 :12.59 Lakhs).

iii) The following Is the movement in lease liabilities for the year ended 31st March 2025 t In Lakhs
Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 12.18
Additions •
Finance cost accrued during the year 0.42
Deletions -
Payment of lease liabilities (12.60)

•

iv ) The following are the amounts recognised In the Statement of Profit & Loss: * in Lakhs
Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024
Depreciation exoense of right-of-use assets 3.82 14.40
Interest expense on lease liabilities • 0.42
Interest income on fair value of security deposit - (0.25)
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 17.70 4.60
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (Included in other expenses) • 0.03
Variable lease payments (Included in other expenses) •

Total 21.52 19.20

v) Information about extension and termination options for the FV ended on 31st March, 2025.
Particulars Office Premises Leasehold Land
Number of leases - 1
Range of remaining term (in years) - 55 Years
Average remaining lease term (in years) • 55 Years
Number of leases with extension option • 1
Number of leases with termination option •

Disclosure on revaluation of Right of use Assets
The Company has not revalued it’s Right of use assets during the current and previous reporting period.



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Rin Lakhs

Nate No. Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

7 WgoGfftcnt rinve^rngny.

Investment in Associates

Accounted using Equity regt W 

tn EQUttV shares-unquoted JuPv paid Uflf

14,192.32 •

Giridhan Metal Private Limited of Rs. 10/- 34,00,000 shares, previous year Nil. 14,192.32 -

It During March 2025, the Company invested additional Rs. 909.06 lakhs in Giridhan Metal Private Limited by subscribing to equity shares at premium. Following this 
invest men l. the Company's overall equity stake in Giridhan Metal Private Limited Increased. As a result of the enhanced Investment, the Company is now considered to 
ntxqrctae significant influence over Giridhan Metal Private Limited. Accordingly, Il has been classified at an Associate of the Company with effect from 22nd March, 202$, 
In accordance With the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

"The investment previously classified as 'Investment carried at FVOCI' amounting to Rs. 13,203.25 lakhs has been derecognized. The fair value accumulated in OCI (net 
of deferred tax) as of the date of reclassification continues to remain in equity.'*

3 Investment Carried At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Instruments
Gindhan Metal Private Limited 13,04620

133)46.20

13,046.20Aggregate amount of Unquoted instruments

Details of Investment in unquoted equity ttutmmeni:

Particulars
As at

3 Lrt March, 2024
No. of shares 31.62 Lakhs
Addition in no of Shares •
Toto! No. of Shares 31.82 Lakhs
Face1 Vakie Per shares (in t) 10.00
Fair Value per shares (in <) 410 00

Disclosure on mtqof Invp^mgnt

The Company doesn't have any subsidiary company as defined in Section 2(87) of the Companies Act’2013. The Company has only investment in unquoted share of 
Giridhan Metal Private Limited shown as above.

SA Loans 
Noncurrent
A. Loans to related parties (Refer Note No.431 
(Unwcuiiild,, considered good)

Other financial Assets

A. Non-current
{(J matured, considered goodl
Security Deposit
Bank Deposits formore than 12 months'

Interest Accrued on Sank deposits

10,193.77 5487.91
10,193.77 5487.91

10.193.77 5487.91

4.87

29.21
0.23

447
106.43

2.00

34.35 113.30

9

•Non-current Bank deposits with Bank represents deposits due for realisation after 12 months from the balance sheet date. These are primarily pledged as margin 
murey/ security against issue of Bank guarantees and Letter of Credit.

6- Current

Nen-CmrentTnAMtainetl
Advance tax/TDS/TCS and Income Tax Refundable
Leis Provision for Income Tax

Security Deposits
(Include*  31st March , 2025: R 1.55 Lakhs, 31st March, 2024: R 5.00 to related parties)

1.55 5.00

Foreign Exchange Forward Contract * 1.27
Interest Accrued on Bank deposits 1242 15.22

U.57 21.49

10

3,378-05 
(3,047.41)

3,379 05 
[3,047.41)

13<W4 3MM

11 Other amts

Capital Advances (Unsecured -Considered good)
Credit Impaired
Less : Allowance far credit losses

11.36
2.41

(2.41)

Advances other than Capital Advances
* 11.36

Prepaid Expenses 2148 7.70
Total 19.06

8. Current

Advance! other than Capital Advances

(0 Advances to related parties
Considered Good-Unsecured 4 1.407.57

- - 1,407.67

Considered Good-Unsecured
Credit Impaired
Less : Allowance for credit losses

162 33
12.14

(1244)

151.22
12.14 

(12-14)
162.33 151 22

Balances with Government and statutory authorities 121.05 250.53
Prepaid expenses 20.45 19.57
Advances to Employees 0.53 L53
Export Incentive/Duty Drawback Receivable 5.64 6.50
Pre-spent Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 30) 395 691

TotalIO*IH)

313.95

313.95

446.34

1454.02



3 in Lakhs

SUPERSHAKTI METALIK5 LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March , 2025

13.1

Note No. Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2025
As at 

31st March, 2024

12

13

Inwiwis
Raw Materials

Raw Materials In Transit

Wort In Progress

Finished Goods

StOCO and Spares In Transit

Storrs and Spares*

1,534.96

114.91

147.51

1,265.12

2.21

344.55

2,414.01

63.15

61.08

1,004.88

0.42

429.43

3.40926 3,972.97

•Net of provision of Non moving/Obsolete items (As at 31st March, 2025: 65.70 Lakhs ;As at 31st March, 2024: 65.81 lakhs)

Tradj»R<;c$iv3ble$

dj Considered good - Unsecured 
b) Significant increase in credit risk 
c) Credit Impaired

Less: Allowance for credit losses 
Total

684 IS
21.44
20 00

492.65
21.44
30.38

725.59
41,51

544.47
45.00

684.08 499.47

In determining allowance for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used the practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix The provision matrix 
Ukt I into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information, The expected credit loss allowance is based on ageing of the receivables and rates used in the provision matrix.

13.2

13,3
13.4

TH*  Company considers its maximum exposure to credit risk with respect to customers as at March 31, 2025 to be 664.00 lakhs (March 31,2024: ^499.47 lakhs), which is the carrying value of trade receivables 
after a'towance for credit losses.
The Company's exposure to customers is diversified and only three customer contributes more than 10% ofthe outstanding receivables for an amount ^443.56 lakhs as at March 31, 2025. 88 42 lakhs as at
March 31, 2024)
Trade Receivables are generally on terms of Oto 90 days credit period.
No trade or other receivables are due from Directors ar other officers ofthe Company either severally or jointly with any other person.

For trade receivable outstanding, the ageing schedule Is given below:
Aj at March 31,2028___________________________________________ I in Ukhs

Particulars Outstanding tor touowmg penods from due d«tv wf payment

Not Due
Less than 6 

Month
6 month- 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed Trade receivable -considered gocd-Unsccured
Undisputed Trade receivable - which have significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivable -considered goods-Unsecured
Disputed Trade receivable -which have significant increase in credit risk
DIsDUted Trade receivable -Credit impaired

679.57 4.58

21.44

20.00

684.15

20.00

21.44

Tout • 619.51 43S 21.44 70.00 725.59
Leu Allowance for Credit Jowe» 4151
Total Trade Recevabtes 684 08

As at March 31,2024 < In Lakhs
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due dote of payment

Not Due
Less than 6 

Month
6 month- 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total

Undisputed Trade receivable -considered good-Unsecured
Undisputed Trade receivable - which have significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Credit Impaired
Disputed Trade receivable-considered goods-Unsecured
Disputed Trade receivable -which have significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade receivable-Credit impaired

488.47 4.18

21-44

1 07 29 31

492.65

30.38

21.44

Total 4M47 15.62 >.07 29.31 544.47
AUow.«.forO«miou« 4500

Total Trade Receivables 499 47

Movement in the allowance for Expected Credit Losses * in Lakhs
Particulars

As at March 31. 2025 As at Match 31.2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 45.00 53.94

Add/fless): Exnected credit loss orovided/freversed) (3.49) (8 941

Balance at the end of the year 41.51 45-00



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Kin lakhs

Note No. Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2025
As at 

31st March, 2024

14

15

16

a)

b)

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- In current accounts

Cash on hand 8.60
0.66

14.99
8.60 15.65

Bank balances (other than Note 14)

Bank deposits* 515.16 517.28
515.16 517.28

•Represent balances held as margin money or security against the issuance of Bank guarantees and Letter of Credit.

Kin Lakh
As at 

31st March . 2025
As

31st Ma
at

rch. 2024

Equity share capital No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Authorized Share Capital
Ordinary Equity shares of K10 each

Issued Share Capital
Ordinary Equity shares of K 10 each

Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Ordinary Equity Shares of K10/- each fully paid-up

1,50,00,000 1,500.00 1,50,00,000 1,500.00
1.50.00,000 1,500.00 1,50,00,000 1,500.00

1.15.25.278 1,152.53 1.15.25,278 1,15253
1.15.25.278 1452.53 1.15.25.278 1.152.53

1.15.25.278 1,152.53 1.15.25.278 1.152.53
1.15,25,278 1452.53 1,15.25.278 1452.53

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year;

As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

Particulars No of Shares in Lakhs No of Shares K in Lakh

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year
Add/(Less): Changes in equity share capital during the year

1,15,25,278 1,152.53 1,15,25,278 1,152.53

Equity Shares at the end of the year 1,15,25.278 1,152.53 1,15,25,278 1.152.53

Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the company

Name of the Shareholders

As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

Number % Holding Number % Holding

Khandelwal Finance Private Limited
Veerbhadra Sales Private Limited
Sabita Agarwal
Priti Agarwal
Vibha Agarwal

22,67,114
16,22,204
14,79,142
13,53,000
13.27,000

19.67%
14.08%
12.83%
11.74%
11.51%

22,67,114
16,22,204
14,79,142
13,53,000
13,27,000

19.67%
14.08%
12.83%
11.74%
1151%



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

R in Lakhs

c)

d)

e)

f)

g) 
h) 

i)

Shareholding of Promoters

Name of Promoter

As at 
31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Number of 
Shares

% of shares % of change
Number of 

Shares
% ofshares % of change

Khandelwal Finance Private Limited
Veerbhadra Sales Private Limited
Deepak Agarwal
Dilipp Agarwal

22,67,114
16,22,204

1,51,186
1,25,232

19.67
14.08

1.31
1.09

•
22,67,114
16,22,204
1,51,186
1,25.232

19.67
14.08
1.31
1.09

•

41.65,736 36.15 • 41,65,736 36.15 -

Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares
(i) Voting
The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. Equity Shares having par value of R10 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share 
and equal right for dividend.

(ii) Dividend
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors if any is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim 
dividend.
(Ill) Liquidation
In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after payment of all preferential amounts, in 
proportion to their shareholding.

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of R 0.50/- per equity share for the year ended 31st March, 2025 subject to the approval of shareholders at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Previous Year R 0.50/- per equity share given as dividend to shareholders.

No Equity Shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitmentsfor the sale of shares/disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.
No securities convertible into equity or preference shares have been issued by the company during the year

The company does not have any Holding Company/ Ultimate Holding Company.



SUPERSHAKTI METAL1KS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March , 2025

< in Lakhs

Note No. Particulars
As at 

31st March , 2025

As at 

31st March, 2024

17

a)

b)

c)

«0

18

Other equity
(A) Other Reserves

(i) Securities Premium:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the year

(H) General Reserve:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Balance at the end of the year

(8) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Add/Iless); Actuarial Gain/(Loss) based on the valuation

Less: Tax on above 

less: Final Dividend

Add: Balance transferred due to Investment in Associates

Balance at the end of the year

(C) Other Comprehensive Income

(1) Equity instrument through Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add/(Less): Change in Fair Value

Add/(Less): Tax on above

Less: Balance transferred in Retained Earnings due to Investment in Associates 

Balance at the end of the year

5,197.59 5,197.59

5,197.59 5497.59

25.41 2S.41

25.41 25.41

12,200.02

1,242.98

(4.31)

1.08

(57.63)

7,170.12

10,966.67

1,340.52

10 81

(2.72)

(115 25)

20,552.26 12,200.02

6,449.72

237.06

483.34

(7470.12)

6,383.22

66.50

• 6,449.72

25,775.26 23,872.74

Nature and ouroose of other reserves

Securities premium reserve

•Secu^ri*',  premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act.

General Reserve

Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income ata specified percentage in 

accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mandatory transfer of a specified 

percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. General Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to 

another and is not an item of other comprehensive income.

Retained Earnines
Retained Earnings are created from the profit / loss of the company, as adjusted for distributors to owners, transfer to other reserves etc.

Equity investment through Other Comprehensive Income

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments in Other Comprehensive Income. These 

changes are accumulated within the "Equity investment through Other Comprehensive Income" reserve within equity. The Company transfers 

amounts from this reserve to Retained Earnings when the relevant equity shares are derecognised.

Borrowings

Nan Current

1.23 75.34Vehicle Loan**

Total secured borrowings (A)

Break up of Security Details

Secured

Current
Short Term Borrowings

Vehicle Loan 

Unsecured Loan - from Others

Break up of Security Details
Secured

Unsecured

Laan Repayable on Demand
-Working capital Loans*

Other Loan /A&
Suppliers Credit/Foreign Bill Payable O \

/f3/ Z \G>\
I o ( Vp£2 ) * | 
1 cr \ XL 1^1
\ \ / c*  /

The above amount includes /

1.23 75.34

1.23 75.34

1.23 75.34

73.40

200.00

67.30

273.40 67.30

73.40

200.00

67.30

273.40 67.30

387.95 825.46
387.95 825.46

1,261.54 1.011.90
1,261.54 1,011.90

1,922.89 1,904.66

Secured Borrowings

Unsecured Borrowings

1,722.89

200.00
1,904.66

1,922.89 1,904.66

♦Details of Security:

Working capital loan from Banks of 387.95 lakhs (As on 31st March, 2024 - 825.46 lakhs) is secured by first pari- passu charge on the entire current 

assets and second pari passu charge on the entire fixed assets of Durgapur Plant at Kanjilal Avenue, of the Company, Personal Guarantee of directors 

and relatives and Corporate Guarantee of some of the shareholders.



SUPERSHAKTI METAUKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

^in Lakhs

Note No. Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2025
As at 

31st March, 2024

♦"Details of security & Terms of Repayment of Secured Loans from Banks

Name of the Bank
Non Current 
Maturities

Current 
Maturities

Nature of Security Rate of Interest(%) Repayment Terms Installment Due

Union Bank of India 123 73 40

Hypothecation of 
respective assets 

procured against the 
Loan.

8.70%
14 monthly installment of 
6,50,240/- (including Interest) 
ending on 31st May 2026

14

Total 123 73.40

19

20

Not ci.
(i) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 

where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority. y

A Non-current
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No. 41)
Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note No. 41)

227 89
10.75

218.02
8 99

B. Current
provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No. 41)
Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note No. 41)

23864 227.01

32.42
1383

23 10
22.11

46.25 45.21

Deferred Tax (iobiutlpj

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Noe|

285.58
1,194.51

(3.15)

67.56
16.53
10 45 
nnj

252.99
1,677.85

3,04

65.65
16.56
11.32
0.96

Deferred Tax Liability arisin£on accounjtof
Property, Plant & Equipment
Fair Valuation of Investment
On the Remeasuement Defined Benefit Obligation & Others 
les,: Deterred Tat A««t Jrltlnc on account of
Provision for Employee Benefit (As per section 43B of Income Tax Act,1961)
Provision for Slow and Non-Moving Items
On Expected Credit Loss of Trade Receivable
On Others

Closing Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 1,382.38 1,83939

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and 3ist March, 2024

As at 
1st April, 2024

Recognized in 
Statement of 
Profit and Loss

Recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income

As at
3111 March, 2025

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities
Pronertv Plant & Eaulaments
Fair Valuation of Investment [Refer note below (i) to (iv)]

On the Remeasuement Defined Benefit Obligation & Others

(A|
Deferred Income Tax Assets
Provision for Employee Benefit (As per section 43B of Income Tax Act,1961)
Provision for Slow and Non-Moving Items
On Expected Credit Loss of Trade Receivable
On Others

(Bl

(A-B)

252,99

1,677.85

3.04

32.59

0.00

(5.111

(483 34)

(1,08)

285.58

1,194.51

(3.15)

1,933.88 27.4B (484.43) 1,476.94

65.65
16.56
11.32
0.96

1.92 
(0 03) 
(0.87) 
(0.94)

• 67.56
16.53
10.45

0.02

94.49 0.06 i 94.56

1,839,39 27.42 (484.43) 1,382.38

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities durine the vear ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023

Particulars
As at
1st April, 2023

Recognized in 
Statement of 
Profit and Loss

Recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income

As at
31st March, 2024

Deferred tncomo Tax Dab 1 titles
Pronertv. Plant & Eaui aments
Fair Valuation of Investment [Refer note below (i) to (iv)]
On Right of Use Assets
On the Remeasuement Defined Benefit Obligation & Others

(A)
Deferred Income Tax Assets
Provision for Employee Benefit (As per section 43B of Income Tax Act,1961)
Provision for Slow and Non-Moving Items
Un Expected Credit Loss of Trade Receivable

Un Lease Liabilities
On Others

(6)
|A • 6]

226.72

1,744.36
2.66
1.11

26 27'

(000) 
(2-6SI 
<0.791

(66 50)

2.72

25299

1,677 85
0 00
3.04

UJM.UI. 22.83 (&3.7oj 1.93113

58 43 
19.20
13 57

3.07 
0.06

7.22 
(2-64) 
1^25) 
U07J 
0,90

65.65
1656
11.32

0.96
SA, 33 6.16 51.4!

UIM.H! 22.66 I.UJiUU

z , \Q
// V*(ll) The company had invested in 3,182,000 equity shares at Rs. 10 per share in Giridhan Metal Private Limited from FY 2019-20 to 2021-22, and this investment had been classified ( 

value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) in accordance with Ind AS 109 The fair value of the investment in unquoted equity shares was assessed ay the company based on IKu
V -report issued by a valuation expert, i e., a registered valuer, at the end of each reporting ceriod Any changes in fair value are recorded in other comprehensive income. AddarisnalIjw, x

X
J tax for such changes in fair value was recorded after considering the cost inflation index (CH) as per income tax act, given the long-term nature of the investment x

During the previous financial year 2023-24, the equity investment was valued at ^410 per share, the same as it was in the preceeding to the previous financial year, indicating no 

CbftnfP in fair valuation during the previous financial year However, there was an increase in the Cost Inflation Index (ClI) from 331 in FY 2022-23 to 348 in FY 2023-24 As a result of tins 

eHonje in Cll, the indexed cost of acquisition increased from ^5,558 41 lakhs to ^5,843,89 lakhs. This led to a reversal of deferred tax liability amounting to T66 50 lakhs during the previous 

'^porting period

(rv) During the year, the Finance Act, 2024 introduced amendments to the long-term capital gains (LTCG) tax regime The applicable tax rate changed from 20% with indexation to 12iS% 

Without indexation, which resulted in a further reversal of net deferred tax liability of ^484.43 lakhs.

(v) During the year, this investment has been reclassified as an investment in associates due co an increase in the holding of equity shares (Refer Note No 7)

Acc<^



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

X in Lakhs

Note No. Particulars As at 
31st March ,2025

As at 
31st March, 2024

21

22

23

24

Trade payables
For goods and services

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
■ Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Acceptance
Trade Payable

180.71

2,989 50

25.54

663 75
1.356.59

3.170.21 2.045.88
(Includes 31st March, 2025 : X 995.41 Lakhs, 31st March, 2024: X 67.47 Lakhs to Related parties)

a) Age analysis of Trade Payable
As at 31st March, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Not Due Less Than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed dues - MSME 
Undisputed dues- Others 
Disputed dues- MSME 
Disputed dues- Others

808.71 995.41
180.71

1,176.20 2.66 6.52

•

180.71
2,989 50

808.71 JK.'il 1,356.91 2,u6 6.52 • 3,170.21

As at March 31,2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment j

Unbilled Not Due Less Than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed dues - MSME 
Undisputed dues- Others 
Disputed dues- MSME 
Disputed dues- Others

829.09 67.47
25.54

1,120.63 3.18

25.54
2,020.34

829.09 67.47 1,146.17 3.18 2,045.88

b) Information as required to he furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Art) for the year ended 31st March 2025 and 
year ended 31st March 2024 is given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the 
Company,

Particulars
As at 

31th March, 2025
As at 

31st March, 2024

a) The Principal amount and interest due thereon on amount remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year.

180.71 25.54

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Act,2006 along with the amounts of payment made to the supplier 

beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. Nil Nil
c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have paid but beyond the appointed day during 1 

the year but without adding interest specified under Act) NII Nii

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.
Nil NII

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years Nil Nil

Other Current financial liabilities

Employee Related Liabilities
(Includes 31st March , 2025: X 9.78 Lakhs, 31st March, 2024: X 11.72 Lakhs to Related parties)

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Amount Payable for Capital Goods
Foreign Exchange Forward Contract

148.71

20.95
50.50
8.22

146.04

430
19.08

228.38 169.42

Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for income tax (Net of advance) 45.69

45.69 -

Other current liabilities
Advance Received from Customer 
Statutory dues

614.74
58.17

268 46
34.91

672.91 303.37



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

in Lakhs

Note 
No Particulars For the year ended 

31st March, 2025
For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

25

(i)

(«)

(iii)

(«v)

Revenue from operations
Sale of Products
Domestic Sale
Export Sale
Trading Sale

Total (A)
(B) Other operating revenues

Export Benefits
Total (B) 

Total (A+B)

71,295.56
411.20

1,991.54

70,952.55
140.53

2,048.20
73,698.30 73,141.28

5.65 •
5.65 -

73,703.95 73,141.28

Nature of goods and services
The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of Iron & Steel products and generate revenue from the sale of the product. It is also 
the only reportable segment of the Company.
Disaggregation of revenue for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by major products lines and primary geographical market etc.

-Based on major products
73,698.30 73,141.28Iron & Steel Products 

Others

-Based on geographical market
73,698.30 73,141.28

73,287.10
411.20

73,000.75
140.53

India
Outside India

73,698.30 73,141.28

Contract balances
The following table provides Information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities frnm contracts with customers.

Receivables, which are included in 'Trade receivable’
Contract Assets
Contract Liabilities

684.08

614.74

499.47

268.46

Reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with Contracted price
Revenue as per Contracted price 
Less: Discounts and Commissions

73,698.30 73,141.28

Revenue from Contract with Customers 73,698.30 73,141.28



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

^in Lakhs
Note 

No
Particulars For the year ended 

31st March, 2025
For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

26 Other income
Interest Income
On Margin Money
On Unwinding of Interest on Financial Assets
On Unsecured Loan to Related Party
On Others

37.08

586.96

39.73
0.25

599.13
0.50

Other Non-Operating Income:
Insurance Claim and Miscellaneous Receipt
Net Gain on sales of property, plant & equipment (Refer Note No.5E)
Net Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency Transactions
Net Gain arising from Financial Instruments designated as FVTPL
Reversal of allowances for Credit losses
Provision for Non-moving/ Obsolete Store Item
Liabilities no longer required written back

89.67
6.92

34.30

5.90
0.12
1.40

62.89
2.25

12.92
1.20

19.63
10.46

3.49
Total 762.35 752.45

27 Cost of Materials Consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

2,414.01
55,369.73

2,006.75
55,614.12

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
57,783.74

1,534.96
57,620.87

2,414.01
Total 56,248.78 55,206.86

28 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, & Work-In Progress

(A) Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods
Work In progress

1,265.12
147.51

1,004.88
61.08

(B) Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods
Work In progress

Total (A) 1,412.63

1,004.88
61.08

1,065.96

1,041.55
126.46

Total (B) 1,065.96 1,168.01
Changes in Inventories (B-A) (346.67) 102.05

29 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, Wages & Bonus
Managerial Remuneration
Contribution to Provident and Other funds
Gratuity Expenses (Refer Note No 41) 
Staff Welfare Expenses

1,275.40
13.85
65.37
38.48

1.23

1,146.81
19.53
63.66
37.06

1.55
Total 1,394.33 1,268.61



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

in Lakhs

Note 
No Particulars

For the year ended 
31st March, 2025

For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

30

31

32

Finance costs
(i) Interest Expenses

- on Working Capital loan
- on Vehicle loan
- on Unsecured loan
- on Lease Liabilities
- on others

(ii) Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to Borrowing Cost
(ill) Other Borrowing Cost

Total

45.42
10.02

0.22

0.01
16.35

147.01

64.59
15.14

042
1.59

194.98
219.03 276.72

Depreciation and amortization Expenses
Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment
Depreciation on Right of use Assets

Total

500.55
3.82

459.40
14.40

504.37 473.80

Other Expenses
Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores & Spares
Power & Fuel
Repairs to Machinery
Job /Labour Charges
Other Manufacturing Expenses

TOTAL (A)

1,685.94
9,597.93

72.29
744.21

65.66

1,795.75
9,829.13

25.22
669.42

52.20
12,166.03 12,371.72

Selling & Administration Expenses
Advertisement, Subscription and Business Promotion Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note No. 38)
Carriage Outwards /Forwarding Charges
Fees, Rates & Taxes (Refer Note No 36.1)
Bank Charges
Insurance
Director's Sitting Fees
Net Loss arising from Financial Instruments designated as FVTPL
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Rent
Repairs to other Assets
Professional & Legal Expenses (Incudes Retainership Fees)
Printing & Stationery
Auditor's Remuneration & Expenses
Bad Debts / Sundry Balances written off
Security Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses

TOTAL (B)

TOTAL (A+8)

0.60
57.30

2.40
310.00

1.58
20.23

0.93
8.22

21.86
17.70
12.25
43.45

4.10
11.04

0.15
64.60
20.63

27.27
56.48

0.87
52.96

0.54
19.93

0.98

22.18
4.63

18.11
47.72

5.26
10.80

9.71
63.06
21.55

597.04 362.05

12,763.07 12,733.77
32.1 Payment to auditors

As auditors
Statutory Audit fees
Limited Review
Reimbursement of expenses

7.50
3.00
0.54

7.50
3.00
0.30

11.04 10.80



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

in Lakhs

Note 
No Particulars For the year ended 

31st March, 2025
For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

33 Tax expenses
Income tax recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax
Deferred tax

436.12
27.42

426.76
22.66

• 463.54 449.42

34 Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at Indian statutory Income tax rate to income tax expense reported in statement of comprehensive 
Income

Profit/(loss) before tax
Indian statutory income tax rate

1,706.52
25.17%

1,789.94
25.17%

Expected Income tax expenses as per statutory income tax rate 
Tax effect on:

Non Deductible Expenses
Deduction as per Income Tax Act'1961
Others

429.50

35.87
(6.19)
4.36

450.49

13.25
(2.21)

(12.12)
Tax Expenses as reported 463.54 449.42
Effective Tax Rate 27.16% 25.11%

The tax rate used for the 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 25.17%, payable by corporate 
entities in India on taxable profits under Indian Income Tax Laws.

35 Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and Loss

(a) Fair Valuation of Investments in equity instruments designated at OCI
(b) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit plans
Add/Less : Tax expense on the above

237.06
(4.31)

484.43
10.81
63.78

717.18 74.59
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SUPERSHAKTI MET AU US LIMITED 
Note* forming part of the StJndilone flnincijl Statements for the year ended 3Ut March, 2O2S

tlnUhhi

Particular!
For the year ended 

31 March, 2025
For theyear ended 

31 March, 2024

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not recorded a liability In accounts)
(I) Contingent Liabilities if *

Litigation for various matters relating to:
-Excise Duty, Service Tax & Goods & Services Tax
Amount deposited under protest (As at March,31,2025 t 97 47 Lacs, March 31, 2024: T1S196 Lacs)
-Income Tax

ft Figures consists of original demand, Interest and penalty net of payment made under protest
(01 Commitments
(a) Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on account of capital goods and not provided as liability in accounts (Net of Capital Advances)

(b) Other Commitments
Outstanding Bank Guarantee

7,449 64

71,00

7,B09 10

74.68
7.52064 7.AA178

2*515.47

28 52

2*953  70
2515.47 2.98? 30

0 The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements, 
Tfwj Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its financial statements

’The Company has given Corporate Guarantee to Giridhan Metal Private Limited for availing its various credit facilities to the extent of its cost of investment i.e. 4330.06 Lakhs, 1

During the year ended March 31st, 2025, the Company has paid Rs. 274.66 lakhs for Goods and Services Tax expenses related to earlier years.” The same has been Included under the head "Other Expenses"

Others Additional Statutory Information:

Ut»fn»tion Qf
Thff Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date

During the current and previous year there are no Loans or Advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties, that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or 
period of repayment

Detain of loans given by the Company under Section ISbcf the Companies Act, 2013. during the financial year 2024-25 are given below;

Name of the Entity Relation
Amount of Loan 
Given during the 
Year(e In Lakhs)

Amount 
outstanding as on 
31/03/2025

Particulars of loan, 
guarantee and 
investments

Purpose for which 
the loan is proposed 
to be utilised

Promotional Equity Services Pvt. Ltd Refer Note No 
42

300 00 1,393.77 Loan Business Purpose

Disclosure relating to amount outstanding at year end of loans and advances, in n 
disclosure of guarantee given or security provided in connection with a loan to an

ature of loan, required under 5EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,and 
other body corporate or person required under section 136(4) of the Companies*!  Act. 2013 pre f iven below:

Name of the Entity Relation
Nature of 
Transaction

Purpose

Maximum
Amount 
Outstanding 
durfne the FY 24-25

As at 31 March 25

Maximum 
Amount 
Outstanding 
durinelheFY 23-24

As at 31 March 24

Giridhan Metal Private Limited Associate
loan given

Business
Purpose

9,800 00 8,800.00 •

Guarantee 
provided to Bank

For taking loan 
from Bank

4,930 06 4,920.06 4,930 06 4,990 06

WWolOofoufttr
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India

»tVxipnV,ip.»i(hS<w*«ILroT<>«niti

The Camp,my does not have any transactions with companies struck off as defined in Section 248 of the Companies Act12013 orsertion 560 of Companies Art, 1956,

BMiHratlon cl O»TO 81 action will. HOC
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Disclosure on compU>nc« with approved xhcmdO of Awart«cmcnt$
During the year no Scheme of Arrangement has been formulated by the Company/pending with competent authority

Otxlou-ic of UVilHtlon of Borrowed funds and share premium
No Funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
The Company has not received any fund from any party ($) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or □nbe+uli 
of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Mwtl uMlttlWWUdWOW
During the year, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
Aceordmgfy, there are no transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts

Prieto of Qnrpio Currency pr Virtual. CtfgWY
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the Current financial year

the dlufaiuto in respect of CSR Expenditure is as under:
TtnUkhs

SENO. Particulars 31-03-2025 3103 202-1
A Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year (2% of Av£_Net juofit asper section 135(5)} S73fl S5.48
a Setoff (available from Dreviours veer) 6.91 532
c Total amounts required to be spent during the vear SO 39 5116

Amount approved by the Board to be scent during the vear 5100 5116

Amount Scent during the Vear 54.94 58.07

d Shortt an / (facets) at the end of the year (3.951 (6.91)
Excess amount Co be carried forward for next year eligible for set off I Refer No 11) 3-95 6 91

f Nature of CSR activities
Activities specified in Schedule VII cf the Act Protection of Flora, Rural Development 

Project, Traffic Awareness, Promoting 
Healthcare and Education

g details of related partv transactions 44 75 58 06

Note; The major portion of CSR expenditure incurred by the company through a charitable trust Supershakti Foundation - The objectives of Supershakti Foundation includes working in areas of social, economic and health 
and hygiene awareness, women empowerment education , Rural Infrastructure development, promote flora / fauna etc

Tin- Code on Social Security, 2020 (’Code1) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment received Indian Parliament approval and Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been 

pubhlhed in the Gazette of India and subsequently on November 13. 2020 draft rules were published and invited for stakeholders' suggestions However, the date an which the Code will came into effect has not tMW 

notified. The Company will assess the impart of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Note No 40
1 Borrowing secured against current assets

RECONCILIATION OF STOCK STATEMENT

The Company has been sanctioned working capital facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The company has filed quarterly returns/ statements with such 
banks which are not in agreement with the audited books of account, however such differences between the amounts disclosed to the banks and those as per the books of accounts 
have been reconciled. Refer table below for summary of reconciliation and reasons of material discrepancies

in Lakh

Name of bank / Financial 
Institution Sanction Limit Quarter ended

Amount as reported Reason for 
Material 

difference
Nature of current Assets / Liabilities

Amount as per . , in the quarterly books of
Amount of 

difference (B-A)return/!
account (A)

Tatement 
Bl

Trade Receivables 1,154.89 1,042.25 (112.64) Note 1
Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 321.37 321.37 - Note 2

of Baroda /Union Bank of 11,200 June 30, 2023 Inventories 3,278.21 3,392.65 114.44 Note 2

India Trade Payables for supplies 2,305.25 970.12 (1,335.13) Note 3
Advance from Customers 150.68 144.11 (6.57) Note 1

Trade Receivables 888.30 776.05 (112.25) Note 1
Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 15.27 15.27 - Note 2

of Baroda /Union Bank of 11,200 September 30, 2023 Inventories 4,971.17 4,957.47 (13.70) Note 2
India Trade Payables for supplies 4,076.55 2,861.66 (1,214.89) Note 3

Advance from Customers 385.16 323.01 (62.15) Note 1

Trade Receivables 1,053.14 1,037.31 (15.83) Note 1

Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 227.55 154.83 (72.72) Note 2

of Baroda /Union Bank of 11,200 December 31, 2023 Inventories 2,406.23 2,573.99 167.76 Note 2

India Trade Payables for supplies 3,294.28 2,083.87 (1,210.41) Note 3

Advance from Customers 390.32 390.42 0.10 Note 1

Trade Receivables 499.47 943.69 444.22 Note 1
Indian Overseas Bank / Bank

11,200
Advance against Raw Materials 1,555.41 1,949.50 394.09 Note 2

India
Inventories
Trade Payables for supplies 2,045.88 2,013.43 (32.45)

Noce z
Note 3

Advance from Customers 268.46 —179.39 (89.07) Notel

Trade Receivables 1,155.46 1,151.91 (355) Notel
Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 193.96 193.96 • Note 2

of Baroda /Union Bank of 11,200 June 30, 2024 Inventories 3,357.84 3,861.37 503.53 Note 2

India Trade Payables for supplies 1,411.52 559.63 (851.89) Note 3
Advance from Customers 189.12 189.51 0.39 Notel

Trade Receivables 882.37 879.92 (2.45) Note 1
Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 562.29 584.93 22.64 Note 2

of Baroda /Union Bank of 11,200 September 30, 2024 Inventories 2,961.60 3,467.96 506.36 Note 2

India Trade Payables for supplies 1,308.14 506.20 (801.94) Note 3
Advance from Customers 592.38 592.50 0.12 Note 1

Trade Receivables 1,227.87 1,224.93 (2 94) Note 1

Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 84.04 770.15 686.11 Note 2

of Baroda /Union Bank of 11,200 December 31, 2024 Inventories 3,424.33 4,018.63 594.30 Note 2

India Trade Payables for supplies 1,597.98 1,387.61 (210.37) Note 3

Advance from Customers 76.62 76.81 0.19 Note 1

Trade Receivables 684.00 820.38 136.30 Notel
Indian Overseas Bank/ Bank

11,200 # March 31, 2025
Advance against Raw Materials 126.24 195.17 68.93 Note 2

of Baroda /Union Bank of Inventories 3,409.26 3,405.74 (3.52) Note 2

India Trade Payables for supplies 3,170.21 2,209.05 (961.16) Note 3
Advance from Customers 614.74 —459-99 (154.75) Note 1

m »■! Figures mention in quarterly return/ statement represents the details taken from books of accounts dated 25th March, 2025 and P.Y. 25th March 2024.

Notes

Note 1: Impact of sales reversal/ adjustments arising out of provision for debit and credit notes/ expected credit loss provision/ debtors beyond 120 days not considered in returns/ 

statements submitted to the banks.

Note 2: Adjustments pertaining to cut offs, goods in transit, overhead allocation on work-in-progress and finished goods, etc. are done only on finalisation of books of accounts/financial 

statements. Same has not been considered in returns/statements submitted to the banks.
Note 3: Impact of provision for operational expenses not considered in returns/statements submitted to the banks.



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March. 2025

41 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard -19 'Employee Benefits' as notified u/s 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

a) Defined Contribution Plan
The amount recounted as an expense for the Defined Contribution Plans are as under 3 In Lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March, 2025
For the year ended 

31 March, 2024
Employer’s Contribution to Provident Fund 48 85 46.57
Employer’s Contribution to Employees' Stale Insurance Corporation 1636 17.03

b|

ID

(il)

(ill) 

c)

d)

Defined Benefit Plan
The following are the types of defined benefit plans:

Gratuity Plan
Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to gratuity on terms not less favourable than the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The present value ol 
defined obligation and related current costare measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being carried out at Balance Sheet date,

Provident Fund
2rovident Fund (other than government administered) as per the provisions of the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

Leave obligations
The Obligation for Leave encashment is determined and recognised in the same manner as gratuity.

Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the company Is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
a) Interest rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus 
result In an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

b) Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of 
salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

c) Demographic risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse 
compared to the assumption.

d) Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/ cash equivalent to meet the liabilities 
or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

e) Regulatory Rrsk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with rhe requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from rime to time). There is a risk of change in regulations 
requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of ? 20 Lakhs).

f) Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration ofthe liability is longer compared to duration of assets.exposingthe Company to market risk for volatilities/fall in interest rate.

g) Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.

Details of Defined Benefit Obligations : in Lakhs
The following tabic shows a reconcitovon from the opening balances to the ctofing balances for the net defined benefit Obligations
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Unfunded) Leave Encashment

2024-25 2023*24 2024-25 2023*24 2024-25 2023*24
Balance at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost

Interest Expense or Cost
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions

Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)
Benefits Paid

178 64
8.44

12.85

5.82
(2756)

169 18
8 91

12 63

3,43 

(15 51J

63.45
12.69

4.56

4 59

21.46
(2361)

52 10 
1170

3.89

1,99

(0-72) 
(5-52)

9.17
3.33

0 66

0.57
1104) 
(0 23)

8 33 
143

0.65

0.25

(0.03) 
(2 02)

Balance at the end of the year 178.19 178 64 83.14 6345 12.46 9.17

e| Change in Plan Assets:
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the clo$<ng balances for the Plan Assets and is components.

Particulars Gratuity (funded)
2024-25 2023 24

Balance at the beginning of the year
Investment Income
Benefits Paid
Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense

0.96
0 07

0.89
0.07

0.00
Balance at the end of the year 1.03 0.96

t) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets & Obligation - Net Defined Benefit Assets / (liability) recognised in financial statements;

Particulars
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Unfunded) Leave Encashment

2024-25 7073-74 2024 25 2023 24 2024-25 2023-24

Present value uf Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Surplus / (Deficit)
Effects of Assets Ceiling. if any

17R 19
1.03

178 64
096

83.14 63 45 12.46 9.17

(177 16) (177.68) 183.14) (614$) (12 46) (9.17)

Net Assets/ (Liability) recognised In the Balance Sheet (177.16) (177.68) (SMS) (M.SS) (12.S6) (9.17)

s) Expenses recognlicd in profit or loss

Particulars
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity Unfunded) leave Encashment

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023*24 2024*25 2023*24
Current Service Cost
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability/ 
(Asset}
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions

Experience variance (i.e. Actual e»oer cnce>r*TrpTftrtHi&)

8 44

12 78

8 91

12.56

12.69

4.56

11.70

3 89

3.33

0 66

0.57

(1.04)

1.43

0 66

0.25

(003)
toui /.GnIPk 21.22 21.47 17.25 15.59 3.52 2.31



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED

Motes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

h) Remcasurements recognhed in other comprehensive Income * In lakhs

Particulars
Gratulh (Funded] Gratuity (Unfunded]

2024 25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
Re measurements:

(Galn)/loss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions

Experience variance (i.e. Actual Experience vs assumptions)

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 
interest expense

5.82

(27.56)

3.43

(15.51)

(0.00)

4.59

21.46

1.99

(0.72)

Components of denned benefit costs recognised in other 
comprehensive income (21.74) 112.08) 26.05

1.27

Major Categories of Plan Assets

Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
2024-25 2023-24

Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%

(i) The Gratuity Scheme is invested in a Group Gratuity - Cum - Life Assurance Cash accumulation policy offered by Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India. The information on the allocation of the 
fund into major asset classes and expected return on each major class are not readily available. The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return provided by th« 

company.

(0 Asset Liability Matching Strategies
The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically >1 year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the Interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one 
year. The Insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the year (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, 
mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest 
rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which should result in a increase In liability without corresponding increase Jn the asset). The scheme Is managed on unfunded basis.

j)

Particulars
Gratuity [Funded) Gratuity {Unfunded) Leave Encashment (Unfunded]

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

Financial Assumptions
Discount Rate (per annum) 6,75% 7.20% 6.75% 7.20% 6.75% 7.20%
Salary Escalation Rate (per annum)
Demographic Assumptions

7.80% 7.80% 7.80% 7.90% 7.00% 7.00%

100% of IALM 100% of IALM 100% of IALM 100% of IALM 2012- 100% of IALM 100% of IALM

MortsHty Rate
2012-2014 2012-2014 2012-2014 2014 2012-2014 2012-2014

Normn-l retirement age
Attrition I Withdrawal Rates

58 Years 58 Years 58 Years । 58 Years 58 Years , SB Years

Upto 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2 00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1_00% 1.00%

kl The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion, past experience and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in 
the employment market.

Maturity Analysis

The distribution of the timing of benefits payment l.e., the maturity analysis of the benefit payments is as follows:

Expected cash flows over the next (Valued on un discounted 
basis);

Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity Unfunded] leave Encashment (Unfunded!
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

1 Year 27.24 20 88 6.21 3-18 1.70 0.19
2 to 5 Years 47.37 48.73 9.95 10.22 L09 1.85
6 to 10 Years 99.17 106.03 29.41 22.02 5.76 5.13
More than 10 Years 141.25 163.66 185.83 156.25 20.36 17.25
Weighted average duration, of defined twnnfit obligation |boted 
on discounted cashflows)

7 years 8 years 13 years 13 years 11 years 12 years

Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring 
at the end of the reporting period Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the 
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Gratuity (Funded)

Variable
Sensitivity 

Level

Effect on Defined Benefit Obligations
Gratuity (Funded)

31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024
Increase Decrease Increase Dccrwie

Discount Rate ./•!% 165.75 192.15 16559 193.32
Salary Escalation Rate •/-!•/. 191 87 165.76 193.09 165.54
Attrition raw +A 50% 177.83 17857 178.42 178 87
Mortality rate +/-10% 178.16 178.22 17S63 178 66

Gratuity (Unfunded)

Variable
Sensitivity 

Level

Effect on Defined Benefit Obligations
31 Ma rch, 2025 31 Mar h, 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount Rate 1% 73.46 94.74 56.02 72.32
Salary Escalation Rate */-!% 93.40 74.38 71.27 56.78
Attrition rate ♦/ 50% 82.77 83.58 53.29 63.61
Mortality rate »/■ 10% 83.15 93.15 53.45 6343

Leave Encashment

Variable
Sensitivity 

Level

Effect on Defined Benefit Obligations
31 March. 2025 31 March, 2024

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount Rate IK 1L2S 1337 8-22 10.30
Salary Escalation Rate ~ "V7 ♦/•!% 1335 11.24 1030 8.21
Anribon rate Z' f. H1 \ ♦/-50% 12.44 12.47 9.19 9.17
Mortality rate ♦/• 10% 12.45 12.46 9.18 9.18

o
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_________ __________________________________________Noles forming part of the Standalone financial Statement*  for the year ended 31st March, 2025 
42 Related Party Diutoiurn:
1. Relationships

(I) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

A Executive Directors 
Sudipto Bhattacharyya (Whole Time Director, Ceased to be company w.e f. 29.09 2024) 
Rudra Narayan Jana (Whole Time Director, Appointed w.c.f 1X11,2024)

B. Key Management Personnel (KMP) other than above 
Shyam S. Samani (Chief Financial Officer) 
Navin Agarwal (Company Secretary)

(Ri Son-Uccutivc Dvecton
Dilipp Agarwal (Director)
Deepak Agarwal ( Director)
Shawna Khanna (Independent Director)
Vijay Kumar Bhandari (Independent Director,Ceased to be company w.e.f. 08 10.2024)
Ra [an Kumar Manchanda (Independent Director, Appointed w.e.I.13.11,2024)

Tuhinanshu Chakraborty Shekhar (Independent Director)
(iii) Associate 

Giridhan Metal Private Limited, (w.e.1. 22nd March, 2025 )
(iv) Close Member of KMP 

Sitaram Agarwal 
Sab its Agarwal 
Vibha Agarwal 
Prill Agarwal

!v) Enterprises over which key management personnel and relatives of such personnel exercise significant influence and control (others) 

Super Smelters limited 
Sal El e cl recasting P riva le Lim i ted 
Linkview Realty Private Limited 
Supershakti Foundation
Supershakti FMS & Consultants Private Limited

________________________________________________________________________________________________________

2- Transactions with Related Parties ___________ ___________ ______________ RtntaMii

Effi
[otrrT'iirt gyrr CMp and

a^gnRfcwrtt JnAuencw
IM

2024-2$ 2023-24 2C24ZS 2022-24
Y^ar tnded 

2BM-2S 3323-24 2024-2$ 202324
Yayfndad

2024-B 2023-24
O’Good j

Super Smelters limited
GfctdhM Metal Private Limited 
$41 Ueclrootime Private limited 
ai« «ijjosy»±«M»
Sttpat Smelters Limited
Gwionan Metal Private Limited 
Su Elect recast Ing Private Limited

Isneaceuaensslmi
Guidkan Metal Private Limited

Promotional Equity Services Private Limited
G rtdOah Metal Private Limited 
lean gjpaymru
Promotional Equity Services P-ivate Limited 
u ndhan Metal Private Limited
-.IC-CM lr(p —

Pr0r’O*lcn»l  Equity Services Private Limited
Gu>jh«n Metal Private Um it cd

slteMcio
Suoer Smelters limited
Rrs<?vt*T  of lapefscy
Super Smelters Limited
5«pfrthakt> FMS & Consultants Private Limited
Rent prafeH'pnaJJxv/ frAgnP L?‘
linkv.ew Realty Private Limited

FMS & Consultants Private limited

Lmb- "ratty Rrvat*  Umitrd
MlMAMMflUMiiti
Supertfiain Foundation
Hm-ra-Ver-p'^ S. pthtn
$ud*9!»  Bhattacharyya
Rudra Narayan Jana
JMrnS. Somani
Maw Afarwai
Director Sitting Feet
BAawna Khanna
VtfiT Kumar Bhandari
Rajan Kumar Manchanda
TuWiVihw Chakrabarty Shekhar
tXMdrnd
Orrsah Agarwal
D>pO Agarwal
$ab*u«carwil
VibM Agarwal
Pntl Agarwal

29,976.99

2,524-51

909 06

9 300 00

1,000 00

2QS OS

20.41 19.53
9 56 •

51,77 52-00
15.21 14.95

0.38 0 38
0 23 

013 
0 43 0 38

0 75 L.51
0.63 L 25

7.39 14.79
6 63 13.27
6 76 13.53

5,703 31 15,556,46
30,172.72

• 249,73

250.07 2,377.94
• 256 75

722,09 472.03

300.00 2,050-00

4,794.14 1,162.09

38X91 599.13

6.GO ' 37.92

0 24
- 1.56

20,43 1857
-20.00

155 5 00

44.75 38 06

5,703 31 15,556.46
29,976 99 30,17X72

- 249.73

250.07 2,377.94
2,57451 256-75

722.89 472,03

909.06

300 00 2,850.00
9,00000

4,794.14 1,162,09
1,000.00

381.91 599,13
205 05

6 60 37.92

0 24 
• 1 56

20 43 18-57
20 00 *

1.55 5 00

44.75 58,06

20.41 19.53
9.66 •

SL77 S2.00
15 21 14-95

0.38 0.33
* 0.23

0.13
0 43 0.38

a 76 1,51
0 63 1,25
7 39 14,79
6.63 13.27
6-76 13,53

Amount due to/ from Related Parties
***?*<•  *¥«♦ ’*** o’
GiridAM Mel al Private Limited
MwACT.W«tBd.BMjfirt$MRtt.9H^ed>
$•*•*  $m«tt«rt Limited
TfUtfWJta
Linkview Realty Private Limited
Gindhan MtUl Private Limited
Stfpffl Sme'ters Limited

laatiMtaiii
Proircri<jn»1 Equity Services Private Limited
Gi.-.i’-irt Mata I Private limited
Ssw"5lStw«
Unkvew Realty Private Limited
Htmrnu.<v.KWSi
S'jd plO Bhattacharyya
audit Nur vim Jana
Snytm S Somani
Ntvua Agarwal
Cd'WP’t
Gtt.ithan Metal frisata Urwitrd

95522

1 90000

4.92OC*  4JJD06

• 2H
DM •
LM G71
2.12 2-D

■

- 1,407.68

0.10 013

0 09 67.47

1,393 77 5,087,91

L55 5 00

• 1,407,60

0.10 0.13
995.23 

0.09 67 47

1,392.77 5,887.91
0 BOG 00

1,55 5,00

2 RA
0.98 *
6,60 6,73
2.12 2 13

4.9)0 C& 4.9)0 06

4 The transactions from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that pievai) in arm's length transactions.

of fywwrK mad*  to KM>______________________________________________________________________________ 4

Particulars For the y«az ended Forthe year ended
’ ,CU__  March >1,2025 I March >1.2024

WrvUyvw omptoyte Wnoftt__  —I—V06| fr>4.4,
_ • I • ?

'Certain KMPs »lto participate In pact emnlayment benefits plans provided by the Company. The amount In ie>p«ct of these towards the KMPt can not be segrecalcd is these ara based on actuarial valuation for all employees ot the Company

S
its

 *
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43 Financial Instrument by Category
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

1 The details of significant accounting policies, Including the criteria for recognition, basis of measurement and the basis on
instrument are disclosed in note 3,12 to the financial statements.

1) Fair Valuation of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

which income and expenses are recognised In respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity

The following table presents carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2025; March 31,2024
^inUkh

Particulars 315t March. 2025 31st March. 2024
FalrValue 
through 
Profit & loss

Fair Value through 
€)□

Amortised Cast
Fair Value 
through 
Profit® loss

FairValue through CCI Amortised Cost

Financial Assets
'Equity Investment in Unquoted share
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances
Loans
Other Financial Assets

•
684,08

B 60 
515.16 

10,193.77
52.93 L27

13,046.20
499,47

15.65
517.28

5.887.91
133.52

Total Financial Assets • • 11.454.54 1.27 13,046.20 7.053.83
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade Payables
Other financial Liabilities 8.22

•

1,924-12
3,170.21

220.16

1,980.00
2,045 88

169.42
Total Financial Liabilities 122 - 5.314.49 • • 4,195.30

The following is the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and Fair value of the Company's financial Instruments that are measured at Amortized cost:

31St March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Particulars

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

financial Assets
Trade Heceivabies

and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Bafnncvs
LMflt
Other Flnanual Assets

684.08
8 60

515,16
1 L0r193.77

52,93

684 08
9 60 

515-16
10,193 77

52 93

499.47
15,65

517 28
5,887.91

133 52

499,47
15.65

517,28
5,887.91

133-52

Total Financial Assets 1L454.54 11,454 54 7,053.83 7,053.13

Financial LlAb iltrtes
Borrowingt
Trad*  Payables
Other financial Ltabiilliei

1,924.12
3,170.21

220.16

1,924.12
3,170 21

220.16

1,980.00
2,045 88

169.42

1,980.00
2,045.98

169 42
Total Flwncui Liabilities 5,314.49 5,314.49 4J35.30 4,19530

The management has assessed that the Fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowings, and other current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the 
term maturities of these instruments. The management has assessed that the fair value of floating rate Instruments approximates their carrying value,

(ii) Fair value measurement
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with all previous reporting year.

44 Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and 
for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an Indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial Instruments into, 
three levels prescribed under the IND AS . An explanation of each level follows below.

Quoted prices In an active market (Level 1]:
This level of hierarchy includes financial instruments that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets far identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of mutual fund 
investments.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2):
This level of hierarchy includes financial instruments, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the instruments, either directly (i.e., as prices) or (ndweedy
[i.e,, derived from prices) and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value or instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):
This level of hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using Inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation 
model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. This category consists©! 
investment in unquoted equity instrument.

44,1

44 LI

The following methods and assumption, wen uw<j to Mtimw the fair value,:

The fair values for loans, security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of 
unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risks, which has been assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on the discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of1 

unobservable inputs including own credit risks, which was assessed as on the balance sheet date to be Insignificant.

Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair Value - recurring fair value measurements

As at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets

nvestmem In Equity Instruments
□thtrr Financial Assets

• • • -
1.27

13,046.20

Total Financial Attett , - * L27 13,046.20

Financial Liabilities

Other Hmndil IlibiilUei i I 8.22 -
Total Ona ncislU^Wde*  J OX • 8-22 • • •



SUPERSHAKTI MET AUKS LIMITED
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441 2 Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Amortized Cost for which fair values are disclosed

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Trad*  Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances 
loans
Other Knanoal Assets

WOI
860

SIS 16
10.193 7

52 91

49942
15 65

917 28 
$887.91

133 52
Total Financial Assets to 11,454.54 7,05343
Financial Liabilities
Bonowtncs
Trade Payables
Other Financial U*bdit-e»

1.924 12
3.170 2!

220 16

1.900 00
2.04$ M

169 42
Total Financial UabBlSas 5.314.49 4,195 30

Notes:

(i j Investments carried at their fair values through profit & loss, are generally based on market price quotations. In respect of investments in mutual funds, the fair values represent net asset value Ji stated by the issuers of these mutual fund 
units in the published statements Net asset values represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors Accordingly, such net met valves 
are analogous to fair market value with respect to these investments, as transactions of these mutual funds are carried out at such prices between Investorsand the issuers of these units of mutual funds

(ii) Investments carried al iheir fair values through other comprehensive income, measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a ralatMA 
model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data This category consists of investment in unquoted equty 
instrument

(in) Management uses Its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair vale® 
estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to irw 
respective reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each year end

(|v) The Company's policy Is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 from March 31, 2024 to March 31, 
2025.

dS

45 1

Financial Risk Management
The Company has a Risk Management Policy which covers risk associated with the financial assets and liabilities. The Risk Management Policy is approved by the director The different types of risk impacting the fair value of finwiewi 
instruments are as below:

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of 
creditworthiness as well as concentration risks,
Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of investments, trade receivables and balances with banks None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of cred4 
risks
Trarto receivables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured, considered good and are derived from revenue earned from customers Customer credit risk is managed as per Company's policy and procedures which involve credit approvals, establishing cicxXl 
limits and continually monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored Refer below for the credit rius 
arising out of outstanding trade receivables

As at 3H-. March. 2O2S t In lakh

Ageing schedule Not Due
Less than 6

Month
6 month-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Gross Credit Risk 67957 4.58 2144 • 20.00 725.59
Allowances fcr Credit Risk • • 0.07 21 44 - 20.00 41.51

Net Credit Risk 679.57 4.51 0.00 684.08

As at 31st March, 2024 < In Lakh

Ageing schedule Not Duc
Less than 6 

Month
6 month-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Gross Credit Risk 48a47 25.62 1.07 - 29.31 544.47
Allowances for Credit Risk * 2144 1.04 • 22.51 45.00
Net Credit Risk 468.47 4.18 0.03 • 6.80 499.47

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision Trade Receivable
Loss allowance on 1 April. 2024 45.00
Changes in loss allowance 3.4S
Loss allowance on 31 March. 2025 41.51

45 2 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations. The abjective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements

The Company has obtained fund and non-rund based working capital lines from various banks The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in liquid schemes of mutual funds, which carry no/low market risk

li) Maturity Analyslsfor financial liabilities
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments, If any as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Rin lakh

Particulars Carrying Amount
Contractual cash 

ftawi
Less than 1 year Between 1-5 years More than 5 years

Borrowings 1,924 12 1.928 M 1,927 $1 1 >7
Trade Payables 3,170 21 3.170 21 3 170 21
Other Financial liabilities 220 16 220 16 220 16
Total S.314.M 5.319.25 S.317M U7

The following arc the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 33st March. 2024 R.nlakh

Particulars Carrying Amount
Contractual cath 

nows
Less than 1 year Between 1-5 years Mare than 5 years

Oor'o^n^s !.WOO 1.99$ 41 1,915 37 SO 10 •
Trade*  Pava&let 2 WS.BB 2.045 M 2.045.88 • •
Other Financial bah.lilies 169 42 169 42 169 42
Total 4195.30 4.2 W 78 4,130.67 8040



___________________________________________________________________________________________ SUPtRSHAKTI MET AUKS UMITED___________________________________________________________________
Notes formJnt part of the Standalone Financial Sutementi. for the year ended 31st March. 2015

(II) The Company has certain undrawn credit facilities which can be accessed as and when required; such credit facilities are reviewed at regular intervals. Thus, no liquidity risk is perceived at present.

The Company has access to following financing faciMtta} which were undrawn os at the end of the yfran

Undrawn financing facility As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Secured working capital facilities:
Amount used
Amount unused

1,722.89

577.58

1,904.66
195.57

» 5ocuntd war Wire fulfilllet ha* been canna red ■based on drawing power of the prevtoui month of the reipedtvo reporting date

R The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the Impact of netting agreements (if any}. The interest payments on variable Interest rate loans in the tables above reflect market fwwjirdl 
interest rates at the respective reporting dates and these amounts may change as market interest rates change The future cash flows on derivative instruments may be different from the amount in the above tables as exchange rates change. 
Except for these financial liabilities. It is not expected that cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount dilclowd h41 
been determined with reference to conditions existing at the reporting date,

45.3 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the Fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises four type of risks: Commodity Price Risk, Foreign Exchange Risk, Interest RateR-i*  
and Other Price Risk. Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

Commodity Price Risk
The Company primarily imports Coal, Scrap, Manganese Ore and Copper Mould Tube. It Is exposed to commodity price risk arising out of movement in prices of such commodities. Such risks are monitored by tracking of the prices and are- 
managed by entering into fixed price contracts, where considered necessary.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
Foreign Currency risk is the risk that fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the foreign exchange rates. The company undertake transactions in foreign currencies, rw««p4im(‘y, 
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company's cost of Imports. The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to 
exchange rate risks. Exchange rate exposure are managed with in approved policy parameters utilizing foreign exchange forward contracts, The Company, as per its risk management policy, uses such forward contract derivative Intlftristenls 
primarily to hedge foreign exchange fluctuations

a) Exposure to currency risk
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

I) Unhedgc Foreign Currency Exposure in lakhs

Particulars
3Lit March, 2025 list March. 2024

USD INR USD INR

Financial Assets (a)
Other Receivables

Financial Liabilities {8}
impart Creditors 1-95 166-97
Net Exposure In foreign currency (B-A) 1.95 166.97 - ■

H) UsItetEote (mtCurtMci Smwure X In UWit

Particulars
31st Mart 

USD
b. 2025 

INR
3 Ulf

USD
arch. 202a

INR

Ovrivatfvc Assets {Al
Trade Receivable 1.23 105.23 -

Other Rcceiv.itiles

Derivative UabHrtiec (Bl
Import SaLC/Supohvrs O«d*t 14 7a 1.261-53 4.11 34296
Irrterert cm Import SBIC7 SupcI !<f« 6 Credit 0 25 2119 0.05
Net £xpO-sure in foarifn currency (B-A) 13.76 1.177.49 4.16 347.23

III Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Management
The Company has entered into variety of foreign currency forward contracts to manage its exposure to Suctuations in foreign exchange rates. These financial exposures are managed in accordance with the Company's risk 
management policies and procedures,

The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposures in foreign currency arising from firm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions Forward exchange contracts that were outstanding on 
respective reporting dates are as follows:

tlnUldw

Currency Cross Currency
3151 March, 2Q2S

Buy Sell
InUSO In EURO In INR InUSO In EURO in INR

US Doctor INR 15.00 1 291 10 IN ICS 22

Currency Cross Curve noy
31st March, 2024

Buy Sell
In USO In EURO In INR In USO In EURO In INR

USCoilat INR 4 19 349 45 •

The aforesaid hedges have a maturity of less than 1 year from the year end.

b Sensitivity Analysis
The Analysis is based on assumption that the increase/decrease in foreign currency by 5% with all other variables held constant, on the unhedged foreign currency exposure

The movement in the profit before tax and post tax equity is a result af a change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments not designated In a hedge relationship and monetary assets and liabilities

Particulars

31st March, 2025 3LM Martti. 2074

Sensitivity 
Analysis

Impact On Sensitivity 
Analysis

Impact On

Profit before tax Impart on Post Tax-
Equity

Profit before tax Impacton PostTax- Equity

USD Sensitivity Increase 5% (8.35) (6.25) 5% -
USD Sensitivity (Decrease] 5% 8 35 6 25 5% -

•5.4 interest Rofia Rkk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the 
Group's long term and shortterm borrowing with floating Interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the credit marketsand rebalances Its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost.

Exposure to interest rate risk

Particulars
lilt Match. 2025 3Lit March, 2024

Fixed Rate tartruments
Financial Assets W
Financiil UabtlUievl

10,755 45
LS36 18

6.528 84
J.O79 2O

ICM81W {9.219 27) (5.449 64)

Vartebte PJto Instruments
Financial Assets
■■nafxJJl lUbuL ties W 387 95 «»«

ICIUBI-H) W5S w>.n
• Fixed rate Financial liability initrumcnr includ«rt Vclilrio toons-
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A Chance in 50 bps in Interest rain would h.we following impact an PBT and Other Equqy,

Noto* forrmng g<rt of the 5 Wada Io oc financial Statements far the year ended Hit Maith, JQ25

Particulars
3Lrt March. 2025 31st March. 2024

StmsWty 
Analyst

impact on Sensitivity 
Analysis

impact on
Profit before tax Other Equity Profit before tax Other Equity

iotnMt fhrttj Increate by
Inter on Hate Decrease by

0.50%
0.50%

(L45J 0 5CH
0.50%

(4.50} <13’1
L94 L45 4 50 3,37

*6 Capital Risk management
The Company's objective to manage its capital Is to ensure continuity of business while at the same time provide reasonable returns to its various stakeholders but keep associated costs under control. In order to achieve this, requirement cf 
capital is reviewed periodically with reference to operating and business plans that take into account capital expenditure and strategic investments. Apart from internal accrual, sourcing of capital is done through judicious combination cd 
equity and borrowing, both short term and long term Net debt (total borrowings less cash & cash equivalents and Other bank balance ) to equity ratio is used to monitor capital.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Short term debt (Refer Nate -181 L522 89 1,904.66
Long term debt (Refer Kate ■ IS) 1.23 75 34
ratal Borrowings 1.924.12 1.9B0.00
Less; Cash & Cash Equivalents (Refer Note -14) fa 60) (15.651

Less : Sank Balance other than cash and cash equivalent [Refer Note -15) (515.16) (517 28J
Net Debt [A) 1.400.36 1.447.07
Equity Share Capital (Refer Note - 16) 1.15 2_53 1.152 U
Other Equity (Refer Note - 171 25.77526 23372.74
Total Equity (B) 26,927 75 25,025-27
Gwrtnf Ratio (A/B=»Q LJCrS 5.78%



47 Financial Performance Ratio:

SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 202S

FINANCIAL RATIOS Numerator Denominator 2024-25 2023-24 % Variance • Reason for change more than 25%

A. Performance Ratio:
1 Net profit ratio Profit after Tax Revenue from operations 1.69% 1.83% -7.98%

2 Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from Operations Closing working capital -64.84 30.32 -313.85% The increase in investment in associates & loan 
are disproportionately higher compared to the 
growth in revenue from operations.

3 Return on Capital employed Earning before Interest & Taxes Closing capital employed (i.e. Total Assets- 
Current Liabilities)

6.74% 7.61% -11.34%

4 Return on Equity Ratio Profit after Tax Average Shareholder's Equity 4.78% 5.50% -12.99%

5 Return on investment Profit before Tax + Finance Cost Average Total Assets 5.81% 6.65% -12.62%

6 Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earning for debt service (i.e.Profit after Tax 
+ Interest + Depreciation & Amortisation)

Debt Service (i.e, Interest & Lease Payment + 
Principal Repayments)

6.92 6.12 13.14%

B. Leverage Ratio:
7 Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity 0.07 0.08 ■9.69%

C. Liquidity Ratio:
8 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.81 1.54 -47.19% Due to higher raw material prices, current 

liabilities could not be reduced In proportion to 
current assets."

C. Activity Ratio:
9 Inventory turnover ratio Sales Average Inventories 19.97 19.54 2.21%

10 Trade Receivables turnover ratio Total Sales Average Accounts Receivable 124.55 81.74 52.37% Increase in sales and better realisation of trade 
receivable

11 Trade payables turnover ratio Total Purchase including Stores & freight + 
Manufacturing Expenses + Other Operating 
Expenses (excluding non cash expenses)

Average Accounts Payable 26.82 40.64 -34.00% Due to higher raw material prices, accounts 
payable could not be reduced In proportion .

’Positive figure in '% Variance1 column represents percentage increase in ratio as compare to previous year and negative as vice-versa.
/*  ( kT\*l

48 Events after the reporting period 1 CJ1 1 w
No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Company requiring adjustment or disclosure. \ o> \ J/

49 Rounded Off
The figures appearing in financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs, as required by General Instructions for preparation of Financial Statements in Division II of Revised Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

50 The company uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software. However, the audit trail feature is not enabled at the database level for payroll software and in respect of accounting software, audit trail was editable at database level. 
Further, no audit trail feature was tampered with in respect to the accounting software including payroll software.
Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the respective years.



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

51 Earnings Per Share

Particulars
For the year ended 
31st March, 2025

For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

Profit for the year in Lakhs) 1,242.98 1,340.52

Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders in Lakhs) 1,242.98 1,340.52

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year used as denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 
(Nos)

1,15,25,278 1,15,25,278

Dilutive Potential Equity shares - -

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year used as denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 
(Nos)

1,15,25,278 1,15,25,278

Nominal value per equity share (^) 10.00 10.00

Earnings per share (in ^) - Basic & Diluted 10.78 11.63

52 Previous figures have been reclassified/regrouped where ever necessary, to make it comparable to this year's 

classification.

As per our report of even date annexed herewith 

ForSINGHI & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
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(Company Secretary)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Supershakti Metaliks Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPINION

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Supershakti Metaliks Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Company") and its associate, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, 
the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as the "consolidated financial statements").

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company and its associate as at March 
31, 2025, their consolidated profit and total comprehensive income, their consolidated changes in equity and their 
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

3. We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs"), 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements' section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company and its associate in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be 
communicated in our report:

Offices: Kolkata. Mumbai, Delhi NCR, Chennai, Bangalore, Ahmedabad & Raipur 
Network Locations: Hyderabad. Nagpur

mailto:kolkata@singhico.com
http://www.singhico.com
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

SI.No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1 Valuation of Inventory
Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. As 
described in the accounting policies in note 3.5 to the 
consolidated financial statements, inventories are carried at 
lower of cost or net realizable value. As a result, the 
management applies judgment in determining the appropriate 
provisions for obsolete stock based upon a detailed analysis of 
old inventory, net realizable value below cost based upon 
future plans for sale of inventory. The total amount of Inventory 
as on the reporting date stood at Rs. 3,409.26 lakhs.

We determined this to be a matter of significance to our audit 
due to quantum of the amount, estimation involved.

We have obtained assurance over the 
appropriateness of the management's 
assumptions applied in calculating the value of 
the inventories and related provisions by:
i. Conducting a walkthrough of the inventory 

valuation process and assessed the design 
and implementation of the key controls 
addressing the risk;

ii. Verifying for a sample of individual products 
that costs have been correctly recorded.

iii. Comparing the net realizable value to the cost 
price of inventories to check for completeness 
of the associated provision, if any.

iv. Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory 
provisioning and the level of inventory write­
offs during the year, if any.

v. Re-computing provisions recorded to verify 
that they are in line with the Company policy.

vi. Also, we have reviewed the inventory 
valuation calculations and compared the cost 
with the subsequent realization value to 
confirm whether item is required to be shown 
at cost or net realizable value. Necessary 
adjustment has been made wherever it was 
required to comply with the requirement of 
Ind AS - 2 "Inventories".

Based on the above procedures performed, we 
concluded that measurement and valuation of 
the inventory at year end is appropriate.

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Company's Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONISBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

6. The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Company and its associate in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Management 
and the Board of Directors of the Company and its associate are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and its associate and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and the respective Board of Directors of 
the companies included in the Company and its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company and its 
associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or its 
associate or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Management and the respective Board of Directors of the Companies of the Company and its associate 
are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressingour opinion 
on whether the Company and its associate has adequate internal financial controls in place with reference to the 
consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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® Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Director's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company and its associate to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
of the Company and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion.

10. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the consolidated financial statements.

11. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial 
control that we identify during our audit.

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

13. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

14. OTHER MATTER

As stated in Note 7 of the consolidated financial statements, Giridhan Metal Private Limited has become an associate of 
the Company w.e.f. March 22, 2023. In view of the aforesaid acquisition, consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2025 have only been published. No corresponding previous year's figures have been presented in 
respect of the consolidated financial statements, since the Company did not have any subsidiary, associate or joint 
venture prior to this acquisition.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
below, is not modified in respect of the above matter.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

15. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

16. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the 
matters stated in the paragraph 16(i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended from time to time;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated 
in the paragraph 16(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 16(i)(vi) below on 
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014 (as amended);

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements of the company and its associate and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in "Annexure B";

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirement of 
section 197(16) of the Act. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details 
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as on March 31, 2025, on 
the consolidated financial position of the company and its associate- Refer Note 37 to the consolidated 
financial statements;

ii. The Company and its associate did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as on 
March 31, 2025 for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company and its associate during the year ended March 31, 2025.
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iv. (a) The respective management of the company and its associate have represented to us that, to the best 
of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the company or its associate to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company or its associate ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The respective management of the company and its associate have represented to us that, to the best 
of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been 
received by the company or its associate from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company 
or its associate shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (I) and (li) of Rule 11(e) as provided under paragraph 16(i) (iv)(a) and (b) above, contain any 
material misstatement.

v. a. The dividend paid by the Company during the year in respect of the same declared for the previous year 
is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

b. As stated in Note 16(e) to the consolidated financial statements; the Board of Directors of the Company 
have proposed dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. The dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company and its associate have used accounting 
software including Payroll accounting software and additionally the associate has used weighmbnt software 
for maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the respective software.

However, the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for payroll software for both the 
Company and its associate. In respect of accounting software of the Company, audit trail was editable at 
database level whereas, for its associate, accounting software and weighment software audit trail feature 
was not enabled at the database level. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any 
instances of audit trail feature being tampered with, where such functionality was enabled and logs were 
maintained.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company and its associate as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the respective years.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 302049E

(Sankar Bondyopadhyay)
Partner

Membership No.008230
UDIN: 25008230BMJLRI9993

Place : Kolkata

Dated: 26th May, 2025
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 14 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of the Independent 
Auditor’s Report of even date to the Members of Supershakti Metaliks Limited on the consolidated financial statements 
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we report that:

As required by paragraph 3(xxi) of the CARO 2020, we report that the auditor of the following companies have given 
qualification or adverse remarks in their CARO report on the Standalone Financial Statements of the respective companies 
included in the consolidated financial statements:

SI.
NO.

Name of the 
Company

CIN Company/ 
Associate

Date of 
respective 
Auditor's 

Report

Paragraph in the 
respective CARO 

Report

1 Supershakti Metaliks 
Limited

L28910WB2012PLC189128 Company 26-05-2025
Clause 3(ii)(b) * 

Clause 3(ix)(d) **

2 Giridhan Metal Private 
Limited

U27320WB2019PTC234675 Associate 26-05-2025 Clause 3(ii)(b) *

*Clause pertains to whether quarterly returns or-statements filed by the company with banks are in agreement with the 
books of account of the Company.

**Clause pertains to whether funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long term purposes.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 302049E

(Sankar Bondyopadhyay) 
Partner

Membership No.008230
UDIN: 25008230BMJLRI9993

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 26th May, 2025



Sing Hi g£ Co.
Chartered Accountants .......contd.

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 16(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of the Independent 
Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Supershakti Metaliks Limited on the consolidated financial statements 
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Supershakti 
Metaliks Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company and its associate for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

2. The Management and the Board of Directors of the Company and its associate are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls of the company and its associate with 
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the internal financial controls system of the company with reference to consolidated financial statements.



Singhi Co.
Chartered Accountants .......contd.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and accordingto the explanations given to us, the Company and its associate 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial 
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating 
effectively as on March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the I CAI.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 302049E

(Sankar Bondyopadhyay)
Partner

Membership No.008230
UDIN: 25008230BMJLRI9993

Place : Kolkata

Dated: 26th May, 2025



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 
CIN: L28910WB2012PLC189128 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March , 2025
in Lakhs

1-4

Particulars Notes As at 
31st March, 2025

1. ASSETS
(A) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 5 4,703.91
(b) Right of Use-Assets 6 209.87
(c) Investments in Associates
(d) Financial Assets

7 14,239.54

(i) Investments -

(ii) Loans 8 10,193.77

(iii) Other Financial Assets 9 34.36

(e) Non -Current Tax Assets (Net) 10 330.64

(f) Other Non- Current Assets 11 21.88

Total Non-Current Assets (A) 29,733.97
(B) Current Assets

(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets

12 3,409.26

(I) Trade Receivables 13 684.08
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 8.60
(iii) Bank Balances (other than (ii) above) 15 515.16
(iv) Other Financial Assets 9 18.57

(c) Other Current Assets 11 313.95
Total Current Assets (B) 4,949.62

Total Assets (A+B) 34,683.59

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(A) Equity ,

(a) Equity Share Capital 16 1,152.53

(b) Other Equity 17 25.822.48

Total Equity (C) 26,975.01
(B) Liabilities
|1) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 1.23

(b) Provisions 19 238.64

(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 1,382.38
Total non-current liabilities (D) 1,622.25

(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade Payables

18 1,922.89

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21 180.71

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,989.50
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 22 228.38

(b) Provisions 19 46.25
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 23 45.69
(d) Other Current Liabilities 24 672.91

Total current liabilities (E) 6,086.33

Total Liabilities (P=D+EJ 7,708.58

Total Equity and Liabilities (C+F) 34,683.59

Material Accounting Policies and Key accounting estimates & Judgements
The accompanying nules form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed herewith 
For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 302Q49E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SANKAR BANDYOPADHYAY
(Partner)
Membership No: 008230

(Whole Time Director) 
DIN.06584512

DEEPAK AGARWAL
(Director)

DIN 00343812

Place : Kolkata
Dated: 26th May, 2025

NAthhl AGARWAL
(Company Secretary)

SHYAM SUNDAR SOMANI
(Chief Financial Officer)

^o'Accot



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 
CIN: L28910WB2012PLC189128 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025
in Lakhs

Particulars Notes For the year ended 
31.03.2025

Income
Revenue from operations 25 73,703.95
Other income 26 762.35
Total Income (1) 74,466.30
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 27 56,248.78
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 1,976.87

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-In Progress, and Stock-in-Trade 28 (346.67)
Employee benefits expense 29 1,394.33
Finance costs 30 219.03
Depreciation and amortization expenses 31 504.37
Other expenses 32 12,763.07
Total Expenses (II) 72,759.78

Profit / (Loss) before share of profit / (Loss) of associate and tax (l)(H)=(IH) 1,706.52

Share of Proft/ (loss) of associate (IV) 36 47.25

Profit / (Loss) before tax (III) +(IV)=V 1,753.77
Tax Expenses
Current tax

33
436.12

Deferred tax 27.42
Total Tax Expenses (VI) 463.54

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year (V)-(VI)= (VII) 1,290.23

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

35

(a) Fair Valuation of Investments in equity investment designated at OCI 237.06

(b) Re-measurement ofthe net defined benefit plans (4.31)
(c) Income tax relating to item above (Refer Note 20) 484.43
(d) 'Share of other Comprehensive Income of associate 36 (0.03)

Other Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) (VIII) 717.15

Total Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) for the year (vii)+(vui)=rx 2,007.38

Earnings per share
Basic (? ) 52 11.19
Diluted (? ) 11.19

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed herewith
For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No : 302049E

For and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors

SANKAR BANDYOPADHY
(Partner
Membership No: 00823

JANA
(Whole Time Director) 

DIN.06584512

DEEPAK AGARWAL
(Director)

DIN 00343812

Place : Kolkata
Dated: 26th May, 2025

NAVJfjl AGARWAL
Company Secretary)

SHYAM SUNDAR SOMANI
(Chief Financial Officer)



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
___________________ CIN: L28910WB2012PLC189128___________________

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025

Year ended 31.03.2025

____________  _ __________________Particulars______________
Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit before Tax:

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

Finance costs

Interest Income

Unwinding of Interest on Security Deposits

Net (Gain)/Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment /CWIP

Net (Gain)/Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions

Net (Gain)/loss arising on forward contracts designated as FVTPL

Liabilities no longer required written back

Bad Debts written off

Reversal of Allowances for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivables

Reversal of Allowances for Expected Credit Loss on Advance to Suppliers

Net Gain on Investment from Associates

Provision for Non-moving / Obsolete Store Items

Cash Generated from Operations before working Capital Changes

Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets

Inventories

Trade Receivables

Other Non Current Financial Assets And Other Non-Current Assets

Other Current Financial Assets And Other Current Assets

Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities

Trade payables

Other Current Financial Liabilities And Other Current Liabilities

Current provisions

Non-current provisions

Cash Generated from Operations

Tax Paid

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities ( A)

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (including Capital Work-in-Progress) and Intangible Assets

Proceeds from Sale of Property , Plant & Equipment (including Capital Work-in-Progress)

Loan ( given )/ {refund) to related party (Net)

Investment in Associates

Interest Received

Net Investment in Fixed deposits

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (B)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Dividend Paid

Proceeds/fRepayment) from Long Term Loan Borrowings

Proceeds/(Repayment) from Short Term Loan Borrowings

Interest Paid

Payment of Lease Liabilities

Net Cash Used from Financing Activities ( C)

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in cash and Cash Equivalents ( A+B+C)

Amount R) Amount R)

1,753.77

504.37

219.03

(624.05)

(6.92)

(2.821 

8.22 

(1.40) 

0.15 

(5.90)

(47.25)

(0.12)

43.31

1,797.08

563.84

(178.86)

(14.18)

1,541.90

1,125.73

380 47

104

11.63

3.431.57

5.228.65

(39043)

4.838.22

(255.21)
237.44

(4,305.86)
(909.06)
623.97

79.34

(4.529.38)

(57 63)

(74.10)

18.23

(202.39)

(315.89)

(7.05)

15.65

8.60



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
CIN: L28910WB2012PLC189128

Cash & Cash Equivalents Consists of: As at 31.03.2025
Cash on Hand

Balance with Banks

Total

8.60

8.60

Nates:
(a) 'The above Cash Flow Statements has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) -7 Statement of Cash Flow .

(b) Amendment to Ind AS 7
The amendments to Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of consolidated financial statements to evaluate changes 

in liabilities arising from financial activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the 

opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosures requirement. This amendment has become 

effective from 1st April, 2017 and the required disclosure is made below. There is no other impact on the consolidated financial statements due to this amendment.

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars
long-term 
borrowings

Short-term borrowings

March 31,2024 including current maturities of long term borrowings 75.34 1,904.66
Non- Cash Changes (Foreign Exchange Fluctuation)

Interest Expenses

Classified as current maturity

Interest Accrued

Cash Inflow / out flow

10.02 

(73.40) 

(20.95)

10.23

192.44

73.40

(247.61)

March 31.2025 including current maturities of long term borrowings 1.23 1,922.89

As per our report of even date annexed herewith For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Ntw 302049F

SANKAR BANDYOPADHYAY RU DRA NA RAY ANJANA DEEPAK AGARWAt

(Partner) (WhoIe Time Director) (Director)

Membership No: 008230 DIN 06584512 DIN 00343812

|k). M

Place: Kolkata 1 NAVIN AGARWAL shyam sundar somani
Dated: 26th May. 2025 lyompany Secretary) (Chief fundal officer)



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (T in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2025
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year (01-04-2024)

Changes in Equity Share capital to prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period

Changes in Equity Share capital during the year

Balance at the end of the reporting year (31-03-2025)

1,152.53

1,152.53

1,152.53

B) OTHER EQUITY (T in Lakhs)

Particulars
Reserves and Surplus

Items of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income Total
Securities 
Premium General reserve Retained Earnings Gain/(Loss) on Equity 

Instruments FVTOCI
(A) <B) ra (D) (A+B+C+D)

23,872.74
1,290.23

(57.63)

237.06

(4.31)

484.42

(0.03)

Balance as at 1st April, 2024
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Dividend paid
Gain/(Loss) on Equity Instruments FVTOCI

Transferred due to Investment to Associates
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligations
Impact of tax

Share of Associates

5,197.59 25.41 12,200.02
1,290.23

(57.63)

7,170.12

(4.31) 

1.08

(0-03)

6,449.72

237.06

(7,170.12)

483.34

Total Comprehensive Income / (ioss) for the year • 3,333.45 (5.449.72) 1.949.74
Balance as at 31st March. 2025 5.197.59 25.41 20,599.48 - 25,822.48

As per our report of even date annexed herewith
For SINGHI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Fli igistratlon JXb : 302049E

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 26th May . 2025

9/'^
JANA 
director)

SANKAR BANDYOPADHYAY
(Partner)

Membership No: 008230 DIN. 06584512

’IN AGARWAL
(Company Secretary)

DEEPAK AGARWAL 
(Director)

DIN 00343812

SHYAM SUNDAR SOMANI
(Chief Financial Officer)



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements far the year ended on 31st March, 2025

1. CORPORATE ANP-SeNEMUlMFORMATIQK
Supershakti Metaliks Limited (the Company), was incorporated in India in the year 2012. The Company is domiciled in India, and has its registered office at 39, 

Shakespeare Sarani, Premlata Building, 2nd Floor, Kolkata-700 017.

The Company is a Public Limited Company incorporated as per the provision of Companies Act applicable in India.

The Company is engaged in business of Iron and steel manufacturing and allied activities. The Company is having its integrated steel plant at Durgapur, West Bengal. The 

shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange, SME Platform.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 26th May , 2025.

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, read with Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 ("the Act") and presentation requirements 

of Division II of Schedule III of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act as applicable. The Company has uniformly applied the Accounting Policy during the period 

presented.

2.2 gha sls of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value;

• certain financial assets and liabilities which are classified as fair value through Statement of profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income;

• defined benefit plans and plan assets.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Indian National Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional currency.

2.4 Use of Estimates and Accounting Judgement
The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in the application of accounting policies 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the 

estimation and judgements based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Any revision to 

such estimates is recognised in the period in which the same is determined.

2.5 Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle or

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading or

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months.

All other assets are classified as non-current
A liability is current when:

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading or

■ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents The Company has identified twelve 

months as its operating cycle.

2.6 Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the company's share of profits or Loss and other comprehensive income of its associates that are consolidated 

usingthe equity method.

2.7 Investment in associates
An associate is an entity over which the company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy 

decisions of the investee but is not control orjoint control over those policies. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised ir| 

the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the company’s share of the profit or loss and othei 

comprehensive income of the associates.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the- 

investment in an associate any excess of the cost of the investment overthe company's share of the netfair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the 

investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether It is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate. At 

each reporting date, the Company determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, 

the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value, and then 

recognises the loss as 'Share of orofit of an associate' in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Upon loss of significant influence overthe associate, the Company measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between 

the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised 

in profit or loss.

2.8 Recent Pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued 

from time to time During the year ended 31st March 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind As 116 - Leases, relating to sale 

and lease back transactions, applicable from 1st April 2024. The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its consolidated financial statements. On 

9th May 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates These amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on 

assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable. The amendments are effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1st April 2025. The Company is currently assessing the probable impact of these amendments on its consolidated financial statements.



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2025

3.

3.1

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are as given below. These accounting policies have 

been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and EquipmoAt:

Recognition and Measurement
Tangible Assets
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, 

less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The initial cost at cash price equivalence of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises 

its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and location 

and present value of any obligatory decommissioning costs for its intended use, if any.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour, allocation of overheads, directly attributable borrowing 

costs including trial run expenses (net of revenue).

Any material Spares having useful life of more than one year are capitalised under the respective heads as and when available for use

Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

Subsequent Cost
Subsequent expenditure is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that 

future economic benefits derived from the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of replaced 

item(s) is derecognised.

Any material repairs of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits of the Costs 

incurred will flow to the Company. The carrying amount of the replaced itern(s) is derecognised.

Capital Work-in-Progress
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which Includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest on amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets 

and other expenses incurred in connection with project implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial 

production.

Depredation and Amortisation
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on .straight line method, considering residual value of 5% of the cost of the asset, over the useful lives of the assets, 3$ 

specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of Plant and Machinery and components thereof, where useful life is determined by technical experts. 

The useful life assumed by the technical experts is as under:

Asset category 

Factory Building & Shed 

Plant & Machinery 

Furniture & Fixture

Vehicles

Office Equipments & Computers

30-60 

5-30

10

8-10

3-6

For these classes of assets, based on technical evaluation carried out by external technical experts, the Company believes that the useful lives as given above best 
represent the period over which Company expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed under 

Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.
The estimated useful lives and residual values of depreciable/amortisable assets are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted fpr 

on a prospective basis.

Where the historical cost of a depreciable asset undergoes a change, the depreciation on the revised unamortised depreciable amount is provided over the residual 

useful life of the asset. Depreciation on addition/deletion during the year is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition/deletion. Assets costing 

up to 0.05 Lakhs are fully depreciated after retaining five percent residual value of acquisition cost of asset in the year in which they are put to use 

Depreciation on capital spares is provided over the useful life of the spare or remaining useful life of the mother asset, as reassessed, whichever is lower

3.1.5 Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of Property Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of PPE is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item 

and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised.

3.2 Intangible assets

3.2.1 Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Cost includes directly attributable expenditure for making the assets for its intended use.

3.2.2

3.3

Subsequent Cost
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure Is 

recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

impairment of Nan-Financial Assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of its assets on each Balance Shppt date fnr the purpose nf ascertaining impairment indicators if any, by considering assets 

of entire Plant as Cash Generating Unit (CGU). If any such indication exists, the assets' recoverable amount is estimated, as higher of the Net Selling Price and the Value 

in Use. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 

amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 

asset (or cash generating unit) in prioryears. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.4 Borrowing costs
Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange difference 

to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are 

capitalized as a part of the cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. The 

Company considers a period of twelve months or more as a substantia! period of time. Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortized over the 

tenure of respective loans using Effective Interest Rate (E1R) method All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in wh;

they are incurred
If any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds U 

borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

H



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2025

3’5 Inventories
Inventories of stores and spare parts are valued at or below cost after providing for cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses wherever considered necessary.

Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, non-refundable duties and taxes, cost of conversion including an appropriate share of fixed and variable production 

overheads and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location and condition.
Inventories of items other than those stated above are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

Costin respect of:

a) Raw Materials, Consumables, Stores & Spares and Traded Goods are computed under weighted average basis.

b)Work-in-Progress and Finished Goods are computed under weighted average basis.

c) By- Products are valued at net realisable value.

Net Realizable Value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are 

expected to be sold at or above cost.

The Company considers factors like estimated shelf life, ageing of inventory etc in determining the provision for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable inventory 

and adjusts the inventory provisions to reflect the recoverable value of inventory.

3.6 Government Grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be 

received.
Government grants are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related 

costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Where the Grant relates to an asset value, it is recognised as deferred income, and amortised over the expected 

useful life ofthe asset. Other grants are recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss concurrent to the expenses to which such grants relate/ are intended to cover.

Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are recorded gross at fair amounts and released to the income statement over the expected 

useful life and pattern of consumption ofthe benefit ofthe underlying asset.

3.7 Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign Currency Transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot rates of exchanges at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchanges at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities are generally recognised 

in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future 

productive use, which are included in the cost of those qualifying assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency 

borrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss within finance costs.

Non monetary items are not retranslated at period end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rate at the transaction date). 1

3.8 Employe^ Benefits 1
Short Term Benefits 
Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services are provided. Liabilities for wages and 

salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end ofthe period in which the employees render the 

related service are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end ofthe reporting period.

Other Long Term Employee Benefits
The liabilities for leave encashment that are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months are measured as the present value of the expected future payments 

to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end ofthe reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using 

the government securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation Remeasurement as the result of 

experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in statement of profit and loss.
Post Employment Benefits
The Company operates the following post employment schemes: 

— Defined Benefit Plans 
The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end ofthe reporting 

period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount 
of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods. I

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, together 

with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of 

the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-Sec) at the end ofthe reporting period 

that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect ofthe 

asset ceiling, are recognized in other comprehensive income. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings 

and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss 

— Defined Contribution Plan 
Defined contribution plans such as provident fund etc are charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred. Contribution to Superannuation fund, a

defined contribution plan is made in accordance with the company’s policy and is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

3.9 Leases
The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control 

the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, 

the Company assesses whether:

1. the contract involves the use of an identified asset
2. the Company has substantially all ofthe economic benefits from use ofthe asset through the period ofthe lease and

3. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset-
company as a lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which 

it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases), variable lease and low value leases. For these short-term, variable lease and low 

value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease,
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Rfcht-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount ofthe lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the 

commencement date ofthe lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses, if any, Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter ofthe lease term and useful life of 

the underlying asset.
If ownership ofthe leased asset transfers to the Company at the end ofthe lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated 

using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Note 3.3 Impairment of non- 

financial assets.
Extension and termination options are included in many ofthe leases. In determining the lease term the management considers all facts and circumstances that create 

an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives ofthe assets, as follows:

Lease hold Land for 60 years

Office Premises for 3 years

Lease Liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise;

• Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) payable during the lease term and under reasonably certain extension options, less any lease incentives;

• Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;

• The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

• The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of 
domicile of these leases.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the 

carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g, changes to future 
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying 
asset
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an 

extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows. Lease liabilities 
have been classified as current and non current under the head financial liabilities. The Company has used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with stmitar 
characteristics.

Short-term teases iind leases of low-value asset;
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Property, Plant & Equipment (i.e, those leases that have a lease term of 12 

months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

On transition to IND AS dated April 1, 2020, the adoption of new standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-Use asset (ROU) of R 137,57 lakh, being leasehold land 
recognised as ROU Assets transferred from property, plant & equipment.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous periods to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for 
interest aerrupri on lease liability.

Others

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application;

(a) Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.

(b) Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application, variable 

lease and low value asset

(c) Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

(d) The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.5% p.a.

3.10 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions and ContinRent Liabilities
A Provision is recognised when the Company has present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are discounted to their present value, where the time value of money is material.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as a separate 
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably*

• General Reserve is created mainly on the account of amalgamation. / ★ /

• Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits. I O I

3.12 Financial Instruments \
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Reconnition, initial measurement and de-recognition;
Financial assets and financ.al liabilities are recognised and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for those financial assets which ate 

classified at Fair Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL) at inception.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights co the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and 

rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is no! 

possible that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations or reliable estimate of the amount ofthe obligations cannot 
be made. The Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Other Notes to consolidated financial statements.

In cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligation is considered improbable or remote, no Provision is recognised or disclosure 
Is made.

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not 

recognised though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

3.11 Equity and Reserves
Share Capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Securities premium includes any premium received on issue of Share Capital.

Other components of equity include the following:
• Re-measurement of defined benefit liability comprises the actuarial gain or loss from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and return on plan
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Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets;
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon initial recognition:
• amortised cost
• financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
• financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date.
Amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost using effective interest rates if both of the following conditions are met:
a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal arrwuntl 
outstanding.
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets that are either do not meet the criteria for amortised cost classification or that are equity instruments held for trading 
or that meet certain conditions and are designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. All derivative financial instruments also fall into this category. Assets in this 
category are measured at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of financial assets in this category are determined by reference to 
active market transactions or using a valuation technique where no active market exists.

Financial assets 3t FVOCI
FVOCI financial assets are either debt instruments that are managed under hold to collect and sell business mode! or are non-trading equity instruments that are 
irrevocable designated to this category at inception.
FVOCI financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income, except for interest and dividend income, impairment 
losses and foreign exchange differences on monetary assets, which are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Classification a ndsub sequent measurement of financial liabfiities;
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for financial liabilities held for trading or designated at 
FVTPL, that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. All derivative financial instruments are accounted for at FVTPL

Embedded Derivatives
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics 
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
Impairment of Financial Assets
In accordance with IndAS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to, 
receive.
Trade Receivables
The Company applies approach as specified in Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised 
from initial recognition of receivables.
Other Financial Assets
For recognition of impairment lpss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk 
since initial recognition.
Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified party fails to 
make 3 payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time the 
guarantee is issued at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at 
the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instruments' and the amount recognized (ess 
cumulative amortization.
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future 
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty,

3.13 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

3.14 Income Taxes
Income Tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in The Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognized directly in 
equity or in other comprehensive income.

3.15.1 Current Tax
Current tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the 
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the end of the reporting period.

3,15.2 Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on 
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e., tax base) Deferred tax is also recognized for carry forward of unused tax losses and the unused tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Company reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit or part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such 
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized either in other comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

*■
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3,15 Investments
i) Investments which are reaaily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such investments are made, are classified as 

current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments. The portion of long-term term investments expected to be realized within 
twelve months after the reporting date are disclosed under current investments.

II) On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees 
& duties.

ui) Long-Term Investments designated as equity instrument being non trading in nature are measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

iii) Short Term Investments being classified as current investment designated as equity instrument / Debt instrument being trading in nature are measured at Fair 
Value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL).

3.15 Reyenug Recognition
The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of Iron & Steel products and generate revenue from the sale of the product. I

Revenue from sale of product is recognised at the point in time when control ofthe goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery ofthe product.

At contract inception, the Company assess the goods promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as a performance obligation of each promise to transfer to 
the customer. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of goods is transferred to customers and the Company retains neither continuing 
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold-

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of 
when the payment is being made. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable 
consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration and excluding taxes 
or duties collected on behalf ofthe Government.
a) Sale of Goods
Sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration 
defined in the contract with a customer, including variable consideration, such as discounts, volume rebates, or other contractual reductions. As the period between the 
date on which the Company transfers the promised goods to the customer and the date on which the customer pays for these goods is generally one year or less, no 
financing components are taken into account.
Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods 
that will not be returned because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction 
price for goods that are expected to be returned instead of revenue the Company recognises a refund liaoiiiry A right of return asset and corresponding adjustment to 
change in inventory is also recognised for the right to recover products from a customer 
b) Other Operating Revenue
Export incentive and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions and the incentive will be received. 
Insurance & other claims, where quantum of accruals cannot be ascertained with reasonable certainty are recognised as income only when revenue is virtually certain 
which generally coincides with receipt/acceptance.
c) Interest Income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash receipts over the expected lift of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial 
asset,

Cojjtrartaalamrei
Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services, 
to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. i

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of 
consideration is due and the amount is billable.
Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) 
from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs obligations under the contract.

3.17 Barnin ns Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity1 
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the result are anti-dilutive.

3.18 Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flow Statement presents the Cash Flows by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company. Cash and Cash equivalents presented in the Cash Flow 
Statement consist ofcash on hand, cash at bank, and short - term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

3.19 Proposed Dividend
Diviaend recommended/declared after the Balance Sheet Date but before the consolidated financial statements are approved by Shareholders in the General Meeting 
are not recognized as a liability at the Balance Sheet Date because no obligation exists at the Balance Sheet Date. Such Dividend is disclosed in the Notes-

3.20 Events after fe&orting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is 
adjusted within the consolidated financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

3.21 Measurement of Fair Values
A number ofthe Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that 
market participants act in their economic best interest A fair value measurement of a non-flnancial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset In Its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 1

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use 
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
AH assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described ,a$ 
follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted ) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3- Inputs which are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided by the management of the company considering 
the requirements of Ind AS and selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
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4. KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Information about Significant judgements and Key sources of estimation made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts 
recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

Depreciation / Amortization and Impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment / IntangiWe Assets:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated/ amortized on straight-line /written down value basis over the estimated useful lives (or lease term

if shorter) in accordance with Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, taking into account the estimated residual value, wherever applicable.
The company reviews its carrying value of its Tangible and Intangible Assets whenever there is objective evidence that the assets are impaired. In such situation assets 

recoverable amount is estimated which is higher than assets or cash generating units (CGU), fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use 

the estimated future cash flows are discounted using pre-tax discount rate which reflect the current assessment of time value of money. In determining fair value less 

cost of disposal, recent market realisations are considered or otherwise in absence of such transactions appropriate valuations are adopted. The Company reviews the 

estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation / amortization and amount of impairment expense to be recorded during 

any reporting period. This reassessment may result in change estimated in future periods.

Income taxes:
Significant judgment is required in determination of taxability of certain income and deductibility of certain expenses during the estimation of the provision for income 
taxes.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets :
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on a assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the 
deferred tax assets can be utilized. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

Defined Benefit Obligation (D8O).
Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future 
developments in discount rates, medical cost trends, anticipation of future salary increases and the infiaiion rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to 
measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting calculations.

Provisionsand Contingencies:
The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37 , 'Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best judgement by management regarding the 
probability of exposure to potential loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets :
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortized cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication of impairment. If recoverable 
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Allowances for Doubtful Debts :
The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through appropriate estimations of irrecoverable amount. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of 
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables 
and doubtful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments :
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair 
value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The input to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, 
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk 
and volatility.

Right-of-use assets and lease liability :
The Company has exercised judgement in determining the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with the impact of options to extend or 
terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised. Where the rate implicit in the lease is not readily available, an incremental borrowing rate is applied. This 
incremental borrowing rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, with a similar security, the funds necessary to 
obtain an asset of a similar nature and value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. Determination of the incremental borrowing rate requires 
estimation.
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Note No.5 t in Lakhs

A. Property, Plant and Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation Net Carrying Amount

Particulars As At 
01.04.2024 Addition Deletion / 

Adjustment
As At 

31.03.2025
As At 

01.04.2024 For the Year Deletion /
Adjustment

As At 
31.03.2025

As At 
31.03.2025

Factory Building & Shed
Plant & Machineries
Furniture & Fixture

Vehicles (Ind. Cycle)
Office Equipments & Computers

483.86
5,849.53

28.16
558.41

53.08

57.52
0.21

2.84

483.86
5,907.05

28.37
558.41

55.92

104.29
1,387.15

10.25
289.98
37.50

27.52
389.61

2.68
76.27
4.47

131.80
1,776.76

12.93
366.25
41.97

352.06
4,130.29

15.44
192.17

13.95
Totaj 6,973.04 60.57 * 7,033.61 1,829.17 500.55 • 2,329.71 4,703.91
Previous Year

B. Title deeds of immovable properties not held In the name of the Company
All the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

C. Details of Benami Property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property during the reporting year or any preceding financial years under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 

2016) [formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)] and Rules made thereunder.

D. Disclosure on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Company has not revalued it's Property, Plant and Equipment during the reporting period.

E. During the year, the Company acquired a solar plant amounting to T 230.52 lakhs, initially capitalized under Capital Work-in-Progress. Due to technical issues, the asset was not installed and was subsequently sold for ^237.43
Lakhs. Accordingly, it was derecognized, and a profit of ? 6.92 lakhs was recognized under Other Income.

F. Refer note no. 18 for security given.

Nate No.6
Right of Use Assets

t in Lakhs

Gross earn/Ing Amount Accumulated Depredation Net Carrying Amount
Particulars As At 

01.04.2024
Addition / 

Adjustment
Less: Sales/ 

Adjustments
As At 

31.03.2025
As At 

01.04.2024 For the Year Less: Sales/ 
Adjustments

Upto 
31.03.2025

As At 
31.03.2025

Leasehold Land & Site Development 228.50 • * 228.50 14.81 3.82 • 18.63 209.87
Total 228.50 - • 228.50 14.81 3.82 - 18.63 209.87



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

1) Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as fo In lakhs

Particulars 31-03-2025
Short-term leases 17.70
Leases of low value assets
Variable lease payments

ii) Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31st March , 2025 was Nil Lakhs

III) The following is the movement In lease liabilities for the year ended 31st March 2025 in Lakhs

Particulars 31-03-2025
Balance at the beginning of the year •
Additions -
Finance cost accrued during the year -
Deletions •
Payment ol lease liab'lit'ies •

-

Iv ) The following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss:
Particulars 31-03-2025
Deprec.ation expense of righl-of-use assets 3.82
Interest expense on lease liabilities -
Interest income on fair value of security deposit
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 17.70
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (Included in other expenses) -
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses)
Total 21.52

v) Information about extension and termination options for the FY ended on 31st March, 2025.
Particulars Office Premises Leasehold Land
Number of leases - 1
Range of remaining term (in years) - 55 Years
Average remaining lease term (In years) • 55 Years
Number of leases with extension option 1

Number of leases with termination option -

Disclosure on revaluation of Right of use Assets
The Company has not revalued It's Right of use assets during the current reporting period.



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

in Lakhs

Note No. Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

7 Non Current -Investments

Investment in Associates
Accountedjusing Equity method

14,192.32

In Equity shares-unquoted Jolly paid up 4

Giridhan Metal Private Limited of Rs, 10/- 34,00,000 shares.

Add: Share of Profit / (loss) & Other Comprehensive Income for the year 47.22

14.239.54

During March 2025, the Company invested additional Rs. 909.06 lakhs in Giridhan Metal Private Limited by subscribing to equity shares at premium. Following this investment, 
the Company's overall equity stake in Giridhan Metal Private Limited increased. As a result of the enhanced investment, the Company is now considered to exercise significant 
influence over Giridhan Metal Private Limited. Accordingly, it has been classified as an Associate of the Company with effect from 22nd March, 2025, in accordance with rhe 
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

S loans
Non-current
A. Loans to related parties (Refer Note No.43) 10.193.77
(Unsecured, considered good) 10,193.77

10,193.77

9 Other Financial Assets
A. Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposit
Bank Deposits for more than 12 months*
Interest Accrued on Bank deposits

4.87
29.21
0.28

34.36

•Non-current Bank deposits with Bank represents deposits due for realisation after 12 months from the balance sheet date. These are primarily pledged as margin money/ 
security against issue of Bank guarantees and Letter of Credit.

8. Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Security Deposits
(Includes 31st March , 2025: 1.55 Lakhs, to related parties)
Foreign Exchange Forward Contract (MTM)
Interest Accrued on Bank deposits

1.55

17.02
13.57

10 Non - Current Tax Assets (net)
Advance tax/TDS/TCS and Income Tax Refundable i
Less: Provision for Income Tax

3.378.05
(3.047.41)

330.64

11 Other assets
A. Non-current
Capital Advances (Considered gaod-Unsecured )

Credit Impaired
Less : Allowance for credit losses

■

Advances other than Capital Advances
Security Deposits (Unsecured , Considered Good)
Prepaid Expenses 21.88

Total 21.38
8. Current
Advances other than Capital Advances 
(if Advances to related parties

Considered Good-Unsecured
*

(ii) Other Advances against supply of goods and services
Considered Good-Unsecured
Credit Impaired
Less : Allowance for credit losses

162.33
12.14

(12.14)
162.33

Balances with Government and statutory authorities
Prepaid expenses
Advances to Employees
Export Incentive/Duty Drawback Receivable
Pre-spent Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 39)

121.05 
20.45

0.53 
5.64 
3.95

313.95

Total (iM»> r>\ 313.95



SUPERSHAKTI MET AUKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March , 2025 

in Lakhs

Note No. Particulars
As at 

31st March , 2025

12

13

13 1

13 2

13 3
13 4

Inventories

Raw Materials

Raw Materials In Transit

Work In Progress 

Finished Goods 

Stores and Spares In Transit 

Stores and Spares*

1,534.96

114.91

147.51

1,265.12

2.21

344.S5

3,409.26

•Net of provision of Non moving/Obsolete items (As at 31st March, 2025: t 65.70 Lakhs )

Trade*  Rccclvablos

a] Considered good - Unsecured 
b| Significant increase in credit risk 
c) Credit Impaired

less; Allowance for credit losses
Total

684.15
21.44
23.00

725.59
41.51

684.08

In determining allowance for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used the practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into 

at count historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on ageing of the receivablesand rates used In the provision matrix

Thit Company considers its maximum exposure to credit risk with respect to customers as at March 31, 2025 to be T 684 OB lakhs, which is the carrying value of trade receivables after allowance for credit losses.

Ttw Company's exposure to customers is diversified and only three customer contributes more than 10% of the outstanding receivables for an amount ^443.56. lakhs as at March 31, 2Q2S.

Trade Receivables are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days credit period
No trade or other receivables are due from Directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person

For trade receivable outstanding, the ageing schedule is given below:
M al Match 11. ZOZS 1 In lakhs

Rartleulart GuUtsnCmg for following periods from due date of poymnn!

Not Due
Less than 6 

Month
6 month- lyear 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

Total

Undisputed Trade receivable-considered good-Unsecured
Undisputed Trade receivable - which have significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables- Credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivable-considered goods-Unsecured
Disputed Trade receivable -which have significant increase in credit risk
Disouted Trade receivable -Credit impaired

•

679 5? 4.S3

2L44 -

20 00

684.15

20.00

21.44

Total - 679.57 4.58 21.44 20.00 715.59
lew Allowance <o*  Credit towi 41-51
Tnta 1 Trade R prpiva hl p$ 684.0B

Movement In tha allowance for Expected Credit Loises *-4^
Particulars

As at March 3k 2025

Balance at Ine beeinning of the wear 45.00

Add/(less): Expected credit Joss prnuided/lrevprsedl (3 49)

Balance at the end ol the year 41.51

—



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

T in Lakhs

Note No. Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2025

14

15

16

a)

b)

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- In current accounts

Cash on hand 8.60
8.60

Bank balances [other than Note 14]

Bankdeoosits*. 515.16
515.16

'Represent balances held as margin money or security against the issuance of Bank guarantees and Letter of Credit.

I In lakhs

Equity share capital

As at 
31st March. 2025

No. of Shares Amount

Authorized Share Capital
Ordinary Equity shares of T 10 each

Issued Share Capital
Ordinary Equity shares of 110 each

Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Ordinary Equity Shares of 10/- each fully paid-up

1,50,00,000 1,500.00
1.50,00.000 1,500.00

1.15.25.278 1,15253
1,15,25,278 1,152.53

1,15.25,278 1.152.53
1.15.25.278 1,152.53

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
1

As at 
31st March,2025

Particulars No of Shares 7 in Lakhs

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 1.15,25,278 1,152.53
Add/(less): Changes in equity share capital during the year - •
Equity Shares at the end of the year 1,15,25,278 1,152.53

Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the company:

Name of the Shareholders

As at 
31st March, 2025

Number % Holding

Khandetwal Finance Private Limited
Veerbhadra Sales Private Limited
Sabita Agarwal
Priti Agarwal
Vibha Agarwal

22.67,114
16,22,204
14,79,142
13,53,000
13,27,000

19.67%
14.08%
12.83%
11.74%
11.51%



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

in Lakhs

c) Shareholding of Prompter?

Name of Promoter

As at 
31st March. 2025

Number of 
Shares

% of shares % of change

Khandelwal Finance Private Limited
Veerbhadra Sales Private Limited
Deepak Agarwal
Dtlipp Agarwal

22,67,114
16,22,204

1,51,186
1,25,232

19.67
14.08

1.31
1.09

•

41,65,736 36.15 •
d)

e)

Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares
(I) Voting
The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. Equity Shares having par value of 10 per share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per 
share and equal right for dividend.

(ii) Dividend

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors if any is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of 
interim dividend.
(iii) Liquidation
fn the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after payment of all 
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of T 0.50/- per equity share for the year ended 31st March, 2025 subject to the approval of 
shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Previous Year T 0.50/- per equity share given as dividend to shareholders.

f) No Equity Shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.

g) 
h) 

>)

No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.
No securities convertible into equity or preference shares have been issued by the company during the year. 

The company does not have any Holding Company/ Ultimate Holding Company.



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March , 2025

^in Lakhs

Note No. Particulars
As at 

31st March, 2025

17 OtherCq0tV
(A) Other Reserves
(1} Securities Premium:

Balance at the beginning of the year 5.197.59

Balance at the end of the year 5,197.59

(11) General Reserve:

Balance at the beginning of the year 25.41

Balance at the end of the year 25.41

(8) Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Add/(Less): Actuarial Gain/(Loss) based on the valuation

Lets: Tax on above
Add/(Less): Share of other Comprehensive Income of associates

Less: Final Dividend

Add: Balance transferred due to Investment in Associates

12,200.02

1,290.23
(4.31)

1.0B
(0.03)

(57.63)

7.170.12

Balance at the end of the year 20,599.48

(C) Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Equity instrument through Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add/(Lc$s): Change in Fair Value

Add/(Less): Tax on above

Less: Balance transferred in Retained Earnings due to Investment in Associates

6,449.72

237.06
483 34

(7.170.12)

Balance at the end of the year 0.00

25.822.48

a)

b)

c)

Nature and ouroose of other reserves

Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

General Reserve

Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in 

accordance with applicable regulations. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mandatory transfer of a specified percentage pl 

the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. General Reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of 

other comprehensive income.

Retained Earnines
Retained Earnings are created from the profit / loss of the company, as adjusted for distributors to owners, transfer to other reserves etc.

d) Equity investment through Other Comprehensive Income

The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments in Other Comprehensive Income. These changes 

are accumulated within the "Equity investment through Other Comprehensive Income" reserve within equity. The Company transfers amounts from this reserve 

to Retained Earnings when the relevant equity shares are derecognised.

18 growings

Non Current

Vehicle Loan** 1.23

Total secured borrowings (A) 1.23

Break up of Security Details 
Secured 
Unsecured

1.23

LB

CMUfi&t
Short Term Borrowings

Vehicle Loan

Unsecured Loan - from Others

73.40

200.00

273.40

Break up of Security Details 
Secured

Unsecured

73.40

200.00

273.40
Loan Repayable on Demand
-Working capital Loans* 38/95

387.95

Other Loan
Suppliers Credit/ Foreign Bill Payable 1.261.54

1.261.S4

1.922.89
The above amount includes
Secured Borrowings
Unsecured Borrowings

1.722 89

200 00

1.922.89

♦Details of Security:

Working capital loan from Banks of ^387.95 lakhs is secured by first pari- passu charge on the entire current assets and second pari passu chargeon the entires 
fixed assets of Durgapur Plant at Kanjilal Avenue, of the Company, Personal Guarantee of directors and relatives and Corporate Guarantee of some of the / * 

' shareholders. 1 ('
____I

Q»H/
'O

X’o' Acc<AZ



SUPERSHAKTI METAUKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

in Lakhs

Note No. Particulars As at
31st March, 2025

**Details of security & Terms of Repayment of Secured Loans from Banks

Name of the Bank
Non Current 
Maturities T

Current
Maturities

Nature of Security Rate of Interest (%) Repayment Terms Installment Due

Union Bank of India 1.23 73.40

Hypothecation of 
respective assets 

procured against the 
Loan.

8.70%
14 monthly installment 
of 6,50,240/- ending 
on 31st May 2026

14

Total 1.23 73.40

19 Provisions

A. Non-current
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No. 42 )
Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note No. 42)

227.89
10? 5

238.64
B. Current
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note No. 42 )
Provision for Leave Encashment (Refer Note No. 42)

32.42
13.83
46.25

20 Deferred Ta» liabilities

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Net)

Deferred Ttfe lability arising on account of

Property, Plant & Equipment
Fair Valuation of Investment
On the Remeasuement Defined Benefit Obligation & Others 
less: Deferred Tax Assets ar is Ine on account of

285.58
1,134.51

(liS|

Provision for Employee Benefit (As per section 430 of Income Tax Act, 1961)
Provision for Slow and Non-Moving Items
On Expected Credit Loss of Trade Receivable
On Others

67 56
16.53
10.45

0.02
Closing Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 1,382.38

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year ended 31st March 2025.

As at
1st April, 2024

Recognized in 
Statement of 
Profit and Loss

Recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income

As at 
31st March, 202b

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities
Prooertv Plant & Eouioments 
Fair Valuation of Investment #

252.99
1,677 85

32.59
0.00 (483.34)

285.58
1,194.51

On the Remeasuement Defined Benefit Obligation & Others 3.04 (5.111 (1.08) £3.15)

(A) 1,933.88 27.48 (484.43) 1,476.94
Deferred Income Tax Assets
Provision for Employee Benefit (As per section 43B of Income Tax Act,1961)
Provision for Slow and Non-Moving Items
On Expected Credit Loss of Trade Receivable
On Others

65.65
16.56
11.32

0.96

1.92 
(0.03) 
(0.87) 
(0 94)

*
67.56
16.53
10.45

0.02

(B) 94.49 0.06 • 94.56

(A-B) 1.839.39 27.42 (484.43) 1.382.38

(i) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority.

(ii) During the year, the Finance Act, 2024 introduced amendments to the long-term capital gains-(LTCG) tax regime. The applicable tax rate changed from 20% with indexation to 12.5% 
without indexation, which resulted in a further reversal of net deferred tax liability of ^484.43 lakhs.
(iii) During the year, the investment has been reclassified as an investment in associates due to an increase in the holding of equity shares (Refer Note No. 7).
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SUPERSHAKTI MET ALIKS UMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

UlnLakhsi

Particulars As at 
31st March, 2025

{Includes 31st March, 2025 : 995.41 Lakhs, Lakhs to Related parties)

For goods and services
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Acceptance
Trade Payable

180.71

2.989.50
3.170J1

a) Age analysis of Trade Payable
As at 31st March. 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Unbilled Not Due
Less Than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Undisputed dues - MS ME • - 180.71 • * 180.71

Undisputed dues- Others 80B.71 995.41 1,176.20 2.66 6.52 2,989.50

Disputed dues- MSME • *. ■

Disputed dues- Others • * - » •

808 71 995.41 1,356.91 2 66 6.52 3.170.21

b) Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended list March 2025 given below. 
This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of Information available with the Company.

Particulars
As at 

31th March , 2025

a) The Principal amount and interest due thereon on amount remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year.

180.71

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Act,2006 along with the amounts of payment made to the supplier beyond the 

appointed day during each accounting year. Nil

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have paid but beyond the appointed day during the year but without 

adding interest specified under Act) Nil
djThe a mount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid atthe end of each accounting year.

Nil

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in succeeding years Nil

Other Current financial liabilities

Employee Related Liabilities
(Includes 31st March , 2025 : 9.78 Lakhs, to Related parties)

148.71

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 20JS

Amount Payable for Capital Goods 50.50
Foreign Exchange Forward Contract 8.22

228 38

Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for income tax (Net of advance ) 45.69
45.69

Other current liabilities
Advance Received from Customer 614 74
Statutory dues 58.17

672.91



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March , 2025

in Lakhs

Note 
No Particulars For the year ended 

31st March, 2025

25

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from operations
Sale of Products
Domestic Sale
Export Sale
Trading Sale

Total (A)
(B) Other operating revenues

Export Benefits
Total (B)

Total (A+B)

71,295.56
411.20

1,991.54
73,698.30

5.65
5.65

73,703.95

Nature of goods and services
The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of Iron & Steel products and generate revenue from the sale of the product. It is also 
the only reportable segment ofthe Company.
Disaggregation of revenue for the year ended 31st March, 2025

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by major products lines and primary geographical market etc.

-Based on major products
70 coo oniron 8*  Stssl Products 

Others

-Based on geographical market
73,698.30

73,287.10
411.20

India
Outside India

73,698.30

Contract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

Receivables, which are included in 'Trade receivable'
Contract Assets
Contract Liabilities

684.08

614.74

Reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with Contracted price
Revenue as per Contracted price 
Less: Discounts and Commissions

73,698.30

Revenue from Contract with Customers 73,698.30



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

in Lakhs
Note 
No

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2025

26 Other income
Interest Income
On Margin Money
On Unwinding of Interest on Financial Assets
On Unsecured Loan to Related Party
On Others

37.08

586.96

Other Non-Operating Income:
Insurance Claim and Miscellaneous Receipt
Net Gain on sales of property, plant & equipment (Refer Note No.5E)
Net Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Currency Transactions
Net Gain arising from Financial Instruments designated as FVTPL
Reversal of allowances for Credit losses
Provision for Non-moving/ Obsolete Store Item
Liabilities no longer required written back

89.67
6.92

34.30

5.90
0.12
1.40

Total 762.35

27 Cost of Materials Consumed
Inventory at the beginning of the year 
Add: Purchases

2,414.01
55,369.73

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
57,783.74

1,534.96
Total 56,248.78

28 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, & Work-In Progress

(A) Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods
Work In progress

1,265.12
147.51

(B) Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods
Work In progress

Total (A) 1,412.63

1,004.88
61.08

Total (B) 1,065.96
Change in Inventories (B-A) (346.67)

29 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, Wages & Bonus
Managerial Remuneration
Contribution to Provident and Other funds
Gratuity Expenses (Refer Note No 42) 
Staff Welfare Expenses

1,275.40
13.8S
65.37
38.48

1.23
Total 1,394.33



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

in Lakhs

Note 
No Particulars For the year ended 

31st March, 2025

30 Finance costs
(i) Interest Expenses

- on Working Capital loan
- on Vehicle loan
- on Unsecured loan
- on Lease Liabilities
- on others

{11) Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to Borrowing Cost

{iii) Other Borrowing Cost

45.42
10.02

0.22

0.01

16.35
147.01

Total 219.03

31 Depreciation and amortization Expenses
Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment 
Depreciation on Right of use Assets

500.55
3.82

Total 504.37
32 Other Expenses

MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores & Spares
Power & Fuel
Repairs to Machinery 
Job/Labour Charges 
Other Manufacturing Expenses

1,685.94
9,597.93

72.29
744.21

65.66
TOTAL (A) 12,166.03

SELLING & ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Advertisement. Subscription and Business Promotion Expenses 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note No. 39) 
Carriage Outwards /Forwarding Charges
Fees, Rates & Taxes
Bank Charges
Insurance
Director's Sitting Fees
Net Loss arising from Financial Instruments designated as FVTPL 
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Rent
Repairs to other Assets
Professional & Legal Expenses (Incudes Retainership Fees)
Printing & Stationery
Auditor's Remuneration & Expenses
Bad Debts / Sundry Balances written off
Security Charges
Miscellaneous Expenses

0.60
57.30

2.40
310.00

1.58
20.23 

0.93
8.22

21.86
17.70
12.25
43.45

4.10
11.04

0.15
64.60
20.63

TOTAL (B) 597.04

TOTAL (A+B) 12,763.07
32.1 Payment to auditors

As auditors
Statutory Audit fees
Limited Review
Reimbursement of expenses

7.50
3.00
0.54

11.04
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< tn UkM

Note 
Na

Partial ton
For Ihe yBxr»nd«d 
31st March, 2025

H

34

r**w*wnwa
toceme tax re«v<nlMd tn th*  Sutanaani of Profit and lota
Cwfcnt U» 
Oe furred tai

43612

Ui W

K«<oi*?l3aticn  of b st i mi led Income taw expense at Indian statutory Income tai rate to Income liKiMpenie reported in statement of comprehensive Income

P'UfilrtltHsIbafs’e Ua
Indian statutory mcsme im tala

trosw

Expected income tax expenses at per statutory

35

36

Taa effect on:
lun DedixUbie -Eawnwi
Deduction as per Income Taa Act'1961

Others
Tex Expanses as reported
Effective Tax Rate

The UP rate used for the 31st March , 2025 and 31st March, 2024 reconciliations above it the corporate tax rain of 25JT54, payable by corporate enttlles In India on taxable profits under Indian Income Tax laws.

Items that will not be reclasstflad subsequently to statement of profit and Loss 
(ai fair vaiuitisn c/ inveltwwtMt inaqiricy
Investment designatad atOCI
(b) Re-measurement ot the net defined benefit plans
(C) Income tax relating lo item above (Refer Note 21)
(d) 'Share at other Comprehensive income of associate

35 81 
|«W 
UI

441M
J? 16%

237 OS
14 M)

484,43
IdW

nr,is

Interest ta Atweirtet

Beta w li the Aiwcu te. which iwi hern echilrfcrf if for coruotrtjl«sn
PartkubH Aj*1  list 2015

Name of the erttaty 
Plac*  of business 
X of ownership interest 
Reladomhip 
Aacoixrting method 
Camr«Nl Amcnmtlta taWnl

Gvidhjn M#taJ Privets
Kolkata, India 

210534
Associate

Equity Method

Summarised financial information for Associate:

the tables below provide summarised financial information for associate, The information disclosed have been amended co reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, including fair value adjustments madeat the time ol acquisition and 
modifications for differences In accounting policies, If any

Junnwbud Balance Sheet- tfo «**h»
Parltoutors At at Iht Mirth. KH

Non Current Assets
Current Assets
Non Current Liabilities 
Current Liabilities -s

i K> 
<f

l S
£ £

 s 
£

8 8
 8 

8

Summarised Statement of Profitand Loss

Particulars

For the period ended 31st
March, 2025

Income
Revenue from 0 peart ion 
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income

5.884 58 
222.47
(0 IS]

222 32

36.1

Profit/ [Lossl afterTax
Other Ccm£>rehensWe Income

4725
10 03)

tacandUatloo at £a rry ing Amounts
PMtlcuiin Al |( H11 March, JNS

Opening Net Assets
Profit / (Loss) for the period including Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Taxes) 
Closing Net Assets (For Equity Share and Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares) 
Net Assets of Equity Shares Holden

Company's Share
Goodwill on account of acquisition
Carrying. Amount

76,862.00
222.23

77,08423

47,769 10
10,055,19

4,184 14
14.23934

file carrying amount of investment Includes resultant goodwill amounting to Rs 4,184.14 lakhs. The goodwill and share of profit have been calculated based on special purpose interim financial statements prepared for the purpose of consolidation as at 31st March, 
2025 and for the period 22nd March, 2025 to 31st March, 2025.

Additional information, at required under Schedule 111 of the Companies Art,2013, of enterprises consolidated as Associates:
'< In Lakhs

Parlfcultoft mi Aiicl L«. total aivru minus total IiabAum Share in pro t it or tost ‘5dwr in CtJw it wrnprrhercWrt totoOM Ihjrc w» total un-npteteAthw kttuin*

Name of the entity in the Group
As 54 of consolidated 

naraauu Amount
AlXcJton*0-U!atffd  profit

Amount
Aj. X of ceM4Ud»Jcd «rtkw i 

comprehensive income
Amount

As54 of total 
comprehensive 

income
Amount

G*  nd fun Mela) Prtvate Ura H cd (AModDtcl 16.41241 454 47.25 0W% a oi 256 47.22



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Irate*  formrf part of Uw Un*o*-d»ted  1 -nencie, MatpmaMk tot th*  yaer ***ded  Bitt M*<ik  ZO2i

Z^HI

'to*Latta

'"re Parti culan For the yearendad
31 March, 2025

37

37.1

IS 

3B.L

38.2

39

38.4

38 S

39.6

38-7

38 a

38-9

38 10

39

40

Cantintent Liabilities and Commitmanbr (to ttie extent not recorded a IIability in accounts)
[1) Contingent liabilities • *

Litigation lor various matters relating to:
•Excise Duty, Service Tax & Goods & Services Tax
Amount deposited under protest (As at March,31,2O2S ■- 97.47 Lacs J
-Income Tax

H Figures consists of original demand. Interest and penalty net of payment made under protest
(«| CommltmenU
[a] Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on account of capital goods and not provided as liability

lb) Other Camni.liT.antt
Outstanding Bank Guarantee

r The Company has reviewed all its pending liligalions and proceedings and has adequately provided Far where provision 
iut»m<nlL The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its co

’’The Company has given Corporate Guarantee to Glridhan Metal Private Limited for availing its various credit Facilities to 
Use year ended March 31st. 2025, the Company has paid Rs 274 66 lakhs for Goods and Services Tax expenses re

Others Additional Statutory Information:

U!Aiii»i> »fborrowing*
Th- uj-rpSriy iiii used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taker

low «

Ounng the cjti rr; previous year there are no Loans or Advances in me nature of loans granted to promoters, dlr ecto
K*  of repayment,

Drt»r> of ’cuni grren Sy tre lo-npirrj <x>de- i Ll> of the Co^pa-rt*  Act. 201 ), dwm*  the fi'ia'K-ai j-x XJ*-  2S ar

In accounts (Net of Capital Advances)

are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in Its 
sol Ida ted financial statements

the extent of its cost of investment i.e. T4930 06 Lakhs.
ted la earlier years.'' The same has been Included under the head "Other Ex

ai the balance sheet dale

$ KMPs and rhe related parties, that are repayable on demand ar without sp

gvrn irlc-a

7.449 64

7100

XS1S4B
M1M7

onsolidated financial

■enses*

ecifying any terms or

Name of the Entity ■elation
A-»x-l of Loan
O>»" during the 
r«M (t In Lakhs)

Amount auutamkag 
U «• 31/03/2025

bartkUar*  of loan, guarantee
•ndbrvyitnitnt*

Rurpot*  for which the 
loan U proposed to be 
viat»r<

Promo nona 1 Equity Services IM. Ltd. Refer Nols No 43 30000 1,393,77 LAN* Ktlne**  Purpe**

Disclosure relating to amount outstanding at year end of loans and advances, in nature of loan, required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. are given below:

Name of the Entity

Giridhan Metal Private Limited

Relation Nature of 
Transaction

Purpose

Maximum 
Amount 

Outstanding 
O—t the FT M J$

As at 31 March 25

Associate

LC»/' tuvnass rj-pOS« S. 80000 fl 800 00

Guarintey p^r.-dc-j 
f Banc

*c» •-*»»••<  wm f-cm 
Birk

4,930 06 4 95006

^i)fql pqfaultgr
■Tie Company has not been dcclaied wilful defaulter by any banker financial institution or government or any government aulhority or other lender in accordance wilh the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India-

Relationrhip with Struck off companies

Che Companydoe: not have any transactions with companies struck off as defined in Section 248 of the Companies Act‘2013 orsection 560 of Companies Act. 1956

Registration of Charges ar Satisfaction with ROC
there are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period

Disclosure on compliance with approved scheme!*)  of Amngementf
Ouring the year no Scheme of Arrangement has been formulated by the Company/pendlng with competent authority

Disclosure of Utilisation of Borrowed fund-, and share premium
No Funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither From borrowed funds or share premium at any other sources or kind of funds) by (he Company to or in any olherperson(s) ar ent>ty(ies), including foreign entities 
f'lnrermcdiarics") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend of invest In party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) The Company has not 
tottv.nq My refit frare aTypirtyj'l ff uPd-ng ?any,w.oi rn-e under v1«m'iii£t-»t die Company shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entitles identified by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") ar provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Details of Crypto Currency or Vlitual Currency
rhe Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Vinual Currcncydurinx the Current financial year

P-|<ki XT -wom<

During the year, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any income in tne tax assessments under the income Tax Act 1961 (such as, search or surveyor any other relevant provisions of the income Tax act, 1961).
Accordingly, there are no transaction which are net recorded in the books of accounts-

>n accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee, In terms with the provisions ofttie 
said Act, the Company was required to spend a sum of R 57-30 Lakh and t5E48 towards CSR activities during the year ended March 31,2025 The detail oi amount spent is as follows:* ’

M-NQ- tannUnn
C-iM x-cum •ew-.'td la e*  SMN t, • « jn, . * the yea- (2% of Avg Net O' ' • 6f Jr II*!}. 11 30

> Sr*,  off lavaUMe yrvwurl fcjl
Tret arrant*  T«jwr»*J  ta u» leant *w-r  < t*<  ,t >< V. Jt
Amount approvrd by IM Soard to ba wmi during the rear 3100
Xrvxz^t Scent Qu>m<tAe tear 54 34
Shortfall / at th- end of the year 13 95!
Eatet*  to be earned !;«■«• »r<j tar not ye**  n< bTe !»• vet art fRtfr*  •*«  111 3 95

r Mature of CSR Mt>«it»e*
»t ’»«cir»ed >n $en«au'< ,ii •>! tra *ci RrOTCtTMACf flora, turn 

Oevelapmen. -'-eject. 
Traffic Awareness, 
Promoting Healthcare & 
Education

< Oetatoi e» related paty •ratiacixx** At TS

Note;The major portion of CSR expenditure incurred by the company through a charitable trust Supershakti Foundation The objectives of Supershakti Foundation includes wooing in areas of social economic and health and 
hygiene awareness, women empowerment education , Rural Infrastructure development, promote flora / fauna de­

code on Social Security
tne Code on Social Security 2020 ( Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and past-employment received Indian Parliament approval and Presidential assent in Septemaer 2023 The Code has been published 
tn theGaaette of India and subsea uen 11 y on Nmember 13, 2020 draft rules were published and Invited for stakeholders' suggest ons. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has no! been notified The 
Company v/il) assess the impact of the Code when t comes into effect and will record any related Impact in ttip per od the Cade becomes effective-



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March. 2025

Note No
41 Borrowing secured against current assets

RECONCILIATION OF STOCK STATEMENT

In Lakh

The Company has been sanctioned working capital facilities from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The company has filed quarterly returns/ statements with such 
banks which are not in agreement with the audited books of account, however such differences between the amounts disclosed to the banks and those as per the books of accounts 
have been reconciled. Refer table below for summary of reconciliation and reasons of material discrepancies

Name of bank / Financial 
institution

Sanction Limit Quarter ended Nature of current Assets / Liabilities
Amount as per 

books of 
account (A)

Amount as reported 
in the quarterly 

return/ statement
Amount of 

difference (B-A)

Reason for 
Material 

difference

Trade Receivables 1,155.46 1,151.91 (3.55) Note 1
Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 193.96 193.96 ■ Note 2

of Baroda/Union Bank of 11,200 June 30, 2024 Inventories 3,357.84 3,861.37 503.53 Note 2
India Trade Payables for supplies 1,411.52 559.63 (851.89) Note 3

Advance from Customers 189.12 189.51 0.39 Note 1
Trass fteceivabfes 882.37 879.92 (2.45) Note 1

Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 562.29 584.93 22.64 Note 2
of Baroda /Union Bank of 11,200 September 30, 2024 Inventories 2,961.60 3,467.96 506.36 Note 2

India Trade Payables for supplies 1,308.14 506.20 (801.94) Note 3
Advance from Customers 592.38 592.50 0.12 Note 1
Trade Receivables 1,227.87 1,224.93 (2.94) Note 1

Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 84.04 770.15 686.11 Note 2
of Baroda /Union Bank of 11,200 December 31, 2024 Inventories 3,424.33 4,018.63 594.30 Note 2

India Trade Payables for supplies 1,597.98 1,387.61 (210.37) Note 3
Advance from Customers 76.62 76.81 0.19 Note 1 ,
Trade Receivables 684.08 ■ 820.38 136.30 Note 1

Indian Overseas Bank / Bank Advance against Raw Materials 126.24 195.17 68.93 Note 2
of Baroda /Union Bank of 11,200 ft March 31, 2025 Inventories 3,409.26 ■ • 3,405.74 (3.52) Note 2

India Trade Payables for supplies 3,170.21 2,209.05 (961.16) Note 3
Advance from Customers 614.74 -—459.99 (154.75) Note 1

Figures mention in quarterly return/ statement represents the details taken from books of accounts dated 25th March, 2025.

Notes
Note 1: Impact of sales reversal/ adjustments arising out of provision for debit and credit notes/ expected credit loss provision/ debtors beyond 120 days not considered in returns/ 
statements submitted to the banks,
Note 2: Adjustments pertaining to cut offs, goods in transit, overhead allocation on work-in-progress and finished goods, etc. are done only on finalisation of books of; 
accounts/consolidated financial statements. Same has not been considered in returns/statements submitted to the banks.

Note 3: Impact of provision for operational expenses not considered in returns/statements submitted to the banks,
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SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED

Notes forming part ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March. 2025

Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard -19 'Employee Benefits' as notified u/s 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

for the Defined Contribution Puns ate j; tr. de-
Defined Contribution Plan
I be smog.-; recogniteo as i t In lakhs

Particulars
For the year ended 

31 March. 2025
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 48.85
Employer's Contribution to Employees' State insurance Corporation 16.36

Defined Benefit Plan
The following are the types of defined benefit plans:

Gratuity Plan
Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to gratuity on terms not less favourable than the provisions ofthe Payment of Gratuity 

Act, 1972. The present value of defined obligation and related current cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being 

rarripri nut at Ralanrn Chppt riatp

Provident Fund
Provident Fund (other than government administered) as per the provisions ofthe Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.

Leave obligations
The Obligation for Leave encashment is determined and recognised in the same manner as gratuity.

Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
a) Interest rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing 

the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in consolidated financial statements)

b) Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants In future.
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have 

a bearing on the plan's liability.

c) Demographic risk; The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual 

experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

d) Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/ cash 

equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold In time.

e)

g)

d)

e) Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a risk 

of change in regulations requiring higher gratuity payouts (e-g. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of 20 Lakhs).

volatilities/fall in interest rate.

Details of Defined Benefit Obligations :

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the dosing bd'ances for the net defined benefit Obelions < in Lakhs
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Unfunded) Leave Encashment

2024-25 2024-25 2024-25
Baionce at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost

interest Expense or Cost
Re-measurement (ar Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions

Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)
Benefits Paid

178.64
8.44

1285

5.82

(27 56)

63.45
12 69

4.56

4.59

21.46
(23.61)

9.17
3 33

0.66

0 57

(104)
1023)

Balance at the end of the year 178.19 83.14 12.46

Change in Plan Assets:
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing oalanccs for the Plan Assets a^d its components:

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) 
2024-25

Balance at the beginning of the year
Investment Income
Benefits Paid
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest 
expense

0 96
0.07

Balance at the end of the ^ear 1.03

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets & Obligation - Net Defined Benefit Assets / (Liability) recognised in consolidated financial statements

Particulars
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Unfunded) Leave Encashment

2024-25 2024-25 2024-25
Present value of Defined B*̂ fit  Ob’igation
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Surplus / (Deficit)
Effects of Assets Ceiling, if any

178.19
1.03

83.14 12.46

(177.16) (83.14) <12.46)

Nel Assets/ (liability) recognised In the Balance Shod 1177.16) (83.14) (12.46)

Expenses iccognued in profit or loss

Particulars
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Unfunded) leave Encashment

2024-25 2024-25 2024-25
Current Service Cost
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset)
Re-measurement [or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions

Experience variance (i e Actual experience vs assumptions)

8 44
12 78

12.69
4.56

3.33
0.66

0,57

(104)
Total 21.22 17.25 3.52



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
! Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 '

h| Re measurements rec ok cd tn other comprehensive Income in Ukhs

Particulars
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Unfunded)

2024-25 2024-25
Remsasuremenw

(Gain)/loss from change In demographic assumptions
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions
Experience variance (i.e. Actual Experience vs assumptions)

Return on plan asiets. excluding amount recognised in net .interest expense

5.82
(27.56)

4.59
21.46

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income
(U.M) 264)5

Major Categories of Plan Assets

Particulars Gratuity (Funded)
2024-25

Insurer Managed Funds 100%

(I)

i)

(i) The Gratuity Scheme is invested in a Group Gratuity - Cum - Life Assurance Cash accumulation policy offered by Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) of India. The 

information on the allocation of the fund into major asset classes and expected return on each major class are not readily available. The expected rate of return on 

plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return provided by the company.

Asset Liability Matching Strategies
The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on-yearcash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is 

guaranteed for a period of one year. The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the year (subject to 

sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter 

compared to the duration of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate (In particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which should 

result in a increase in liability without corresponding increase In the asset). The scheme is managed on unfunded basis.

Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Unfunded)

Leave Encashment
(Unfunded) ,

2024-25 2024-25 2024-25

Financial Assumptions
Discount Rate (perannum)
Se'ery Escalation Rate (per annum)
Demographic Assumptions

Mortality Rate
Normal retirement age
Attrition / Withdrawal Rates

Upto 44 years
Above 44 years

6.75%
7 80%

100% of IALM 

2012-2014

58 Years

2.00%
1.00%

6.75%
7 80%

100% of IALM 

2012-2014

58 Years

2.00%
1.00%

6.75%
7.00%

100% of IALM 

2012-2014

58 Years

2.00%
1.00%

M The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion, past experience and other relevant factors 

such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Maturity Analysis

ml

The distribution of the timing of benefits payment i.e., the maturity analysis of the benefit payments Is as follows:

Expected cash flows over the next (Valued on undlscountcd basis):
Gratuity (Funded) Gratuity (Unfundcd)|Leave Encashment (Un

2024-25 2024 25 2024-25
1 Year
2 to 5 Years
6to 10 Years
More than 10 Years

27.24
47.37
99.17

141.25

6.21
9.95

29.41
185 A3

1-70
1.09
5.76

20.36

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (based on discounted cashflows)
7 years 13 years 11 years

Sensitivity Analysis I
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes 

in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, 
holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Gratuity (Funded! . _

Variable
Sensitivity 

Level

Effect on Defined Benefit Obligations
Gratuity (Funded)

31 March.2025
Increase Decrease

Discount Rate ♦M* 165.75 192.15
Salary Escalation Rate +A1% 191.87 165.76
Attrition rate +/-50K 177.83 178.57
MortaMty t&!» ♦A 10% 178.16 178.22

Gratuity |Unfunded)

Variable
Sensitivity 

Level

Effect on Defined Benefit Obligations
31 Ma rch, 2025

Increase Decrease
Discount Rate ♦A 1% 73.46 94.74
Safety Escalation Rato ♦A 1% 93A0 74.38
Attrition rate ♦A 50% 82.77 93-58
Mortality rate ♦/• 10% 83.15 83.15

Leave Encashment

Variable
Sensitivity 

Level

Effect on Defined Benefit Obligations
31 Ma rch.2025

Increase Decrease
Discount Rate ♦Al% 11.25 13.87
Salary Escalation Rale +A1% 13.85 11.24

Attrition rate ♦/- 50% 12 44 1ZA7
Mortall tv rate ♦A io% 12.45 12.46



SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED 

________________________________ Notes forming pjrt of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31>t March. 2O2S 
4j Rented Party Ohdofurn 
L Relationships

14 Key Management Personnel (KMP)

A. Executive O<tcc*.ot<
Surfipto Bhatlacharyya (Whole Time Director Ceased to be company w.e.f, 29 09.2024)
Rudra Narayan Jana {Whole lime Director. Appointed w.e.f 13.11 2024)

8. Key Management Personnel (KMP) otherthan above
Shyam S. Somanl (Chief Financial Officer)
Navin Agarwal (Company Secretary) 

(<>) Non-Fvvcutive Oireetan
Chhpp 4<arw*4  (OrroctorJ
Deepak Agarwal ( Director)
Bhawna Khanna {Independent Director)
Vijay Kumar Bhandari (Independent Director.Ceased to be company w e.f. 08.10.2024)
Rajan Kumar Manchanda (Independent Director, Appointed w.e.f. 13.11,2024)

Tuhinanshu Chakrabarty Shekhar (Independent Director)
(iii) Associate

Gi rid han Metal Private Limited, (w.e.f. 22nd March. 2025 )
(iv) Close Member of KMP

Sitaram Agarwal 
Sa hl ta Agarwal 
Vibha Agarwal 
Priti Agarwal

(u) Enterprises overwhich key management personnel and relatives of such personnel exercise significant Influence and control (others) 
Super Smelters Limited 
Sai Eleclrocasting Private Limited 
Linkview Realty Private limited 
Supershakti Foundation
Supershakti FMS & Consultants Private limited
Promotional Equity Services Private Limited

2. Transactions with Related Parties < in takta

*T-"*T
Membe*

Of KMT
WtlMl KMPdM

reer Ended 
inzo-U

TwrEnd^ Jeer Ended 
2D24-25

Ywr&uM YwBnfad
2D24-25

Purchase of Good?
Super Smelters Limited 
GwKShan MetM FrrMt*  limned 
Sai Electrocasting Private Limited

29,976.99
•

5,703,31 5,703.31
29,976 99

Super Smelters Limited 
Giridhan Metal Private Limited 
Sai Electrocasting Private Limited

2,574.51
•

25007

’»? W

250.07
2,574.51

722.35

GirOhan Mytai twrr.icd
loan & Advances

909 06 * 909 06

Promotional Equity Services Private Limited
GreMn Pr.vat*  Um 4 ad
M**"  Repayment
Promotional Equity Services Private Limited
G.’Hih*/'  Me<« Private um.ted
’jpiwHJnwrx
Promotional Equity Services Private Limited 

MeUI PrwMe landed
Rrimcvrvrrrrnt
Cum* Sad!tn Limited
Rtsvvtfy.Ml.UMnm
fajptr SmeRen Limited
SuoenhaMi FM5 & Consultants Private Limited 

«/ CksHs’hf
linsvnrw Realty Private iwtuled 
faaoenfuktl FMS & Consultants Private Limited
Security Deposit

9 800.00

1.000 00

ZO5O5

>00 oc

4.794 14

38191

6,CO

0 24

20 43
20 00

300 00
9 300.00

4,794 14
1,000 00

38191
205 05

6 60

0 24

20.43
20 00

UnLMvw Redly Prwele Limiltd 
paid.to Trott hr CSR Act|vRW*

155 L.55

Supaiihakti Foundation 

taM»3!498» .Mmw * <8&B? 
Sudlplo Bhattacharyya 
Rudra Narayan Jana 
Shyam S. Somanl 
Nntn Agarwal

tFw

20.41
9.66

51,77
1S.21

44.75 44.75

2041
9 66

5177
15 21

Bhawna Khanna
VI|*V  Kumar Bhandari

(138 038

Raian Kumar Manchanda 
ruMrumhv Chakrabarty Shekhar
C J

a 13
0 43

013
0 43

D»«c»k Agarwal
Nw Agarwal 
iibiW Agarwal
Vibh*  Agarwal
Pnfl Aearwal

0.76
0 63

7 39
6 63
6 76

0.76 
063 
7 39 
6.63 
6 76

3. Amount due to/ from Related Parties

Mwa•» MkMMW 
Giridhan MeUt Private Urmted 
Adya^f.«»n«v»*  UMnt.luprt 
Suoor Smelters Limited 
ipe*  PJ/Wct 
llutriew Realty Private limited 
Giridhan MeUl Pnvate United 
Super Smelters Limited

995 23
0 10

0,09

0 10
995 23 

0 09

Pnmoifonal Equity Services Private Limited
GtndMe Metal Prrrew Unrnad
WjtV 11 Wil Mu "HU
Unhricw Realty Private limited
PqyabtefpKMPs
SudipM Bhattacharyya
Rudra Narayan Jana
$Roa» 5. Somanl
Navin Agarwal
Corporate Guarantee (Mr-ae^fC
Gfndhan Metal Pm ate limaed

8000 00

4.93QOS

K)
 ED 

Co

1,393.77

155

1,393 77 
B BOO 00

155

0.98
6 68
2 12

4 430 06

4 The transactions from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm s length transactions

5 Summary o' caymcnr mice to KM?

»*rt  >cut«rt
For the year 

ended March 11, 
nts

VO*
<-£ nmtA! t>(- .-'.I-

"Cera i*  KMPs also participate In past employment benefits plans provided by the Company. The amount in respect of these towards the KMP*  can not be segrecated as these are based on actuarial valuation (or all!
V'"P»yvv>W she Came wry I
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44 Financial Instrument by Category
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet Items that contain 

financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity 

instrument are disclosed in note 3.12 to the consolidated financial statements.

i) Fair Valuation of Financial Assets and Financial liabilities

XmUkh
The following table presents carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31,2025

Particulars

31st March. 2025
Fair Value 
through 
Profit & loss

Fair Value through OCI Amortised Cost

Financial Assets
Investments
'Equity Investment in Unquoted share

Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances
Loans
Other Financial Assets

•

684.08
9 60

515.16
10,193.77

52.93
Total Financial Assets 1 11.454.54

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities 8.22
•

1,924.12
3,170.21

220.16

TOWlFIruncialUlWUei 8J2 • 5 J1449

In lakh1

The following is the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value ofthe Company's financial instruments that are measured at Amortized cost:

! Particulars
31st March, 2025

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Bank Balances

Loans

Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Liabilities

684.00
8 60 

515-16
10,193 77

52 93

684.09
8 60

515.16
10,193 77

52-93
11,454.54 11,454.54

1,924.12
3,170.21

220.16

1,924.12
3,170.21

220.16

Tetol Financial LtabWlks 5314.49 5.314.49

The management has assessed that the fair values al cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowings, and other current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short- 
term maturities of these instruments. The management has assessed that the fair value of floating rate instruments approximates their carrying value

(fl) Fair value measurement
The fair values of financial assetsand liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values are consistent with all previous reporting year.

45 Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost .ind 
for which fair values are disclosed In the consolidated financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its fuiar-tial 
instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows below.

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1):
This level of hierarchy includes financial instruments that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets far identical assets or liabilities. This category consists of mutual fund 
investments. ।

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): I

This level of hierarchy includes financial instruments, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level lthat are observable for the instruments, either directly (i.e., as prices) orlndirectty 
(i.e , derived from prices) and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value or instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Valuation technloueswith significant unobservable incuts (Level 3):
This level of hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation 
model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. This category consists of 
investment in unquoted equity instrument.

45,1 TTu; fqltowing methods and were used to estimate the fokj^lues:
The fair values for loans, security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of 
unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risks, which has been assessed to be insignificant

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on the discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as Level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of 
unobservable inputs including own credit risks, which was assessed as on the balance sheet date to be insignificant.
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45 1.1 Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair Value ■■ recurring fair value measurements

As at 31st March 2025 tin Lakh

Particulars
31st March, 2025

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets

Investment in Equity Instruments
Investment in Mutual Fund

Other Financial Assets

•

-

Total Financial Assets -

Financial liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities 8.22
Total Financial UabTities • a.22

45 1 2 Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at Amortized Cost for which fair values are disclosed

Particulars
31st March, 2025

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Trade Receivables
C*Pl  and Cash Equivalents
Other Bank Balances 
loans
Other Fvsanoai Assets

•

644 «
• 60

515 16
I0.W3.77 

52-93
Total Financial Assets 11.454.54

Financial liabilHirs
BO'rowmei
Irate Liabilities
Trade Payables
Other Financial Uabftttet

1.924 12

3.17021

220.16
Total Financial liabilities 5,314 49

Notes:

(i) Investments carried at their fair values through profit & loss, are generally based on market price quotations In respect of investments in mutual funds, the fair values represent net asset value as stated by the issuers of these mutual furd 

units in the published statements. Net asset values represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual Fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units From the investors. Accordingly, such net asset vjiuci 
are analogous to fair market value with respect to these investments, as transactions of these mutual funds are carried out at such prices between investorsand the issuers of these units of mutual funds

(ii) Investments carried at their fair values through other comprehensive income, measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) Fair va 

model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data 

instrument

ues are determined in whole or in part, using a va h aimn 

This category consists of investment in unquoted eqj.v(

(iii) Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value 
estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates As such, the fair value oi the financial instruments subsequent to th*  

respective reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each year end

(iv) The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair 

2025

value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 from March 31, 2024 to March 31,

46 Financial Risk Management
The Company has a Risk Management Policy which covers risk associated with the financial assets and liabilities The Risk Management Policy is approved by the director The different types of risk impacting the fair value of financial 

instruments are as below:

45 1 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk ol financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration-bF 
creditworthiness as well as concentration risks.
Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of investments, trade receivables and balances with banks None of the financial instruments of the Company result in materia) concentrations of tredJI 

risks.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured, considered good and are derived from revenue earned from customers Customer credit risk is managed as per Company's policy and procedures which involve credit approvals, establishing CftdH 

limits and continually monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored Refer below for the credit r.-.r- 

arising out of outstanding trade receivables.

As at 31st March. 2025 t in Lakh

Ageing schedule Not Duc
Less than 6

Month
6 month-1 ytar 1-2 yean 2-3 years More than 3 years Tout

Grass Credit Risk 679.57 4 58 2144 • 20.C0 725.59

Allowances for Credit Risk • 0.07 21.44 - 20 00 41.51

Ne: Credit Risk - 679.57 451 0.00 - 684.08

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision Trade Receivable
Loss allowance on 1 April. 2024 45.00

Changes in loss allowance 3 49
Loss allowance on 31 March, 2025 41 51

46 2 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not meet its financial obligations The objective of liquidity risk management is lo maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements

The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines 'rom various banks The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and in liquid schemes of mutual funds, which carry no/low market risk

(i) Maturity Analysis for financial liabilities

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities including estimated interest payments, if any as at March 31, 2025

KinUWi

Particulars Carrying Amount
Contractual cash 

tow! Less than 1 year Between 1-5 years More than 5 years

Lease babxibet
Trade Pj tables rno 2i U»?| 1.170 21
Other'nannal Uabi'itcs Lil 220 It 220 16 220 15t.u> Zn<3m' <S $.314-49 5.319.25 S,317JS 137 •

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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(ii) The Company has certain undrawn credit facilities which can he accessed as and when required; such credit facilities are reviewed at regular intervals. Thus, no liquidity risk is perceived at present.

The Company has accen to following financing faeililtcs which were undrawn as at the end of tho year:

Undrawn financing facility
As at

March 31. 2025

Secured working capital facilities:
Amount used
Amount unused

1,922.89

577.58

# Secured working facilities has been compared based on drawing power of the previous month of the respective reporting date

(Hi) The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the Impact of netting agreements (if any). The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the tables above reflect market forward 
interest rates at the respective reporting dates and these amounts may change as market interest rates change. The future cash flows on derivative instruments may be different from the amount in the above tables as exchange rates change. 
Except for these financial liabilities, it is not expected that cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts. When the amount payable Is not fixed, the amount disclosed Ml 

been determined with reference to conditions existing at the reporting date.

46 3 Market Risk
Market riskis the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises four type of risks: Commodity Price Risk, Foreign Exchange Risk, Interest Rate Urik 

and Other Price Risk Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy.

Commodity Price Risk
The Company primarily imports Coal, Scrap, Manganese Ore and Copper Mould Tube. It is exposed to commodity price risk arising out of movement in prices of such commodities Such risks are monitored by tracking of the prices and Aire 

managed by entering into fixed price contracts, where considered necessary.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
Foreign Currency risk Is the risk that fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the foreign exchange rates. The company undertake transactions in foreign currencies, ccrHtquently, 
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise, Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company's cost of Imports, The Company evaluates the Impart of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to 
exchange rate risks. Exchange rate exposure are managed with in approved policy parameters utilizing foreign exchange forward contracts. The Company, as per its risk management policy, uses such forward contract derivative imtfutnenti 

primarily to hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

a) Exposure to currency risk
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency riskatthe end of the reporting period are as follows:

Hl Derivative Financial Instruments and Risk Management
The Company has entered into variety of foreign currency forward contracts to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. These financial exposures are managed in accordance with the Company’s risk

The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposures inforeign currency arising from firm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions. Forward exchange contracts that were outstanding on

tin Ukh*

Currency Cross Currency
list March, 2025

Guy sen
In USD In EURO In INR to USD In EURO _ | In INR

US Cellar INR 15 06 1.291 10 124 • I 106 22

The aforesaid hedges have a maturity of less than 1 year from the year end.

b Sensitivity Analysis
The Analysis is based on assumption that the increase/decrease in foreign currency by S% with all other variables held constant, on the unhedged foreign currency exposure.

Particulars

31st Match, 2025

Sensitivity 
Analysis

Impact On

Profit before tax
Impacton Post Tax- 

Eouitv
USD Sensitivity Increase 5% (8.35) (6.25)
USD Sensitivity (Decrease) 5% 8 35 6.25

The movement in the profit before tax and post tax equity is a result of a change in the fair value of derivative financial instruments not designated in a hedge relationship and monetary assets and liabilities.

46.4 intomtuteRfck
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates The Group exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the

Group's long term and short term borrowing with floating interest rates. The Company constantly monitors the credit markets and rebalances its financing strategies to achieve an optimal maturity profile and financing cost

Exposure to interest rate risk
T in Lakhs

a ffad rate Financial iiabHfty Jnumwnt Includes Vehicle Loans.

Particulars
3151 March, 2025

fixed Rate ininrumonti
Financial Assets (Af

18>
10,755.45 

ia

kmbhai (9,219.27)

Variably Rate Instruments
Financial Assets (Al
FuuncMkl Lubilitirt tW 387 as

(A) 387 95
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A Change m SO bps in Interest rate would have lodov*>rig impact on PBT and Other Equity

Particulars
31st March. 2025

Sanfittrity 
Analytic

Impact on
Profit before tai Other equity

Interest Rate Increase by
Interest Rate Decrease by

0.50%

0.50%

(1.94) [145]
1.94 1,45

47 Capital Risk management
The Company's objective to manage its capital Is to ensure continuity of business while at the same time provide reasonable returns to its various stakeholders but keep associated costs under control. In order to achieve this, requirement of 
capital Is reviewed periodically with reference to operating and business plans that take into account capital expenditure and strategic investments. Apart from internal accrual, sourdng of capital is done through judicious combination cl 
equity and borrowing, both shortterm and long term Net debt (total borrowings less cash & cash equivalents and Other bank balance ) to equity ratio is used to monitor capital.

Particulars
Tin Lakhs

March 31, 2025

Short tenn debt (Refer Note - IB) 1.922.89
long term debt 1 Refer Note *lfi) 1.23
Total Borrowings 1.924.12
Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents (Refer Note - 14) (8 601

Lass : Bank Balance other than cash and cash eauivalent (Refer Note - 15) (515451
Less : Current Investment
Net Debt (A) 1.400.36
Equity Share Canital (Refer Note -16) 1.15253
Other Eoultv (Refer Note-17) 25,822 48
Total Equity (B) 26375.Q1
Gearing Ratio (A / B « C) 5.19%

« The company and its associate use accounting software including payroll software and additionally the associate uses weighment software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 202S, which has » 
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded In the respective softwares.
However, the audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for payroll software for the company and its associate. In respect of accounting software of the company, audit trail was editable at database level whereas, for lit 
associate, audittrail feature was not enabled at the database level in respect of accounting software and weigh me nt software.
Further, no audit trail feature was tampered with in respect to the accounting software including payroll and weigh men t software of the Company and its associate.
Additionally, the audit trad has been preserved by the Company and its associate as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent It was enabled and recorded in the respective years.
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(d)
(e)

SUPERSHAKTI METALIKS LIMITED
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Events after the reporting period

No significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of 
the Company requiring adjustment or disclosure.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2025 include profit and other comprehensive income of associate for the period March 22,2025 to 
March 31,2025. No corresponding figures for the year ended March 31,2024 have been presented in respect of consolidated financial statements since the company did 
not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture prior to acquisition.

Rounded Off
The figures appearing in consolidated financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Lakhs, as required by General Instructions for preparation of consolidated 
financial statements in Division II of Revised Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

Earnings Per Share

(b)

(c)

(f)
<E)

(a)

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2025

Profit for the year (t in Lakhs) 1,290.23
Profit aftertax attributable to Equity Shareholders (t in Lakhs) 1,290.23

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year used as denominator in calculating basic earnings per share (Nos) 1,15,25,278

Dilutive Potential Equity shares •

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year used as denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share (Nos) 1,15,25,278

Nominal value per equity share (’.) 10.00
Earnings per share (in - Basic & Diluted 11.19

As per our report of even date annexed herewith
For SINGHI & CO.
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